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”

We believe that with policy reforms and a business friendly government, 

an extremely difficult phase for the real estate sector will soon become 

a thing of the past. Companies focussed on faster project completion 

and emphasis on quality will gain immensely from the turnaround

“
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Chairman’s Message

Dear Shareholders,

FY 2014 has witnessed the Indian economy growing at 4.7%, marking the second consecutive year of below five per cent growth in the previous 

25 years. Asia’s third largest economy has been weighed down by various factors, such as high inflation, a weak currency and a steady drop in 

foreign investment. Until recent times, Asia was perceived to be the primary engine of global growth. However, most Asian economies have 

slowed down due to declining exports, sluggish domestic demand, capital outflows and political uncertainties.

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has, for the third time this year, cut the world’s growth rate to 3.8 per cent in FY 2015 owing to weaker 

expansions in Japan, Latin America and Europe. However, the IMF has upgraded India’s FY 2015 GDP growth to 5.6 per cent and has estimated 

FY 2016 growth at 6.4 per cent.

The Indian economy has received a major boost with a majority government at the centre, which is expected to implement growth oriented 

policies and accelerate the reform process to put the economy on a high-growth path. The country has grown at 5.7 per cent in the first 

quarter of FY 2015 - the highest in nine quarters. The second quarter growth is likely to be muted with a revival expected in the last quarter 

of FY 2015. The new government has set out economic reforms for faster economic growth. These include ironing out kinks in land acquisition, 

implementing the long awaited GST, rapidly modernising the railway system to its fullest potential and fixing the flawed agricultural produce 

marketing system. A single party majority government and a Prime Minister who has been hailed as a “man of action” by the US President will 

tone up the business morale and facilitate regulatory approval processes for the real estate industry. This augurs well for our company and we 

expect faster and business friendly approvals from the government. 

The Indian real estate sector has witnessed a rough patch over the last few years; its major challenges being lack of suitable developable land, 

delays in obtaining approvals and issues in land title and insurance. This industry has been smitten by very austere and restrictive financial 

constraints in terms of raising credit or loans. Despite this gloomy situation, real estate players have struggled hard to keep afloat in the 

turbulent sector. We believe that with policy reforms and a business friendly government, an extremely difficult phase for the real estate 

sector will soon become a thing of the past. Companies focussed on faster project completion and emphasis on quality will gain immensely 

from the turnaround.

We, at Orbit, have taken the difficult period in our stride and utilized this time to introspect and realign our strategies in tune with the 

exigencies of time, place and unpredictability of wind and weather. It has been our constant endeavour to adopt best business practices and 

provide people with residential and business places of the highest quality. Our focus on improving internal capabilities has helped us tide 

over the difficult market conditions. We are proud to state that we have evolved into an efficient organisation and have maintained our core 

values despite the constraints. Going ahead, we are confident of posting better numbers, thereby providing better returns to our shareholders. 

We consider ourselves fortunate to receive unstinted support from our shareholders, bankers, institutional investors, lenders, customers, 

service providers and business partners. We would also like to specially thank our employees and the board for their sincerity, tenacity and 

unfailing trust in the organisation.

Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal

Executive Chairman

Mumbai, 12th November, 2014
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Orbit has created a niche for itself as a premium developer with 

unsurpassed delivery of five landmark projects in the last couple of years. 

Your company already has an impressive project pipeline and is strategically 

poised to ensure a steady and robust growth in the coming years ”

“
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Managing Director & CEO’s Message

Dear Shareholders,

A fragile global economy has contributed to the slowdown in the growth of Indian economy over the last two years. Delays in tackling structural 
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ourselves in the coming years, thereby enhancing shareholder value.

Mr. Pujit Aggarwal

|��������?����	��������

|������'<th�{���������<='�

:



Management Discussion & Analysis
BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Indian Economy and Industry Status

India’s economy grew at 4.7 per cent in FY 2013-14; the second straight year of below 5 
per cent growth. Th is marks the second consecutive year of below fi ve per cent growth 
in the previous 25 years. 

Real estate sector plays an important role in the Indian economy and is one of the 
largest employers after agriculture and textile. It has numerous allied industries linked 
with it. 

Th e Indian real estate sector is highly fragmented, capital intensive in nature and is yet 
to receive an Industry status. Further, the sector has close linkages with the economy 
and is therefore highly cyclical in nature. A typical real estate project has a minimum 
gestation period of three to four years.

Th e real estate sector continued to remain fragile in FY 2013-14 as the industry is 
facing headwinds such as slow approvals, recent regulatory changes in key micro 
market – Mumbai (pertaining to development control rules), infl ation impacting cost 
structure, declining demand due to increasing prices, etc. Th e continuing slowdown in 
economy coupled with rising infl ation and high interest rates led to an adverse impact 
in savings; thereby leading to a decline in demand for real estate. 

Slowdown infl uence on funding of projects

Th e slowdown in economy has resulted in developers facing lack of adequate sources for 
funding of projects, which is usually done through a mix of internal accruals, customer 
advances, and debt. Funds from internal accruals are likely to be limited in nature in 
short to medium term due to current sluggish demand in real estate sector, impacting 
the cash fl ows from ongoing projects. Customer advances, the other source of funding, 
may not be available to fund the project in the initial stages, thereby leaving debt as 
the principal source of funding for the project. Th e exposure of banks was on a declining 
trend due to the cautious outlook of the banks towards the sector.

To add to the existing woes, foreign investors adopted a cautious approach due to 
continuing weakness in the Indian rupee in an uncertain macroeconomic environment. 
Since these traditional sources of fi nance dried up, developers had to approach non-
banking fi nancial companies (NBFCs) for short-term debt and private equity (PE) 
funds. However, funds from NBFCs and PE investors are also fading away as the returns 
have been on the lower side and many PE investors are struggling to exit at decent 
returns.

Th e subdued demand, increasing construction cost, rising interest expense and 
delays in project approvals have dented the earnings and return ratios of real estate 
developers. 

Outlook

Th e Indian economy is expected to grow at a faster pace from H2 FY14-15. A stable 
government at the Centre will lead to a steady pace of implementation of policy 
reforms, thereby increasing private sector investments. Infl ation is showing signs of 
cooling down. RBI is taking various measures to curb infl ation with a view to boost 
business confi dence and create a more favourable investment climate resulting in 
availability of funds. Decline in interest rates and improvement in employment outlook 
will improve affordability and provide the much-needed stimulus to demand in the 
real estate sector. Th e above factors along with aggressive marketing and pricing of 
inventory will help real estate players with an improved cash fl ow position in the 
coming period.

Real estate contributed 6.3 per cent to India’s GDP in FY 2012-13. Th e market size of 
the sector is expected to grow at a CAGR of 11.2 per cent during FY 2008-2020 to touch 
USD 180 billion by 2020. Th e government of India has allocated USD 1.3 billion for 
Rural Housing Fund in the Union Budget 2014-15. 

Recently, the cabinet relaxed FDI rules in construction sector by reducing minimum 
built-up area as well as capital requirement and easing of exit norms. Th is move is 
expected to boost FDI in the real estate sector, providing a fi llip to the cash-starved 
sector which is reeling under a slowdown since the last 2-3 years. 

SEBI has also made amendments to its earlier proposal on Real Estate Investment 
Trusts (REITS) and Infrastructure Investment Trusts (InvIT). Th is could again translate 
into huge investments in the real estate sector.   

REAL ESTATE SCENARIO - MUMBAI

Mumbai’s commercial relevance has been a key driver for the real estate industry. 

Th e real estate market in Mumbai came to a near standstill in terms of new launches 
since 2011, owing to an abrupt ceasing of approval process by the regulatory authority, 
Th e Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai (MCGM). MCGM started the process 
of amending the Development Control Regulation (DCR) in 2011 which held up the 
sanction of fresh approvals for over a year. With a halt on fresh approvals, the supply 
of fresh inventory in Greater Mumbai region was thus restricted. Given the uncertainty 
pertaining to DCR guidelines, the developers also slowed down the pace of execution 
of ongoing projects, which in turn affected their revenue recognition. Moreover, with 
the receivables from customers being linked to the construction progress achieved, 
the cash infl ows were impacted as well. Th e effect was far more pronounced in cases of 
developers having debt laden balance sheets owing to their inability to monetize the 
land parcels in the absence of requisite approvals. Th e Government of Maharashtra 
(GoM) announced the amendments to DCR in January 2012. Th e main revision in 
the DCR was the inclusion of areas like balconies, fl ower beds (which were earlier 
free of FSI) in the calculation of FSI. However, as a compensation for this loss of FSI, 
DCR introduced a concept of fungible FSI, under which a developer could purchase 
additional area over and above the permissible area. With the revision in the DCR, 
while the approvals have started fl owing in the system, the approval process, however, 
is yet to gain momentum characteristic of earlier years. 

Th e cost pressure in terms of land and raw material prices continues to remain fi rm. 
Moreover, the delayed launches have already made a dent in the project returns. In 
June 2013, RBI lowered the risk weight on residential real estate borrowings from 
100% to 75%, which could provide some breather to developers on the interest rates 
front. However the recent tightened liquidity position in the banking system may 
nullify this impact to a large extent. Moreover, most of the banks have increased their 
base rates in the recent past, which in-turn would lead to an increase in acquisition 
cost for the buyers thereby resulting in slower off-take. 

Despite the challenging market scenario, the capital rates in the city’s residential 
market have remained largely fi rm in the past supported by limited supply as well as 
increasing cost pressures but the off-take was substantially low.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OPERATING PERFORMANCE

Orbit Corporation Ltd. is engaged in the business of real estate development in 
Mumbai Metropolitan Region (MMR), with signifi cant operations in the Island City of 
Mumbai. We target the premium realty market in Mumbai on the strength of our brand 
and project execution skills, providing international quality to our customers.

Our customers are from the higher strata of the society and comprise of High Net-
worth Individuals and Eminent Personalities from Corporate Houses. Our business 
model is primarily driven by redevelopment of cessed and dilapidated buildings in the 
Island City of Mumbai. 

We believe that the demand in areas of our operation is inelastic to price, but at the 
same time we constantly strive to deliver value to our customers by providing them 
with innovative and premium housing solutions thereby helping us differentiate our 
product offerings.

KEY PROJECTS

Orbit’s projects portfolio, consists of luxury residential apartments being developed in 
South Mumbai, South Central Mumbai and suburban areas.
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South Mumbai

Orbit commands the highest market share in terms of area under development in 
premium locations such as Napeansea Road, Malabar Hill, Kemps Corner. Th ese projects 
are ultra-luxury projects with unmatched values of Quality Luxury and Neighbourhood 
in South Mumbai. Orbit Laburnum is also at an initial stage of development under this 
category. 

Orbit has delivered two award winning projects at Napeansea Road, viz. Villa Orb and 
Orbit Arya. It has also executed projects like Shivam and Orbit Heights in this area. 

Orbit Haven, another ultra luxury project in the same area is in an advanced stage of 
construction. Villa Orb Annexe is at an initial stage of development under this category. 

Orbit has super luxury projects at Prarthana Samaj, Babulnath, Nana Chowk and 
Gamdevi which provides with modern features in true sense. Orbit Enclave is at an 
advance stage of construction. 

We have a strong future pipeline of projects in South Mumbai and we will continue 
evaluating various proposals for redevelopments in these localities and identify 
opportunities for value creation for our shareholders while delivering exquisite 
residential solutions to our customers.

South Central Mumbai 

We have two ongoing luxury projects at an advanced stage of construction in the 
Business District, Lower Parel viz. Orbit Terraces and Orbit Grand. Another project 
namely, Orbit Eternia has been delivered in the year 2012.

Project at Lalbaug, is at planning stage and will be launched in phases in due course.

Mumbai Suburbs 

As part of extension of the Company’s strategy to leverage its brand value in the 
premium mid-segment residential market, we have initiated projects in the Mumbai 
suburban areas like Andheri and Bandra Kurla Complex (BKC). Orbit Residency Park 
in Sakinaka, Andheri, (being executed by our Subsidiary Ahinsa Buildtech Pvt. Ltd.) is 
progressing well as planned.

We have also executed two commercial projects, Orbit Plaza and Orbit WTC, as built-to-
suit offi ce spaces in the vicinity of BKC.

Orbit Mandwah Project

We are also planning to develop a gated township with high-end amenities and 
features at Mandwa, Alibaug. Th e project named Orbit Mandwah, is being executed 
by our subsidiary Orbit Highcity Pvt. Ltd. Th e project is an extension of our premium 
offerings providing luxurious villas to our high-end customers at just 16 minutes away 
(by sea route) from the Gateway of India.

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

Sales (Volume & Value)

Financial year 2013-14 has not been encouraging for the economy, so as to the 
Company in overall sales, both in volume and value term affected.

No new projects were launched during the year under review in view of the uncertainty 
pertaining to DCR guidelines. We have slowed down the pace of execution of the 
ongoing projects, which in turn affected our revenue recognition. In view of revision 
in the DCR, the approvals have started fl owing in the system. However it is yet to gain 
momentum, a characteristic of earlier years.

Future sales from the ongoing projects viz. Orbit Enclave, Orbit Terraces, Orbit Grand, 
Orbit Residency Park, Orbit Laburnum, Orbit Haven, and Villa Orb are expected to keep 
the order book healthy. Orbit Bloom, Orbit Midtown, and Orbit Mandwah are expected 
to be signifi cant contributor to the order book over the medium term.

Financial Highlights

Particulars UoM FY14 FY13
Total Income Mn 489 3109

EBIDTA Mn (738) 1032

EBIDTA Margin % (151) 33

Profi t Before Tax Mn (2266) 22

PAT (attributable to OCL) Mn (1562) 75

PAT Margin % (320) 2

Profi tability

Financial year 2013-14 saw an abnormal dip in revenues due to reasons explained 
above viz. activity was meager in view of new DCR regulations and slow approvals, 
no new launches of projects, higher input / fi nance cost aggravated the problems and 
relatively lower sales prices coupled with abnormal events in the form of revenue write 
offs affected the EBIDTA / PAT margins substantially. 

THE OUTLOOK

1.  Th e year 2013-14 was a drag for the Indian economy with poor macroeconomic 
conditions. Slowing income growth, sustained weakness in the rupee, sky-
rocketing infl ation and high borrowing rates combined to make consumers vary 
of spending.

 Despite this, residential property prices continued to exhibit upward movement 
even as the weakening rupee steadily eroded the purchasing power. 

2.  Th e presently cautious market sentiment is likely to continue, as headwinds to 
growth will prevail at least until the fi rst half of 2014. 

 However, the second half is likely to witness gradual revival in absorption. 
Residential real estate capital values will increase in a subdued range of 10-12% 
year-on-year pan-India for the whole year. 

3.  With scarce availability of land in MMR, redevelopment will emerge as another 
growth driver in a scenario, the cost-and-time-intensive complexities with 
regards to land acquisition, unfavourable land development policies and number 
of approvals and signifi cant procedural delays was a cause of concern.

 Th e developers have an opportunity for redevelopment as only 50% of the 
residential units are in good condition, while the remaining are either merely 
liveable or in dilapidated condition.

4.  In general, 2013-14 was not a good year for India’s residential real estate market. 
Property prices remained high in most cities, largely because developers were hit 
hard by the vastly increased costs of construction and debt. Because of the rising 
input costs and compromised sales, they were prevailed upon to cut back on 
project launches. In line with the need of the hour, those that did happen were 
mostly in the mid-income and budget homes segments. Luxury housing took a 
severe body blow and movement of premium and super-luxury properties in the 
metros slowed down considerably.

 In the early part of 2014-15, sentiments on MMR residential property market 
will remain cautious, but in view of better affordability of people and returns on 
investment it will pick up. 

5.  Th e Mumbai Metro has all the hallmarks of being a game-changer for the city’s 
transportation and realty landscape.

OPPORTUNITIES 

1.  Rapid urbanization and demographic changes, especially within emerging 
markets, will lead to substantial growth in the� real estate investment 
industry�over the next few years, according to�Real Estate 2020: Building the 
future, a new report from PwC. At the same time as the industry’s opportunities 
grow, so too will assets invested into the sector, it said.�
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 Th e report also fi nds that private capital will play a critical role in funding the 
growing and changing need for real estate.�

2.  Th e city has assumed world fame because of increase of corporate outsourcing 
from industrialized countries and Mumbai is known for its cosmopolitan 
atmosphere, where people not only from different part of the country come and 
settle but from all over the world.

3.  Often regarded as the “City of Skyscrapers”, Mumbai is intertwined with numerous 
roads, fl yovers, airport, railways, and port. Th e city is known for its highly 
advanced amenities which include reputed Educational Institutes, Advanced 
Hospitals, IT parks, etc. Apart from that, the city has the abundance of Shopping 
Malls, Super Market, Multiplexes, Th eatre and other avenues of recreations which 
infl uence the people to settle in Mumbai.

4.  Mumbai has emerged as one of the most preferred destinations for property 
investment in the wake of its booming real estate market. Not only the residents 
of India prefer to invest in the properties of Mumbai, but the NRIs are also 
investing with an aim to gain maximum return with the upbeat market condition.

5.  BJP, the ruling party with absolute majority, in its election manifesto has given 
top priority to the housing sector, and aims to bridge the housing shortage 
gap through its vision, “Housing For All, by 2022”. Further, it was proposed to 
develop 100 smart cities, which were to be enabled via latest technology and 
infrastructure. Additionally, it was also proposed to rationalise the tax regime, 
and to liberalise the FDI in select sectors.

6.  Th e development of Mumbai has drawn the attention of property investors from 
around the world. Th e city is viewed as a haven for property investment as it 
is the commercial capital of the country. Besides, the reason behind Mumbai 
enjoying such a great infl uence among the property investors is the heavy 
returns on the invested capital in very short spans of time.

RISK & CONCERNS

1.  Th e Indian real estate industry is deeply affected by the decision of Reserve Bank 
of India with respect to the recent tightening of the liquidity position in the 
banking system, because it is just not the single industry but there are many 
industries which are associated with it and we cannot deny the fact that in the 
coming time the pressure will increase not only on individuals but on Companies 
or sectors associated too and that will ultimately slow down the demand.

 Th is reaction will directly affect the demand and will put the developers in fund 
crisis condition and the overall real estate sector has to bear this crunch. Th e 
heavy investment projects will fi nd fewer buyers due to increase in the property 
cost.

2.  Th e input cost like material cost, metal cost, transportation cost, etc has risen 
30 to 35 percent in last two years. Apart from these there has been considerable 
increase in wages in the last two years. 

3.  Frequent changes in the policies of the regulatory authorities may adversely 
impact the real estate scenario and hence our business and prospects.

4.  Expected some major reforms which have been pending for long and how it will 
work and affect to the business and prospects of the sector, such as setting up 
of the real estate regulator, reforming the existing LARR Act, 2013, rolling out 
of Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs), faster execution of National Land 
Record Modernisation Programme (NLRMP) and introduction of a single window 
clearance mechanism.

ORGANIZATION

Human Resources

We, at Orbit Corporation Limited consider people as our greatest Asset. We motivate 
our employees by encouraging them to enter into healthy competition, to which 
delivery is the result for the Company and growth is the result for each employee on 
personal front. We strive to work at root levels for fl owering the core competencies 
thereby aligning them to our business goals.

Th ough dedicated completely towards work, the employees here in Orbit, also celebrates 
various festivals and other cultural and educational events organised time to time by 
the Human Resources department. Th is ensures that the employees feel a balance 
work life which in turn improves their personality both professional and personal. We 
continuously encourage our employees to undergo training and be a part of various 
forums for furthering their careers.

Training Programs

S. No. Training Type Man Hours Cost 
1 Behavioural / Soft Skill 216 28090

2 Technical / Domain 208 83312

 Total 424 111402

Statement of changes in Human Resources 

Particulars
OCL only OCL + 

Outsourced + 
Subsidiaries

Opening number of employees as on 1st April 2013 255 265

Added 32 32

Attrition 60 63

Closing number of employees as on 31st March 
2014 227 234

SEGMENT REPORTING

Th e Company’s business activities fall within single segment, viz. real estate and 
redevelopment and predominantly operates in domestic market. Accordingly, 
disclosure requirements under Accounting Standard (AS) 17 segment reporting, is not 
applicable.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

• Certain statements in the Management Discussions and Analysis describing the 
Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may 
be forward-looking statements within the meaning of applicable Securities laws 
and regulations. Actual results could defer from those expressed or implied as 
these statements may be based on certain assumptions of future events over 
which the Company exercises no control.

• Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to our ability to manage 
growth, competition, attracting and retaining skilled professionals, time and 
cost overruns, regulatory approvals, market risks, domestic and international 
economic conditions, changes in laws governing the Company including the tax 
regimes and exchange control regulations.

• Important operations include material availability and prices, cyclical demands 
and pricing in the Company’s principal markets, change in Government 
regulations, tax regime, economic developments within India and other 
incidental factors.

• Our revenues and expenses are diffi cult to predict and can vary signifi cantly from 
period to period, which could cause share prices to decline.

• Our projects are subject to risks from natural disasters like earthquakes and 
fl oods.

• When used in this report, the words ‘anticipate’, ‘believe’, ‘estimate’, ‘expect’, 
‘intend’, ‘will’ and other similar expressions as they relate to the Company and/or 
its businesses are intended to identify such forward-looking statements.

• Th e Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or 
otherwise.
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Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

Th e Board of Directors take pleasure in presenting the 14th Annual Report on the 
business and operations of your Company together with Audited Financial Accounts for 
the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2014.

Review of operations 

Th e Financial performance of the Company for year ended 31st March, 2014 is 
summarized below:

(` million)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2013

Revenue 338 2,140 489 3,109

Expenditure 2,512 2,342 2,755 3,087

Profi t / Loss after tax (1,489) (42) (1,605) 98

Minority Interest - - (43) 23

Profi t after minority (1,489) (42) (1,562) 75

(` million)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2013

Share Capital 1,140 1,140 1,140 1,140

Reserve & Surplus 6,778 8,262 7,868 9,426

Net worth 7,918 9,402 9,008 10,565

Minority Interest - - 1,336 1,379

Non-current liabilities 3,637 4,069 4,752 5,129

Current Liabilities 10,458 7,707 11,596 8595

Total liabilities 14,095 11,776 16,348 13,724

Non-current Assets 8,905 8,442 10,082 9,489

Current Assets 13,107 12,735 16,609 16,178

Total Assets 22,012 21,177 26,691 25,667

Business Review

During the FY 2013-14, your Company achieved total revenue amounting to ` 489 
million as against previous year’s revenue of ` 3,109 million on a consolidated basis. 
Your Company has suffered a consolidated loss before tax (after minority interest) of 
` 1,562 million for the year as against a profi t of ` 75 million during the previous year.

Dividend

In view of loss during the year, the Board of Directors has not recommended any 
dividend for the fi nancial year 2013-14.

Report on Corporate Governance

A separate section on Corporate Governance forming part of the Directors’ Report 
and the certifi cate from the Practicing Company Secretary confi rming compliance of 
Corporate Governance norms as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with 
the Indian Stock Exchanges is included in the Annual Report. 

Management Discussion and Analysis

Th e Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of the Directors’ Report 
and contains all matters pertaining to the industry.

Particulars of Employees 

In terms of the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with 
the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rule, 1975, the names and other particulars 
of employees are set out in the Annexure forming part of this report. However, as per 
the provisions of Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act, 1956, the aforesaid 
information are not being sent as part of this report. Any member interested in 
obtaining such particulars may write to the Company Secretary at the registered offi ce 
of the Company.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo

Th e particulars as prescribed under Sub-section (1)(e) of Section 217 of the Companies 
Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of 
Directors) Rules, 1988 is as under:

Your Company consumes power to the extent required in its construction processes 
besides the utilization of power in administrative functions. Your Company is 
committed to the cause of energy conservation and takes effective steps to conserve 
energy wherever applicable and possible.

Conservation of Energy:

Energy conservation measures taken N.A.

Additional investment and proposals, if any, being implemented for 
reduction of consumption N.A.

Impact of the measure at (1) and (2) above for reduction of energy 
consumption and consequent impact on the cost of production of 
goods.

N.A.

Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of 
production are as under: N.A.

Particulars UoM Year Ended
31.03.2014

Year Ended
31.03.2013

A. Power and Fuel Consumption

a) Purchase

 Unit Unit  6,86,246 3,01,722

 Total Amount `  90,28,009 54,21,934

 Rate/ Unit `  13 18

b) Own generation (Th rough D.G. Set)

 1. Th rough D.G. Set

  Unit

  Diesel Oil Consumed Ltr.

N.A. N.A.  Total Amount `

  Avg. Per Ltr. `

 2. Furnace Oil

  Quantity Ltr.

N.A. N.A.  Total Amount `

  Avg. Per Ltr. `

B. Consumption Per Mtr. of Production

 Production Mtrs.

N.A. N.A.
 Electricity `

 Diesel Oil `

 Furnace Oil `

Technology Absorption:

Th e Company does not need any technology for its existing business. Th e Company 
has not undertaken any Research & Development Activity during the fi nancial year 
under review. 
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Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

(` million)

Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
Foreign Exchange Outgo Nil 17.78

Foreign Exchange Earned Nil 2.06

Directors 

Appointment

Mr. Raman Maroo, Director retires by rotation and being eligible; seeks re-appointment 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In view of the interest of the Company, your 
Board recommends his appointment as Independent Directors of the Company for a 
fi xed term of fi ve years upto March 31, 2019.

Th e Board also recommends the appointment of Mrs. Urvashi Saxena, who was 
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company on 12th February 2014 pursuant 
to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 to hold offi ce till the date 
of Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice 
under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with necessary deposit from the 
shareholder proposing the candidature of Mrs. Urvashi Saxena as an Independent 
Director of the Company.

Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta and Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar were appointed as 
Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company liable to retire by rotation in 
accordance with the provision of the erstwhile provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. 
Th e Company has received notices in writing from members proposing Mr. Satish 
Chandra Gupta and Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar for appointment as Independent 
Directors of the Company for a fi xed term of fi ve years upto March 31, 2019. Th e Board 
recommends their appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Th e Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the 
Company confi rming that they meet with the criteria of independence as prescribed 
both under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and under 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges.

Further, brief resume of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment as required 
in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, are included 
in the Corporate Governance Report annexed to this Annual Report.

Brief resume of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment are furnished in 
the notes below the notice of ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Appreciation 

Th e Board wants to express heartfelt appreciation to the retiring director Mr. Kuldip 
Bhargava for his dedicated, exemplary and long-standing service.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, your 
Directors confi rm the following:

• that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed; 

• that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at 31st March, 2014 and of the loss of the Company for that period;

• that the Directors have taken proper and suffi cient care for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

• that the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2014 have been prepared 
on a going concern basis.

Statutory Auditors 

M/s. Sharp & Tannan, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of the Company 
retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Th e Company has received letters from 
them to the effect that their re- appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed 
limits under Section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not 
disqualifi ed for re-appointment. Th e notes on Financial Statements referred to in 
the Auditor’s Report are self- explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 
Members are requested to appoint the Statutory Auditors for the current year and to 
authorize the Board to fi x their remuneration.

Cost Auditors

M/s. R. Kothari & Associates, Cost Accountants have certifi ed Cost Record Compliance 
report for the fi nancial year ended 31st March, 2014.

Reconstitution of Committees

Audit Committee

Th e Audit Committee was reconstituted in the Board Meeting held on 13th August, 2013 
and its membership as on 31st March, 2014 stands as- Mr. Raman Maroo, Mr. Ravi Kiran 
Aggarwal, Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta and Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee (vice Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance 
Committee) 

Th e Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee was reconstituted in the Board 
Meeting held on 13th August, 2013 and its membership as on 31st March 2014 stands 
as- Mr. Raman Maroo, Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal, Mr. Pujit Aggarwal, Mr. Satish Chandra 
Gupta and Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar.

Th e terms of reference of ‘Shareholders / Investors’ Grievance Committee’ was conferred 
on the newly constituted ‘Stakeholders Relationship Committee’ on 12th February, 
2014, consequently ‘Shareholders / Investors’ Grievance Committee’ was renamed and 
reconstituted accordingly.

Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee (vice Remuneration 
Committee and Compensation Committee)

Compensation Committee

Th e Compensation Committee was reconstituted in the Board Meeting held on 13th 
August, 2013 in view of the resignation of Mr. Kuldip Bhargava and induction of Mr. 
Abdul Mohammad Sattar in the Committee.

Remuneration Committee

Th e Remuneration Committee was reconstituted in the Board Meeting held on 13th 
August, 2013 in view of the resignation of Mr. Kuldip Bhargava and induction of Mr. 
Abdul Mohammad Sattar in the Committee. 

Th e terms of reference of ‘Remuneration Committee’ and ‘Compensation Committee’ 
were conferred on the newly constituted ‘Human Resources, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee’ on 12th February, 2014, consequently ‘Remuneration 
Committee’ and ‘Compensation Committee’ were renamed and reconstituted 
accordingly and its membership as on 31st March, 2014 stand as Mr. Raman Maroo, Mr. 
Satish Chandra Gupta and Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Th e Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board was constituted in the 
Board Meeting held on 12th August, 2014 pursuant to the provisions of the Section 135 
of Companies Act, 2013. 
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Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any deposits in terms of the provisions of Section 58A 
of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
1975 as amended, during the year under review.

Orbit Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) - 2012

(a) Options granted on 1st July 2013 12,00,000 out of scheme 
size of 24,00,000

(b) Pricing Formula ` 10 per share
(c) Options vested (Upto 31st March 2014) Nil
(d) Options exercised (Upto 31st March 2014) Nil
(e) Total number of shares arising as a result of 

exercise of options
Not applicable

(f) Options lapsed (Upto 31st March 2014) 78,200
(g) Variation of terms during the year ended 31st March 

2014
Nil

(h) Money realized by exercise of options Nil
(I) Total number of options in force (Upto 31st March 

2014)
11,21,800

(j) Employee wise details of options granted during 
the year

�

1 Senior management Personnel �
� Mr. Rajesh Shah, Chief Operating Offi cer 58,500

Mr. Vasudevan B Iyer, President- Projects 58,500
� Mr. Hari Kumar Kurup, Chief Acquisition Offi cer 59,500
� Mr. Sanjay Bhutani, Head- Sales 71,000

Mr Jitendra Gupte, Senior Vice President & Head- 
Human Resources

42,500

Mr. AmarjeeJha, GM- Liasioining 67,000
2 Employees to whom more than 5% options granted 

during the year
Nil

3 Employees to whom options more than 1% of issued 
capital granted during the year

Nil

(k) Diluted EPS, pursuant to issue of shares on exercise 
of options

(13.07)

(l),1 Method of calculation of employee compensation 
cost

Calculation is based on 
intrinsic value method. 

2 Difference between the above and employee 
compensation cost that shall have been recognized 
if it had used the fair value of the options, inclusive 
of impact on surrender of Options under Orbit ESOS 
2009

Employee compensation 
cost would have been 
higher by ` 2,85,882/- had 
the Company used fair value 
method for accounting the 
options issued under ESOS

3 Impact of this difference on Profi ts and on EPS of 
the Company, inclusive impact of Orbit ESOS 2009

Profi ts would have been 
lower by ` 2,85,882/- and 
EPS would have been lower 
by ` 0.01, had the Company 
used fair value method of 
accounting the options 
issued under ESOS

(m) 1 Weighted average exercise price �10
2 Weighted average fair value of options based on 

Black Scholes Methodology
` 7.65

(n) Signifi cant assumptions used to estimate fair value 
of options including weighted average

�

1 Risk free interest rate 8%
2 Expected life Average life taken as 1 year 

from date of Vest
3 Expected volatility 53%
4 Expected dividends Not separately included, 

factored in volatility 
working

5 Closing market price of share on a date prior to 
date of Grant (Vest)

` 16.40

All Options granted and outstanding under Orbit ESOS 2009 were surrendered by the 
employees during the year. 

Orbit Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) - 2012

Employees were granted 12,00,000 Options during the year under Orbit ESOS 2012, 
for which modifi ed scheme size of 24,00,000 Options has been approved by the 
shareholders in the previous year. Th ese Options have been granted at exercise price of 
` 10 per option as against the market price of ` 16.40 per share at the time of grant. 
Th ese Options have a vesting period of 1 year from the date of grant. Details as required 
by SEBI guidelines are annexed to this report.

Consolidated Accounts 

As per General Circular No. 2/2011 dated February 08, 2011 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, the Board of Directors of your Company at its meeting held on 24th 
May, 2011 has given its consent, for not attaching the Annual Accounts of the subsidiary 
companies with that of the holding company and therefore, Balance Sheet, Statement 
of Profi t and Loss and other documents of the subsidiary companies required to be 
attached under Section 212 (1) of the Companies Act, 1956 have not been attached. 
However, a statement containing brief fi nancial details of the Company’s subsidiaries 
for the fi nancial year ended 31st March, 2014 is included in the Annual Report. 

Th e annual accounts of these subsidiaries and the related detailed information will 
be made available to any Shareholder of the Company/its subsidiaries seeking such 
information at any point of time and will also be kept open for inspection by any 
Shareholder of the Company/its subsidiaries at the offi ce of the Company and that of 
the respective subsidiary companies between 11.00 A.M. and 1.00 P.M. on all working 
days. Th e Company shall furnish a copy of detailed annual accounts of subsidiaries to 
any Shareholder on demand.

Subsidiary Companies

A statement pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956, setting out the 
particulars of subsidiary companies namely, Orbit Highcity Private Limited, Orbit 
Residency Private Limited, Ahinsa Buildtech Private Limited, Orbit Habitat Private 
Limited, Mazda Construction Company Private Limited and Karmik Designs Private 
Limited is enclosed herewith and forms part of this report.

Orbit Highcity Private Limited 

Orbit Highcity Private Limited (OHCPL), incorporated on 19th December, 2007 is a 
material subsidiary of your Company. It was formed with the objective of developing 
large sized projects like gated townships in the Mumbai Metropolitan region. OHCPL 
is in the process of developing a project called “Orbit Mandwah” situated at Mandwa, 
Alibauga gated township with high end amenities and features. 

Th e Company has entered into Investment Agreement on 27th January, 2010 with IL&FS 
Trust Company Limited, IIRF India Realty X Limited, Moltana Holdings Limited, Rodere 
Holdings Limited and Orbit Corporation Limited to raise funds for the development of 
project on the property situated at Mandwa, District Alibaug, and Maharashtra. Th e 
holding of your Company in OHCPL as on 31st March, 2014 is 52.57%.

Orbit Residency Private Limited

Orbit Residency Private Limited (ORPL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of your Company. 
ORPL was incorporated with the objective to acquire and develop projects of up to 
1,000 sqmts or yielding a saleable area of less than 35,000 sq. ft.

Ahinsa Buildtech Private Limited 

Ahinsa Buildtech Private Limited (ABPL) is a subsidiary of your Company. ABPL, 
has acquired property called Orkay Mills situated at Andheri-Kurla Road, Saki Naka, 
Andheri East and is developing a residential project called “Orbit Residency Park”.
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Orbit Habitat Private Limited 

Orbit Habitat Private Limited (OHPL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of your company. 
OHPL proposes to commence operations with the development of a residential project 
in Napeansea Road. .

Mazda Construction Company Private Limited /Karmik Designs Private Limited

Mazda Construction Company Private Limited became a subsidiary with effect from 
1st September, 2012. By virtue of this, Karmik Designs Private Limited which is wholly 
owned subsidiary of Mazda Construction Company Private Limited has also become 
step down subsidiary of the Company. Mazda Construction Company Private Limited 
plans to develop a project called “Orbit Bloom” at Kemps Corner.

Appreciations 

Your Directors wish to convey their appreciation to all the Company’s employees 
for their enormous personal efforts as well as their collective contribution to the 
Company’s performance. Th e Directors would also like to thank the Banks, Financial 
Institutions, Government Authorities, Customers and other business associates for the 
assistance and continuous support and wish to place on record their gratitude to the 
members for their trust, support and confi dence.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai Pujit Aggarwal Abdul Mohammad Sattar
Dated: 12.11.2014 Managing Director & CEO Director
 (DIN: 00133373) (DIN: 06656299)
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Annexure: 

Corporate Governance Report

Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

Orbit Corporation Limited (herein referred to as “Company”) is committed to maintain 
the highest level of corporate governance. It has been the company’s constant endeavour 
to ensure adequate disclosures to its stakeholders comprising of Shareholders, 
Customers, Government, Lenders, Employees and its Business Community. We believe 
that our governance process should ensure optimum resource utilization and meet 
the expectations of stakeholders in terms of providing transparency, empowerment, 
accountability and safety of people and environment. We lay emphasis on business 
ethics in all our dealings. 

Th e company’s directors and employees are bound by its adopted “Code of Conduct” 
that lays down the fundamental standards to be followed in all actions carried out on 
behalf of the Company. Th e management acknowledges its responsibility towards the 
society at large. 

Orbit Group, including Orbit Corporation Ltd. and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred 
to as the ‘Company’), is a professionally managed Company and is one of the key 
players in the Real Estate space. Real Estate development requires formation and 
management of several subsidiaries to ensure effective governance while dealing with 
legal and commercial requirements.

We have always been guided by our traditional value systems in all our dealings 
which has ensured the company’s reputation as a business house with highest ethical 
standards. Th e company has been way ahead of its time in adopting eco-friendly 
measures like rain water harvesting; recycling, energy effi cient construction designs 
and several conservation initiatives.

Th e Company provides training to its employees, thereby ensuring higher 
motivation,leading to improved performance. Th e Company’s ethical climate ensures 
compliance of the highest standards.

Board of Directors

Board Members

Th e Board of your Company functions on the principle of majority or unanimity and 
decisions are taken subject to acceptance by majority or all the directors. Th e Board 
offers their professional expertise, advising on critical matters, maintaining sound 
business ethics and mentoring the management wherever required.

Responsibilities of Board

Th e company’s Board is responsible for direction, control, conduct, management and 
supervision of its business affairs for maintaining effective corporate governance 
procedures, best practices and whistle blower mechanism. Ultimate control and 
management of the Company vests with the Board.

Composition, Meeting & Attendance of the Board

Th e Board of Directors of your Company has an optimum combination of Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors. Th e Board has 6 Directors out of which 2 are the executive 
Directors including the Chairman and 4 are Non-executive Independent Directors as 
defi ned under the Listing Agreement with Indian Stock Exchanges.

During the year 2013-14 the Board of Directors of your Company met 4 times on 16th 
May, 2013, 13th August, 2013, 21st October, 2013 and 12th February, 2014. Th e Last 
Annual General Meeting was held on 24th September, 2013.

Composition, Meeting & Attendance of the Board

Name of the
Director

Category

No. of
Director-ships

in other
companies@

No. of membership/
Chairman & Executive

Directorship in Committee
of other Companies#

No.
of

Board
Meetings
Attended

Whether
Attended

last
AGM

Member-ship
Chairman / & Executive 

Directorship

Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal
(DIN:00133401)

Chairman & Executive Director 1 - - 4 Yes

Mr. Pujit Aggarwal
(DIN: 00133373)

Managing Director & CEO 2 - - 4 Yes

Mr. Kuldip Bhargava$

(DIN: 00011103)
Independent Director N.A. N.A. N.A. - NA

Mr. Raman Maroo$

(DIN: 00169152)
Independent Director 3 - - 2 Yes

Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta 
(DIN: 00025780)

  Independent Director 9 - - 4 No

Abdul Mohammad Sattar 
(DIN: 06656299)

Independent Director - - - 3 Yes

Mrs. Urvashi Saxena
(DIN: 02021303)

Additional Director 5 - - - No

$: Leave of Absence was granted

@: Does not include Alternate Directorships, Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies registered under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956

#: Memberships of Audit Committee and Shareholders’ & Investors’ Grievances Committee have been considered

Note: 1. Th ere is no inter-se relationship among the Directors of your Company except Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal and Mr. Pujit Aggarwal
 2. Mr. Abdul Mohammad  Sattar was appointed as an additional Director of the Company with effect from 10th August, 2013. He was appointed as a Director of the Company at the Annual 

General Meeting of the Company held on 24th September, 2013 whose offi ce was liable to retirement by rotation.
 3. Mrs. Urvashi Saxena is appointed as an Additional Director (Independent director) of the Company with effect from 12th February 2014 for a term up to 5 (fi ve) years and shall not be liable 

to retirement by rotation.

 4. Mr. Kuldip Bhargava resigned from the post of Directorship w.e.f. 26th May, 2013

1 4 T H A N N U A L  R E P O R T  -  2 0 1 3 - 2 0 1 4

1 4



Boards’ Role

Th e Board of Directors have the following role:

1. To Establish an Organizational Vision and Mission

2. Giving strategic direction and advice

3. Overseeing Strategy implementation and performance

4. Risk Mitigation

Resolution passed by Circulation

Following Circular resolutions were passed during the period:

Particulars Passed on
Resignation of Mr. Shailesh Vaidya from the Post of 
Directorship

9th April, 2013

For extending additional security in favour of-
i) M/s My Idea Advisory Services Limited
ii) Parshwanath Buildcon Pvt. Ltd.

19th July 2013

For creating second charge in favour of-
i) M/s My Idea Advisory Services Limited
ii) Parshwanath Buildcon Pvt. Ltd.

22nd July 2013

For considering proposals for TORs/ Environment Clearance/ 
CRZ Clearance 12th March 2014

BOARD COMMITTEES

In Compliance with both the mandatory and non-mandatory requirements under 
Listing Agreement, and the applicable laws, the Board of Directors of your Company 
constitutes the following Committees:

Board Committees

Audit Committee
Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee

Human Resources, 
Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee

Audit Committee

Th e Audit Committee of the Board is constituted in line with the provisions of Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement entered with the Stock Exchanges read along with Section 
292A of the Companies Act, 1956 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

i. Composition, Meeting & Attendance

During the year 2013-14, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of your 
Company met 4 times on 16th May 2013, 13th August 2013, 21st October 2013 and 12th 
February 2014.

Name of the Director Status Category
No of Meetings Held

Held Attended

Mr. Raman Maroo# Chairman Independent 4 2

Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal Member Executive 4 4

Mr. Kuldip Bhargava Member Independent 4 -

Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar# Member Independent 4 2

Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta Member Independent 4 4

#: Leave of Absence was granted

Note:

1. Mr. Kuldip Bhargava resigned from the post of Directorship w.e.f. 26th May 2013

2. In absence of Mr. Raman Maroo, Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta was elected as Chairman 
of the meeting

3. Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13th August, 2013 reconstituted the Audit 
Committee to provide better corporate governance and transparency by inducting 
Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar as a member.

In addition to the members of the Audit Committee, Joint CEO (till 13th August, 2013 
Head–Finance & Strategies), the representatives of the Statutory Auditors and the 
Company Secretary attends the meeting of the Audit Committee for providing inputs 
to the Audit Committee members.

ii. Brief description of the terms of reference:

Th e terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in conformity with the provisions of 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges; which inter 
alia include the following.

Th e Audit Committee inter alia, have following powers:

a) To investigate any activity within its terms of reference

b) To seek information from any employee, as and when required

c) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice as and when required

d) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

Th e role of the Audit Committee inter-alia includes the following:

a) To oversee the Company’s fi nancial reporting process and the disclosure of its 
fi nancial information so as to ensure that the fi nancial statements are correct, 
suffi cient and credible

b) To make recommendations to the Board for appointment, re-appointment, 
replacement or removal of the Statutory Auditors if required and fi xation of the 
audit fees

c) To approve payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the 
Statutory Auditors

d) To review with the management, the annual fi nancial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval, with particular references to:

 • matters to be included in the Board’s report as a part of the Director’s 
Responsibility Statement, which are in line with clause (2AA) of section 217 of 
the Companies Act, 1956;

 • changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices stating reasons for the 
same;

 • major accounting entries involving estimates based on the judgment of the 
management, if required;

 • signifi cant adjustments made in the fi nancial statements arising out of audit 
fi ndings, if any;

 • compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to fi nancial 
statements;

 • disclosure of any related party transactions;

 • qualifi cations in the draft audit report.

e) To review with the management, the quarterly fi nancial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval

f) To review with the management, performance of Statutory and Internal auditors 
and adequacy of the internal control systems

g) To review the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure 
of the internal audit department, staffi ng and seniority of the offi cial heading the 
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit

h) To discuss with the Internal Auditors, any signifi cant fi ndings and follow-up 
thereon

i) To review the fi ndings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board

j) To discuss with the Statutory Auditors, the nature and scope of audit followed by a 
post-audit discussion so as to ascertain any area of concern
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k) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) 
and creditors, if any

l) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

m) To carry out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee

Audit Committee mandatorily reviews the following:

• Financial statements and draft Audit report including quarterly/ half-yearly 
fi nancial information

• Management Discussion and Analysis of fi nancial condition and results of 
operation

• Statement of signifi cant related party transactions (as defi ned by Audit 
Committee)

• Management Letters/ letters of internal control and weaknesses, if any, issued by 
Statutory Auditors

• Internal Audit Reports relating to Internal Control Weaknesses, if any

• Reports relating to compliance with laws and risk management.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee (vice Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance 
Committee) 

i. Composition, Meeting & Attendance

During the year 2013-14, the Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievances Committee of your 
Company met 4 times on 16th May 2013, 13th August 2013, 21st October, 2013 and 12th 
February, 2014.

Name of the Director Status Category
No. of Meetings Held

Held Attended

Mr. Raman Maroo# Chairman Independent 4 2

Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal Member Executive 4 4

Mr. Pujit Aggarwal Member Executive 4 4

Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta Member Independent 4 4

Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar Member Independent 4 2

#: Leave of Absence was granted

Note:

1) In view of leave of absence of Raman Maroo, Chairman of Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta, occupied the Chair.

2) Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13th August 2013 reconstituted the 
Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievances Committee to provide better corporate 
governance and transparency by inducting Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar as a 
member.

3) Th e Board of Directors at their meeting dated 12th February, 2014 renamed the 
committee from Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee to Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee

ii. Name and Designation of Compliance Offi cer:

 Mr. S. R. Soni, Company Secretary.

iii. Brief description of Terms of reference

• To look into redressal of issues related to transfer and transmission of shares, split, 
consolidation of shares as requested by the members

• To address redressal of all investor complaints related to Annual Reports, Dividend, 
Conversion of Warrants into Shares, Issue of Bonus Shares

• To oversee the performance of Registrars & Transfer Agents, Implementation of 
Company’s stated Code of Conduct and SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers), 2011

• To look into requests for the dematerialization and re-materialization of shares

• To issue duplicate share certifi cates in lieu of the original share certifi cates.

Th e details of investor grievances received from 1st April, 2013 to 31st March, 2014 are 
as follows:

Th e Shareholders’/ Investors’ Grievances are periodically reviewed by the Company. 
Th ere were no pending shareholders complaints as on 31st March, 2014. Th e details 
of investor grievances received from 1st April, 2013 to 31st March, 2014 are as follows:

Balance as on
April 1, 2013

Received
during the

year

Resolved
During the 

year

Balance as on
March 31, 2014

Avg. No. of days
in which resolved

NIL 10 10 Nil 10 to 15 days

SEBI has recently commenced processing of investor complaints in a centralized 
web based compliant redress system viz. SCORES. Th e salient features of this 
system are centralised database of all complaints; online movement of complaints 
to the concerned listed companies; online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by 
the concerned companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the 
complaint and its current status.

Th e terms of reference of ‘Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committee’ was conferred 
on the newly constituted ‘Stakeholders Relationship Committee’ on 12th February, 
2014, consequently ‘Shareholders / Investors’ Grievance Committee’ was renamed and 
reconstituted accordingly.

Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee (vice Remuneration 
Committee and Compensation Committee)

Remuneration Committee

i. Composition, Meeting & Attendance

During the year 2013-14, the Board of Directors of your Company met once on 16th May, 
2013. Th e composition of the Remuneration Committee is given below:

Name of the Director Status Category
No. of Meetings Held

Held Attended

Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta Chairman Independent 1 1

Mr. Raman Maroo Member Independent 1 1

Mr. Kuldip Bhargava# Member Independent 1 -

Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar Member Independent 1 NA

# Leave of Absence was granted

Note:

1. Mr. Kuldip Bhargava resigned from the post of Directorship w.e.f. 26th May 2013

2. Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13th August 2013 reconstituted the 
Remuneration Committee to provide better corporate governance and transparency 
by inducting Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar as a member.

ii. Brief description of the Terms of reference:

Th e broad terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

• To determine on behalf of the Board, the Company’s Policy on remuneration 
package for Executive Directors based on their performance & defi ned assessment 
criteria

• To decide any other related matters
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iii. Details of Remuneration/ Sitting fees paid to all the Directors of the Company during the fi nancial year ended 31st March 2014 is given below:

Name
Salary

(` in Mn)
Commission

(` in Mn)
Sitting Fees

(` in Mn)
Total

(` in Mn)
Service Contract / Notice Period / Severance Fees

Shares
(Nos.)

Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal 4.8 Nil Nil 4.8 3 years contract; Notice period of 6 months 2,22,05,339

Mr. Pujit Aggarwal 4.8 Nil Nil 4.8 3 years contract; Notice period of 6 months 2,27,25,899

Mr. Kuldip Bhargava Nil Nil Nil Nil Retirement by rotation 20,000

Mr. Raman Maroo Nil Nil 0.16 0.16 Retirement by rotation 2,000

Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta Nil Nil 0.28 0.28 Retirement by rotation Nil

Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar Nil Nil 0.16 0.16 Retirement by rotation Nil

Mrs.UrvashiSaxena Nil Nil Nil Nil NA Nil
Note:
1. Mr. Kuldip Bhargava resigned from the post of Directorship w.e.f. 26th May 2013
2. No commission has been paid to any Non-Executive Director for the year ended 31st March, 2014

iv. Non-Executive Directors:

Th e Company pays sitting fees to all the Non-Executive Directors of the Company. Th e 
sitting fees paid is within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956. 

Shares Held by Non-Executive Directors

Name Shares Held

Mr. Kuldip Bhargava 20,000

Mr. Raman Maroo 2,000

Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta NIL

Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar NIL

Mrs.UrvashiSaxena NIL

Note:
Mr. Kuldip Bhargava resigned from the post of Directorship w.e.f. 26th May 2013

Compensation Committee:

i. Composition, Meeting & Attendance

During the year 2013-14, the Board of Directors of your Company met once on 16th May, 
2013. Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13th August 2013 reconstituted the 
Compensation Committee to provide better corporate governance and transparency by 
inducting Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar as a member.

Th e Committee has been constituted to administer Orbit ESOS 2009 and Orbit ESOS 
2012. Attendance of each member at the Committee meeting held during the year:

Name of the Member Status Category
No. of Meetings Held

Held Attended

Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta Chairman Independent 1 1

Mr. Raman Maroo Member Independent 1 1

Mr. Kuldip Bhargava# Member Independent 1 -

Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar Member Independent 1 -

# Leave of Absence was granted

Note:

Mr. Kuldip Bhargava resigned from the post of Directorship w.e.f. 26th May 2013.

During the year all options granted and outstanding under Orbit ESOS 2009 were 
surrendered by the employees. Committee has granted fresh options on 1st July 2013 
aggregating to 12,00,000 options at the exercise price of ` 10 each with a vesting 
period of 1 year. Th e market price at the time of grant was ` 16.40 per share. 78,200 
Options have lapsed upto 31st March 2014 due to separations and 11,21,800 Options 
are outstanding as on 31st March 2014.

Disclosure as required by SEBI guidelines on ESOS is annexed to the Directors’ report 
which also gives details of Options granted senior management personnel.

ii. Brief description of the terms of reference

Orbit Employee Stock Option Scheme - 2009 & Orbit Employee Stock Option Scheme  
- 2012

Implementation, administration and superintendence of the “Orbit Employees Stock 
Option Scheme - 2009” and “Orbit Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2012” on behalf 
of the Board and to decide all matters relating to Employees Stock Option Scheme and 
any other matters as directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Th e members of the Company have at their Annual General Meeting held on 24th 
September, 2012 approved Orbit Employee Stock Option Scheme 2012 (Orbit ESOS 
2012) by Special Resolution.

Th e Committee has not granted any Options during the period 1st April, 2012 to 31st 
March, 2013, under Orbit ESOS 2009 & Orbit ESOS 2012. Th e Company at its Annual 
General Meeting held on 24th September 2013 had altered the terms of Orbit ESOS 
2012 by Special Resolution; further, separate Special Resolution was passed for grant 
of options to employees and Directors of Subsidiary Companies. 

Th e terms of reference of ‘Remuneration Committee’ and ‘Compensation Committee’ 
were conferred on the newly constituted ‘Human Resources, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee’ on 12th February, 2014, consequently ‘Remuneration 
Committee’ and ‘Compensation Committee’ were renamed and reconstituted 
accordingly.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company constituted a 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board at the Board Meeting 
held on 12th August, 2014.

Th e CSR Committee consists of the following Directors:

1. Mr. Raman Maroo (Chairman)

2. Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal

3. Mr. Pujit Aggarwal

Th e CSR Committee will:

I. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 
which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as Specifi ed 
in Schedule VII;

II. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to 
in clause (I); and

III. Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time.

No meeting of the CSR Committee was held during the year under review.
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General Body Meetings

i. Location and time of last three Annual General Meetings of the Company held are given below:

Financial Year Date & Time of 
Meeting

Location of the Meeting Special Resolutions Passed

2012-2013 24th September, 
2013 at 4.00 P.M.

M.C. Ghia Hall, 2nd Floor, 
Bhogilal Hargovindas Building, 18/20 K. 
Dubash Marg, Kala Ghoda, 
Mumbai – 400 001

a) Amendment/ modifi cations to the Quantity of options to be granted under Orbit 
ESOS - 2012

b) To enable to grant options to the Employees/ Directors of the Subsidiary Companies.
c) Appointment of Additional Director, Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar, as a Director of the 

Company

2011-2012 24th September, 
2012 at 4.00 P.M.

Maharashtra Chamber of Commerce, 
Industry & Agriculture, Oricon House, 
6th Floor, 12, K. Dubhash Marg, Fort, 
Mumbai – 400 001

a) Re- appointment of Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal as Chairman & Executive Director of the 
Company

b) Re-appointment of Mr. Pujit Aggarwal as Managing Director & CEO of the Company
c) Approval of “Orbit ESOS - 2012”
d) Re-pricing of Approval of Options granted to the Directors & Employees of the 

subsidiary companies of the Company under “Orbit ESOS - 2012” 

2010-2011 9th August, 2011
at 4.00 P.M.

M.C. Ghia Hall, 2nd Floor, 
Bhogilal Hargovindas Building, 18/20 K. 
Dubash Marg, Kala Ghoda, 
Mumbai – 400 001

a) Appointment of Additional Director, Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta as a Director of the 
Company

b) Alteration of Articles of Association by substituting Article 192 (1) of Articles of 
Association

c) Re-pricing of the options already granted but not exercised under Orbit – ESOS – 
2009 to the Directors & Employees of the Company

d) Re-pricing of the options already granted but not exercised under Orbit – ESOS – 
2009 to the Directors & Employees of the subsidiary companies of the Company

e) Revision in Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal, Chairman & 
Executive Director of the Company

f) Revision in Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Pujit Aggarwal, Managing Director & 
CEO of the Company

ii. Postal Ballot:

During the fi nancial year 2013-14, no resolution was passed through postal ballot 
process.

Mandatory Requirements

Th e Company has complied with the mandatory requirements as stipulated in Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement.

Non-Mandatory Requirements

Th e Board has taken cognizance of the non-mandatory requirements as stipulated 
in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and shall consider adopting the same at an 
appropriate time.

Disclosures

• Related Party Transactions

 Th e Company has not entered into any transaction of material nature with its 
promoters, directors, management and their relatives. Th e disclosure with respect 
to the related party transactions is set out in the Notes to Accounts. None of these 
transactions are likely to have a potential confl ict with the interest of the Company 
and are being carried out at an arm’s length basis at fair market value. Th e details 
of all signifi cant transactions with related parties are periodically placed before 
the Audit Committee.

• Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

 In the preparation of the fi nancial statements, the Company has followed the 
Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as 
applicable.

• Disclosures regarding re-appointment / appointment of Directors

 Disclosure regarding brief profi le of Directors seeking re-appointment as required 
under Clause 49 IV(G) of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock 
Exchanges is given under the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

• Disclosures on Risk Management

 Th e Company has laid down procedures for risk assessment, management and its 
minimisation.  

• Secretarial Audit Report

 For enhanced corporate governance, Secretarial Audit Report given by M/s. Mehta 
& Mehta, Practising Company Secretaries for the fi nancial year ended 31st March, 
2014 also forms part of this Report.

• Penalty or strictures

 No penalty or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock 
Exchanges, SEBI on any matter related to the capital markets, since the date of 
listing of equity shares.

• Certifi cate under Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreement

 As per the provisions of Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreement entered into with the 
Stock Exchanges, the Company has obtained Secretarial Compliance Certifi cate on 
half yearly basis from a Company Secretary in Practice to the effect that all transfer 
of shares are effected within stipulated time. Th is is also fi led with the National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited within prescribed time limit.

• Prevention of Insider Trading

 An Insider Trading Software is also installed by the Company in consultation with 
Registrars & Transfers Agents who maintains & tracks the share dealings of these 
insiders via this software and submits weekly Insider Trading & Deviation Report 
to the Company Secretary.

• Communication to Shareholders

 Striving for fair and timely information disclosure to a wider range of stakeholders 
is an essential component of Corporate Governance. In order to distribute 
information in a fair and timely manner to large numbers of people, the company 
regularly uploads results announcement, annual report, media releases, etc. in the 
website.
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Management Discussions and Analysis

Th e Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the fi nancial year 2013-14, as per 
the requirements of Listing Agreement is given in a separate section forming part of 
the Annual Report.

Means of Communication

i. Annual report:

Th e Annual Report which includes the Audited Annual Financial Statements, Directors’ 
Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on Corporate Governance, 
Shareholders’ Information and Auditors’ Report is sent to all the shareholders of the 
Company prior to the Annual General Meeting (AGM). 

ii. Th e Company has adopted the fi ling of the following information as hereunder:

Quarterly results are normally 
published in

: One English Daily Newspaper and one daily 
newspaper published in the language of the 
region

Website where displayed : www.orbitcorp.com

Offi cial news releases and 
presentations made to 
Institutional Investors/Analysts

: Offi cial news releases are displayed on the 
websites of BSE, NSE and the Company:
www.bseindia.com, www.nseindia.com
www.orbitcorp.com

Address of Correspondence : Th e View, 165, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, 
Mumbai – 400 018
Tel: +9122-30446910
Fax: +9122-24911028

Registrars & Transfers Agent : Link Intime India Private Limited
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,
LBS Road, Bhandup (West), 
Mumbai – 400 078.
Tel : +9122-25963838

Risk Management

Th e Board is fully aware of the risks the business is facing. Th us, effective risk 
assessment and minimisation procedures are implemented by the Company.

General Shareholder’s information

i. Annual General Meetings:

Th e Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to be held on Saturday, 27th 
December, 2014 at M. C. Ghia Hall, 4th Floor, Bhogilal Hargovindas Building, 18/20 K. 
Dubash Marg, Kala Ghoda, Mumbai – 400 001 at 10.00 A.M.

ii. Financial Calendar:

a) Financial Year : 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2015

b) Un-audited Results for the Quarter 
ended 30th June, 2014

: By 14th of August, 2014

c) Un-audited Results for the Quarter 
ended 30th September, 2014

: By 14th of November, 2014

d) Un-audited Results for the Quarter 
ended 31st December, 2014

: By 14th of February, 2015

e) Audited Results for the Year ended 
31st March, 2015

: By 30th of May, 2015

iii. Dates of Annual Book Closure: 

26th December, 2014 to 27th December, 2014, both inclusive.

iv. Listing on Stock Exchanges:

Th e Equity Shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited. Th e Listing fees have been paid to above 
Stock Exchanges for the fi nancial year 2014-2015.

v. Stock Code:

Name of the Stock Exchange Code No. for Equity Shares

BSE Limited 532837

National Stock Exchange of India Limited ORBITCORP

Demat ISIN: INE628H01015

vi. Market Price Data

During the fi nancial year ended 31st March 2014, the highest and lowest price recorded 
for each month on BSE and NSE is as under:

Amount in `

Month
BSE NSE

Highest Lowest Volume Highest Lowest Volume

Apr-13 27.95 23.00 70,51,794 28.00 22.95 1,53,76,242
May-13 25.50 19.20 61,07,358 25.40 19.05 1,49,49,705
Jun-13 19.50 13.05 38,07,022 19.50 13.00 98,60,835

Jul-13 18.70 14.40 18,21,182 18.70 14.35 51,40,754
Aug-13 15.25 10.10 18,24,516 15.25 10.10 49,76,538

Sep-13 18.50 13.06 17,73,700 18.50 12.65 47,27,110

Oct-13 18.35 14.45 19,26,109 18.30 14.25 62,75,324
Nov-13 17.35 14.75 17,35,757 17.30 14.55 38,56,985

Dec-13 17.65 14.50 16,69,532 17.40 14.50 47,14,825

Jan-14 21.80 15.45 68,04,360 21.80 15.50 1,76,96,747

Feb-14 16.15 14.10 11,29,080 16.25 13.55 35,45,809

Mar-14 18.15 14.42 28,99,886 18.25 14.20 98,73,045
vii. Stock Performance:
(Based on closing Share Price of the Company and closing Sensex of the respective 
months)
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viii.  Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2014

Range
(Nominal Value of 

Shares in `)

Shareholders No of Shares

No. of
Shareholders

%age of Total 
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

% of total
No. of shares

 1-5,000 37,606 81.20 53,49,635 4.69

5,001-10,000 4,061 8.77 33,44,196 2.93

10,001-20,000 2,144 4.63 33,33,544 2.93

20,001-30,000 731 1.58 18,97,299 1.67

30,001-40,000 370 0.80 13,50,412 1.19

40,001-50,000 304 0.66 14,47,281 1.27

50,001-100,000 523 1.12 39,14,144 3.43

100,001 & above 575 1.24 9,33,25,379 81.89

Total 46,314 100.00 11,39,61,890 100.00
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ix. Category wise Shareholding as on 31st March, 2014

Sr. 
No.

Category
No. of Shares 

held
%of Holding

1. Promoter group 4,72,23,498 41.44

2. Mutual Funds/ Financial Institutions 8,25,804 0.72

3. Overseas Corporate Bodies /FII’s/ NRIs 21,28,509 1.87

4. Bodies Corporate 2,37,44,731 20.84

5. Other Public 4,00,39,348 35.13

Total 11,39,61,890 100.00

Number of Shareholders

As on Nos.

31st March 2012 45,847

31st March 2013 46,858

31st March 2014 46,314

x. Registrar & Share Transfer Agents:

Link Intime India Private Limited
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, LBS Road, Bhandup (West), Mumbai – 400 078
Tel: +9122-25963838

xi. Share Transfer System:

Th e application for transfer of shares held in physical form is received at the offi ce 
of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company. Th e Company approves 
valid transfer of shares and share certifi cates are dispatched within a period of 15 days 
from the date of receipt, provided the same are in order in every respect. No physical 
transfer application received during the year.

xii. Shares held in dematerialized form are electronically traded in the Depository:

Th e Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company periodically receives from the 
Depository the benefi ciary shareholdings so as to enable them to update their records 
and to send all corporate communication, dividend warrants, etc.

xiii.  Plant Location:

As the Company does not have any manufacturing activities, the same is not applicable 
to your Company. Since the business activities of the Company comprises of real estate 
development, no plant is installed thereof.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Social Welfare and Community Development is at the core of Company’s CSR Policy and 
continues to be a priority for the Company.

Th e Company promoted a charitable organization namely Orbit Socio Foundation. Major 
focus areas include Environment Management, Education for the underprivileged and 
Healthcare. In addition, the Foundation also works hands in hands with certain social 
activities organized for supporting the above focus areas. 

During the year, Foundation donated `-1,00,000/- to Shri Shri Vidhyadham Adhyatmik 
Parmarthik AVM Shakshnik Trust towards donation for Uttarakhand Floods.

Your Company promotes eco-friendly operational practices such as Sewage treatment 
& waste management, Conservation of water & energy and Vermi-composting. Your 
Company is committed towards its site workforce and encompasses their safety, health 
and well-being. Th is is ensured by providing adequate drinking water, food, electricity, 
sanitation, restrooms, free-lunch, regular health check-ups, trainings on fi rst aid and 
fi re-fi ghting.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management

Th e Board has adopted the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and 
Senior Management (“the Code”). Th is Code is a comprehensive Code applicable to 
all Directors, Executives as well as Non-Executives and Senior Management. Th e Code 
while laying down, in detail, the standards of Business conduct, ethics and governance, 
centres on the following philosophy:

“Th e Company’s Board of Directors and Senior Management are responsible for and are 
committed to setting the standards of conduct contained in this code and for upgrading 
these standards as appropriate, to ensure their continuing relevance, effectiveness 
and responsiveness to the needs of the local and international investors and all other 
stakeholders as also to refl ect corporate, legal and regulatory developments. Th is code 
should be adhered to in letter and in spirit.”

Th e Code has also been circulated to all the members of the Board and Senior 
Management and the Compliance of the same has been affi rmed by them. A declaration 
signed by the Chairman & Executive Director is given below:

I hereby confi rm that:

Th e Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management, 
affi rmation that they have complied with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for 
the fi nancial year 2013-2014.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Pujit Aggarwal
Place: Mumbai Managing Director & CEO
Date: 12th November, 2014 (DIN: 00133373)
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Certifi cate On Corporate Governance

To,
Th e Members,
Orbit Corporation Limited

We have examined all relevant records of Orbit Corporation Limited (“the Company”) for the purposes of certifying compliances of the conditions of Corporate Governance under 
the revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited (Stock Exchanges) for the Financial Year ended March 
31, 2014.

Th e compliances of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliances of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. Th is certifi cate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the effi cacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the abovementioned Listing Agreement.

For Mehta & Mehta
Company Secretaries

Anshul Kumar Jain
Partner
CP No.: 13181
FCS No.: 5547

Place: Mumbai

Date: November 12, 2014

2 1



Secretarial Audit Report

CIN: L72900MH2000PLC124729

Date of Incorporation: March 7, 2000

To,
Th e Board of Directors,
Orbit Corporation Limited
Th e “View”, 165, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai 400018

We have examined the registers, records, forms and returns as prescribed under Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) and Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent applicable) of Orbit 
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) for the fi nancial year ended on March 31, 2014. Based on my examination and verifi cation of the registers, records and documents produced 
to me and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Company, we report that the Company has, complied with the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made under the Act and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, with regard to:

a) Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein;

b) Closure of the Register of Members;

c) Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be fi led with the Registrar of Companies and the Central Government;

d) Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of Companies;

e) Notice of Board meetings and Committee meetings of Directors;

f) Th e meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions by circulation;

g) Th e 13th Annual General Meeting held on September 24, 2013;

h) Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee meetings;

i) Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors and the government authorities, wherever required;

j) Constitution of the Board of Directors / Committee(s) of Directors, appointment, retirement and re-appointment of Directors;

k) Appointment and remuneration of Auditors;

l) Borrowings and registration, modifi cation and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable;

m) Investment of the Company’s funds including inter corporate loans and investments and loans to others;

n) Giving guarantees in connection with loans taken by subsidiaries and associate companies;

o) Form of balance sheet as prescribed under Part I, form of statement of profi t and loss as prescribed under Part II and General Instructions for preparation of the same as 
prescribed in Schedule VI to the Act;

p) Directors’ report;

q) Contracts, common seal, registered offi ce; and

r) Publication of name of the Company; and

s) Generally, other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the Act.

We further report that:

a) Th e Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. Th e changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

b) the Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns in contracts and arrangements, shareholdings / debenture holdings and 
directorships in other companies and interests in other entities;

c) the Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment and compliance with the code of Business Conduct & Ethics for 
Directors and Management Personnel;

For Mehta & Mehta
Company Secretaries

Anshul Kumar Jain
Partner
CP No.: 13181
FCS No.: 5547

Place: Mumbai

Date: November 12, 2014
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CEO / CFO Certifi cation

To
Th e Board of Directors / Audit Committee of
Orbit Corporation Limited

We have reviewed fi nancial statements and the cash fl ow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2014 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1. Th ese statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contains statements that might be misleading.

2. Th ese statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

Th ere are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transaction entered into by the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2014 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of 
the Company’s code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for fi nancial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to fi nancial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, defi ciency in the design or operation of the internal controls, if any, 
of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these defi ciencies.

We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee

1. Signifi cant changes in internal control over fi nancial reporting during the year;

2. Signifi cant changes in accounting policies, if any, during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the fi nancial statements.

Place: Mumbai Pujit Aggarwal Ramashrya Yadav
Date: 29/05/2014 Managing Director & CEO Joint CEO
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Orbit Corporation Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying fi nancial statements of Orbit Corporation 
Limited (the ‘Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2014, the Statement of Profi t and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the 
year then ended and a summary of signifi cant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of these 
fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view of the fi nancial position, 
fi nancial performance and cash fl ows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 
(the ‘Act’) read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13th September, 2013 
of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Th is responsibility includes the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Th ose 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial statements. Th e procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the fi nancial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi cient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

 In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the fi nancial statements give the information required 
by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at 31st March, 2014;

(b) in the case of the Statement of Profi t and Loss, of the Loss for the year 
ended on that date; and

(c) in case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash fl ows for the year ended on 
that date. 

Emphasis of matter 

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 26(2(a)) to the 
fi nancial statements as regards the income tax demands received by the 
Company for the assessment years 2004-05 to 2010-11 amounting to ` 1719.91 
millions Th e Company has fi led appeals against these demands and the matter 
is sub-judice.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 and as 
amended by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) (Amendment) Order, 2004 
(together the ‘Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of Section 227 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, we give in the Annexure, a 
statement on the matters specifi ed in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 227(3) of the Companies Act, 1956 we report that:

 (a) we have obtained all information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit;

 (b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been 
kept by the Company, so far as appears from our examination of 
those books;

 (c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profi t and Loss and the Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the 
books of account;

 (d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profi t and Loss 
and the Cash Flow Statement comply with the accounting standards 
referred to in Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 read 
with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13th September, 2013 of 
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and

 (e) on the basis of the written representations received from directors 
of the Company as on 31st March, 2014, and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualifi ed 
as on 31st March, 2014, from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 274 (1)(g) of the Companies Act, 1956.

SHARP & TANNAN
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.109982W
by the hand of 

MILIND P. PHADKE
Partner
Membership No.033013

Mumbai, 29th May, 2014 
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Annexure To Th e Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 of our report of even date)

(i) (a) Th e Company is maintaining proper records to show full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of all fi xed assets.

 (b) As explained to us, these fi xed assets have been physically verifi ed 
by the management, in accordance with a phased programme of 
verifi cation, which in our opinion, is reasonable, considering the size 
of the Company and nature of its assets. Th e frequency of physical 
verifi cation is reasonable and no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verifi cation. 

 (c) Th e Company has not disposed off any substantial part of its fi xed 
assets during the year, so as to affect its going concern status. 

(ii) (a) As explained to us, the inventories have been physically verifi ed by 
technically qualifi ed independent agencies during the year. In our 
opinion, the frequency of such verifi cation is reasonable.

 (b) As per the information given to us, the procedures of physical 
verifi cation of inventory followed by the management are, in our 
opinion, reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business. 

 (c) Th e Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. No material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verifi cation.

(iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, 
to companies, fi rms and other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. 
Accordingly, paragraphs 4(iii)(b), (c) and (d) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured, 
from companies, fi rms and other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. 
Accordingly, paragraphs 4(iii)(f) and (g) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, there is adequate internal control system commensurate with the size 
of the Company and nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory 
and fi xed assets and for the sale of goods and services. During the course 
of audit, we have neither come across nor have been informed of any 
continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal 
control system.

(v)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of 
the opinion that the particulars of contracts or arrangements that 
need to be entered in the register maintained under Section 301 of 
the Companies Act, 1956, have been so entered. 

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the transactions made in pursuance of such contracts 
or arrangements entered in the register maintained under Section 
301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of rupees 
fi ve lakh in respect of any party during the year, have been made at 
prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market 
prices at the relevant time.

(vi)  Th e Company has not accepted deposits from the public.
(vii)  In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate 

with its size and nature of its business.
(viii) We have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by 

the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the Central Government 
for the maintenance of cost records under Section 209 (1) (d) of the 
Companies Act, 1956. We have however, not made a detailed inspection of 
these records to ascertain their completeness or accuracy.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, income-
tax deducted at source amounting to ` 51.51 millions, VAT on 
booking of fl ats amounting to ` 33.2 millions and tax on dividend 
amounting to ` 18.49 millions were in arrears as at 31st March, 2014, 
for a period of more than six months from the date they become 
payable.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there 
are no dues in respect of income tax, VAT, wealth tax, service tax 
and cess as at 31st March, 2014, which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of the 
Statute

Nature 
of the 
disputed 
dues

Amount
` millions*

Period 
to which 
the 
amount 
relates

Forum where 
disputes are 
pending

Th e Income 
Tax Act, 1961

Tax and 
interest

1719.91 2004-05
to
2010-11

ITAT

(x)  Th e Company has no accumulated losses as at 31st March, 2014 and it has 
not incurred cash losses in the fi nancial year ended on that date and in the 
immediately preceding fi nancial year.

(xi) Th e Company has defaulted in the redemption of non convertible 
debentures and repayment of term loans to fi nancial institutions and 
banks and payment of interest thereon. Details are as under:-

 (` in Millions)

Particulars Principal 
Amount

Interest Period of Default

Non-convertible 
debentures

310.00 - 1 month to 3 Months

- 288.19 1 day to 1 year

Term loans from 
banks

784.30 - 1 day to 6 months

 -  558.80 1 day to 1 year and above

Term loans 
from fi nancial 
institutions

 1367.87  - 4 months to 18 months

 -  239.52 1 day to 1 year

Other body 
corporate

150.00 4 months to 1 year

42.47 Four months to 1 year

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of 
pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

(xiii) Th e provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund / nidhi / 
mutual benefi t fund / societies are not applicable to the Company. 

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company is not dealing in or trading in securities. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the terms and conditions of guarantee given by the Company for loans 
taken by others from banks or fi nancial institutions are not prima facie 
prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were 
obtained. 

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall 
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds 
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investments.

(xviii)  Th e Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties 
or companies covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956, during the year.

(xix) Th e Company has issued debentures during the year and security has been 
created in respect of these debentures.

(xx) Th e Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year. 
(xxi) During the course of our examination of books and records of the Company, 

carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices 
in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
we have neither come across any instances of material fraud on or by the 
Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed 
of such case by the management.

SHARP & TANNAN
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.109982W
by the hand of 
MILIND P. PHADKE
Partner
Membership No.033013
Mumbai, 29th May, 2014 

2 7



Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2014
( ` in millions)

Particulars Note No  As at 
31st March 2014

 As at 
31st March 2013

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 2  1,139.62  1,139.62 

Reserves and surplus 3  6,777.91  8,262.29 

 7,917.53  9,401.91 
2 Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 4  3,184.08  3,345.15 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 32  -  248.81 

Other long term liabilities 5  435.09  454.74 

Long-term provisions 6  17.96  19.84 

 3,637.13  4,068.54 
3 Current liabilities

 Short-term borrowings 7  2,796.04  1,350.62 

 Trade payables 8  633.05  692.11 

 Other current liabilities 9  6,915.65  5,549.65 

 Short-term provisions 10  113.24  114.72 

 10,457.98  7,707.10 

TOTAL  22,012.64  21,177.55 

II. ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

Fixed assets 11
Tangible assets  157.59  188.52 

Non-current investments 12  650.87  650.87 

Deferred tax assets (net) 32  441.84  - 

Long-term loans and advances 13  7,654.92  7,602.93 

 8,905.22  8,442.32 
2 Current assets

Current investments 12 - -
Inventories 14  5,773.85  5,656.51 

Trade receivables 15  4,146.22  4,079.97 

Cash and cash equivalents 16  38.99  113.39 

Short-term loans and advances 13  1,033.71  1,059.42 

Other current assets 17  2,114.65  1,825.94 

 13,107.42  12,735.23 

TOTAL  22,012.64  21,177.55 

Th e notes referred to above form an integral part of the fi nancial statements

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors
Sharp and Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number 109982W Pujit Aggarwal Abdul Mohhamad Sattar 
by the hand of Managing Director & CEO Director

(DIN 00133373) (DIN 06656299)

Milind P. Phadke Ramashrya Yadav S R Soni
Partner Joint- CEO Company Secretary
Membership No. 33013
Place : Mumbai. Place : Mumbai.
Date: 29th May 2014 Date: 29th May 2014
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Statement of Profi t and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2014
( ` in millions)

Particulars Note No  Year Ended 
31st March 2014

 Year Ended 
31st March 2013

Revenue from operations 18                         290.63                            2,102.87 

Other Income 19                           47.57                                 37.40 

Total Revenue                         338.20                            2,140.27 

Expenses

Cost of Real Estate Purchase , Materials and Consumption  Expenses 20                         207.81                               521.04 

Changes in inventories of fi nished goods and Work in progress 21                        (117.34)                                (40.79)

Employee benefi ts expenses 22                         138.14                               139.20 

Finance  costs 23                      1,640.25                            1,378.66 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 11                           40.85                                 44.56 

Other expenses 24                         602.57                               299.23 

Total expenses                      2,512.28                            2,341.90 

Profi t / (Loss ) before tax                     (2,174.08)                             (201.63)

Tax expense

Current tax                               -                                   17.77 

Less: Mat credit entitlement                               -                                   41.21 

Deferred tax                        (690.64)                              (218.34)

Short provision of tax in respect of earlier years                            5.85                                     -   

Profi t /(Loss )for the year                     (1,489.29)                               (42.27)

Earnings per share (Basic and diluted) - Rupees 25                          (13.07)                                 (0.37)

Face value per share - Rupees                           10.00                                 10.00 

Th e notes referred to above form an integral part of the fi nancial statements

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors
Sharp and Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number 109982W Pujit Aggarwal Abdul Mohhamad Sattar 
by the hand of Managing Director & CEO Director

(DIN 00133373) (DIN 06656299)

Milind P. Phadke Ramashrya Yadav S R Soni
Partner Joint- CEO Company Secretary
Membership No. 33013
Place : Mumbai. Place : Mumbai.
Date: 29th May 2014 Date: 29th May 2014
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2014
(` in millions)

Particulars Year ended
 31st March 2014

Year ended
31st March 2013

A. Cash Flow from operating activities

 Net profi t before tax  (2,174.08)  (201.63)

 Adjustments For:

 Depreciation  40.85  44.56 

 Interest expense  1,640.25  1,378.66 

 Employee stock option  3.15  (0.11)

 Wealth Tax  0.36  0.24 

 ( Profi t)/ Loss on sale of Assets  (7.72)  (0.01)

 ( Profi t)/ Loss on sale of Subsidiary  -  - 

 Income from investment and Bank Deposits  (6.87)  (5.36)

 Operating profi t before working capital changes  (504.06)  1,216.35 

 Adjustments for:  -  - 

 (Increase)/decrease in inventories  (117.34)  (40.79)

 (Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables  1,757.48  (382.63)

 (Increase) / decrease in loans and advances  (25.03)  (53.49)

 (Increase) / decrease in other current assets  (2,112.44)  1.02 

 Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  (81.95)  167.60 

 Increase / (decrease) in Advances received  (39.10)  (86.96)

 Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities  250.49  56.86 

 Increase / (decrease) in Provisions  (47.32)  27.30 

 Cash generated from operations  (919.27)  905.26 

 Direct taxes paid  (5.92)  (20.96)

 Wealth tax paid  -  - 

 Net cash from operating activities  (925.19)  884.30 

B. Cash fl ow from investing activities

 Purchase of fi xed assets  (23.46)  (13.87)

 Proceeds from sale of Fixed Assets  21.25  0.87 

 Purchase of shares of Subsidiary  -  (150.00)

 Purchase of investments  -  - 

 Sale of investments  -  26.08 

 Income from investments and Bank Deposits  6.88  3.15 

 Net cash (used in)/from investing activities  4.67  (133.77)
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Particulars Year ended
 31st March 2014

Year ended
31st March 2013

C. Cash fl ow from fi nancing activities

 Proceeds from Debentures  -  1,400.00 

 Proceeds Long Term Borrowings  1,090.68  697.69 

 Proceeds short Term Borrowings  1,475.42  675.61 

 Repayment Debentures  (30.00)  - 

 Repayment Long Term Borrowings  (1,172.63)  (2,289.41)

 Repayment Short Term Borrowings  (30.00)  (283.11)

 Interest paid  (487.35)  (879.61)

 Final Dividend of FY 10-11  -  (0.03)

 

Net cash (used in)/from fi nancing activities  846.12  (678.86)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (74.40)  71.67 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  113.39  41.72 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year*  38.99  113.39 

* Includes Fixed Deposits of ` Nil (Previous year: ` 56.64 millions ) pledged as security for fi nancial assistance provided by Canara Bank.

Notes:

1. Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard (AS) 3 “Cash Flow Statements” prescribed under the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

2. Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances.

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors
Sharp and Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number 109982W Pujit Aggarwal Abdul Mohhamad Sattar 
by the hand of Managing Director & CEO Director

(DIN 00133373) (DIN 06656299)

Milind P. Phadke Ramashrya Yadav S R Soni
Partner Joint- CEO Company Secretary
Membership No. 33013
Place : Mumbai. Place : Mumbai.
Date: 29th May 2014 Date: 29th May 2014

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2014
(` in millions)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Basis of Accounting:

 Th e Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(’GAAP’) and in compliance with the Accounting Standards prescribed under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and other requirements of the 
Companies Act, 1956. Insurance and other claims are accounted for as and when admitted by the appropriate authorities.

 Th e preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with GAAP requires that the management of the Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities 
as of the date of the fi nancial statements. Examples of such estimates include the useful lives of fi xed assets, provision for doubtful debts/advances, future 
obligations in respect of retirement benefi t plans, etc. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively in the current and future periods. Wherever changes in presentation are made, comparative fi gures of the previous year are regrouped accordingly.

1.2 Revenue Recognition

 Income from real estate sales is recognised on the transfer of all signifi cant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyers and it is not unreasonable to expect 
ultimate collection and no signifi cant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration.

 Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates by the Company. Revenue from construction 
and project related activity is recognised by applying Percentage Completion Method (PCM) to sale of tenements. Percentage of completion is determined 
as a proportion of cost incurred to date (excluding property acquisition cost) to the total estimated project cost (excluding property acquisition cost). Project 
becomes eligible for revenue recognition when the percentage of completion of project exceeds 25%.

1.3 Fixed Asset

 Fixed assets are capitalised at acquisition cost, including directly attributable costs such as freight, insurance and specifi c installation charges for bringing the 
assets to working condition for use.

 Expenditure relating to existing fi xed assets is added to the cost of the assets, where it increases the performance / life of the asset as assessed earlier. 

 Fixed assets are eliminated from fi nancial statements either on disposal or when retired from active use.

1.4 Intangible assets and Amortisation

 Intangible assets are recognised as per the criteria specifi ed in Accounting Standard (AS) 26 ‘Intangible Assets’.

1.5 Investments 

 Investments are classifi ed into long term and current investments.

 Long term investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, in the value of each long term investment is made to recognise a decline, other than 
of a temporary nature.

 Current investments are carried individually at lower of cost and fair value and the resultant decline, if any, is charged to revenue.

1.6 Inventories 

 Inventory of fi nished tenements are valued at lower of the cost or net realizable value. Inventories of work in progress includes cost of land, premium for 
development rights, construction costs and allocated interest and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the Company and are valued at cost.

1.7 Depreciation

 Depreciation on fi xed assets has been provided on written down value, at the rates and in the manner specifi ed in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

1.8 Employee Stock Option Scheme

 Employee Stock Options are evaluated and accounted on intrinsic value method as per the accounting treatment prescribed by Guidance Note on ‘Accounting 
for Employee Share-based payments’ issued by ICAI read with SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme & Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999 
issued by SEBI. Th e excess of market value, if any, of the stock options as on the date of vesting over the exercise price of the options is recognised as deferred 
employee compensation and is charged to the profi t and loss account on vesting basis over the vesting period of the options. Th e un-amortized portion of the 
deferred employee compensation, if any, is reduced from Employee Stock Option Outstanding.

1.9 Borrowing costs 

 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets till such 
time as the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period over twelve months of time to 
get ready for its intended use or sale. 

 All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March 2014

1.10 Retirement�Benefi ts 

 Retirement benefi ts to the employees comprise of payments under defi ned contribution plans like Provident Fund and Family Pension. Th e liability in respect 
of defi ned benefi t scheme like Gratuity is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the year end. Provisions for / contributions for leave encashment 
benefi ts are made on actual basis.

1.11 Taxes on income

 Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961, and based on expected outcome of assessments / appeals.

 Deferred tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, on timing differences, being the difference between taxable 
income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent period.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty supported by convincing evidence that suffi cient 
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

 Deferred tax is quantifi ed using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date.

1.12 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

 a Provision are recognised for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of estimation, if

  i. the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event,

  ii. a probable outfl ow of resources is expected to settle the obligation; and 

  iii. the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

 b Reimbursements by another party, expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision, is recognised when it is virtual certain that 
reimbursement will be received if obligation is settled.

 c Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of

  i. a present obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an outfl ow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

  ii. a possible obligation, unless the probability of outfl ow of resources is remote.

 d Contingent assets are neither disclosed nor recognised.

 e Provision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

1.13 Events occurring after the date of balance sheet

 Where material, events occurring after the date of the Balance Sheet are considered upto the date of approval of accounts by the Board of Directors.

1.14 Foreign Currency Transactions

 All transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates the relevant transactions take place.

 Monetary Assets and Liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding at the close of the year, are converted in Indian Currency at the appropriate rates of exchange 
prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet. Resultant gain or loss is accounted during the year.

1.15 Earnings Per Share

 Th e amount considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share constitutes the net Profi t after tax. 

 Th e number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

 Th e number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings 
per share and also the weighted average number of shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential shares. 

 Diluted EPS is calculated on the number of equity shares outstanding as on the balance sheet date and also the dilutive component of employee stock options. 
Dilutive nature have been calculated as difference between fair value i.e. Average six months daily closing price as on 31st March 2013 and actual conversion 
price for such warrants.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014

(` in millions)

 As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

 Number  Amounts  Number  Amounts 

2 Share capital

Authorised Equity Capital

 Equity Shares of `10 each  199,750,000  1,997.50  199,750,000  1,997.50 

 Redeemable Non cumulative Preference share of `10 each  250,000  2.50  250,000  2.50 

 200,000,000  2,000  200,000,000  2,000 

Issued , Subscribed and Paid up

 Equity Shares of `10 each 113,961,890  1,139.62 113,961,890  1,139.62 

 Redeemable Non cumulative Preference share of `10 each  -  -  -  - 

 113,961,890  1,139.62  113,961,890  1,139.62 

a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at beginning and at end of 
reporting year

Equity Capital  Number  Amounts  Number  Amounts 

Balance at the beginning of the year 113,961,890  1,139.62 113,961,890  1,139.62 

Add : Issued during the year  -  -  -  - 

Less: Bought back during the year  -  -  -  - 

Balance at the end of the year  113,961,890  1,139.62  113,961,890  1,139.62 

b Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares

 Th e Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of `10/- per share. Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Th e 
Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. Th e dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the 
ensuing General Meeting, except interim dividend.

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets , if any of the Company after distribution of 
all preferential amounts. Th e distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 Terms/ Rights attached to Preference Shares

 If at any time, the share capital by reason of issue of Preference shares or otherwise is divided into different classes of shares, then all or any of the rights and 
privileges attached to any class, then the rights and restrictions attaching to the Redeemable Preference Shares shall differ from those attaching to Equity 
Shares as follows:

 Th e Redeemable Preference Shares carry rights to receive dividends.

 Th e holders of Redeemable Preference Shares have no rights to receive notices of, attend or vote at general meetings except in certain limited circumstances 
affecting their interests & rights.

 Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 1956, the Company shall have the right to redeem the Redeemable Preference Shares at any time on giving not 
less than seven days’ written notice.

 On a distribution of assets of the Company, on a winding-up or other return of capital (subject to certain exceptions), the holders of Redeemable Preference 
Shares have priority over the holders of Ordinary Shares to receive the capital paid-up on those shares.

c Shareholding more than 5 percent As on 31st March 2014 As on 31st March 2013

Name of the shareholder  No of Shares held  % of Shareholding  No of Shares held  % of Shareholding 

Mr .Ravi Kiran Aggarwal 21,896,758 19.21%  22,183,762 19.47%

Mr .Pujit Aggarwal 22,713,899 19.93%  25,020,365 21.96%

Emgee Foils Private Ltd  6,335,111 5.56%
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014

d Shares reserved for issue under options 

 ESOP Scheme 2012

 At an Annual General Meeting held on 24th September , 2012 resolution to grant upto 1,200,000 options to employees was approved which entitles the option 
holders to subscribe to one equity shares of the company of face value of `10 per option granted at grant price on such terms and conditions as may be fi xed or 
determined by the board.

 (Refer Note 33 for details)

e Details of shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus issues and brought back 
during the last 5 years to be given for each class of shares

Equity Shares

Year Ended  Face Value  Bonus issue  Buy back of shares Without payment received 
in cash

31st March 2014  -  -  -  - 

31st March 2013  -  -  -  - 

31st March 2012  -  -  -  - 

31st March 2011  10  56,980,945  -  - 

31st March 2010  -  -  -  - 

Total  56,980,945  -  - 

Preference share

year Ended  Face Value  Bonus issue  Redemption of shares Without payment received 
in cash

31st March 2014  -  -  -  - 

31st March 2013  -  -  -  - 

31st March 2012  10  -  160,000  - 

31st March 2011  -  -  -  - 

31st March 2010  -  -  -  - 

Total  -  160,000  - 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014

(` in millions)

3 Reserves and retained earnings  As at 
31st March 2014

 As at 
31st March 2013

Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  1.89  1.89 

Add: Transfer from Profi t /Loss account  -  - 

Balance at the end of the year  1.89  1.89 

Securities Premium Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  3,736.55  3,736.55 

Add: Received during the year  -  - 

Less :Bonus Shares issued  -  - 

Less :Security issue expenses written off in terms of Section 78 of Companies Act, 1956  -  - 

Balance at the end of the year  3,736.55  3,736.55 

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,500.00  1,500.00 

Add: Additions during the year  -  - 

Less: Deletion during the year  -  - 

Balance at the end of the year  1,500.00  1,500.00 

Employees Stock Options outstanding

Balance at the beginning of the year  2.26  2.40 

Add: Additions during the year  7.18  - 

Less:Deletion during the year  (2.26)  0.14 

Balance at the end of the year  7.18  2.26 

General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year  281.48  281.48 

Add: Additions during the year  -  - 

Less:Deletion during the year  -  - 

Balance at the end of the year  281.48  281.48 

Surplus /(defi cit) in the statement of profi t and loss

Balance as per Last Financial Statement  2,740.10  2,782.38

Profi t / (Loss) for the year  (1,489.29)  (42.27)

Balance at the end of the year  1,250.81  2,740.10 

Total Reserves & Surplus  6,777.91  8,262.29 

1 4 T H A N N U A L  R E P O R T  -  2 0 1 3 - 2 0 1 4
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014

(` in millions)

4  Borrowings
 As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 
a Secured Loans

Debentures
1,470 (Previous year 1500) Secured Non Convertible Debentures of 
`1,000,000 each.

 1,200.00  270.00  1,440.00  60.00 

140 (Previous year 140 ) Secured Non Convertible Debentures of 
`10,000,000 each.

 420.00  980.00  1,120.00  280.00 

Vehicle loans from banks  27.26  17.52  44.42  18.77 

Loans from Banks  1,134.80  784.30  500.00  1,494.22 

Loans from Institutions  -  1,367.87  -  1,517.55 

 2,782.06  3,419.69  3,104.42  3,370.54 
b Unsecured Loans

Loans and advances from related parties
From Directors (interest free)  238.34  -  199.60  - 

From Other Bodies corporate  163.68  -  41.13  - 

Others
From Other Bodies corporate  -  23.15  -  23.15 

 402.02  23.15  240.73  23.15 
 -  -  -  - 

Total Borrowings  3,184.08  3,442.83  3,345.15  3,393.69 

c Details of borrowings guaranteed by the directors 
Long Term
Non Convertible Debentures  2,870.00 
Vehicle Loans  40.16 
Loans from banks  1,919.10 
Loans from Institutions  1,367.87 
Short Term  
Others  201.21 
Total  6,398.34 

d During the year the Company has defaulted in repayment of loans and interest in respect of the following:

Particulars

 Period (upto balancesheet date) 

One Day More than 
One day to Six 

months

Seventh month 
to Twelve 
months 

More than Twelve 
months to 

Eighteen Months

Total

1 Principal
Loans from banks  299.40  484.90  -  -  784.30 
Loans from Institutes  -  115.92  677.09  574.87  1,367.87 
Non Convertible Debentures  140.00  170.00  -  -  310.00 
Others  -  50.00  100.00  -  150.00 
Total Principal*  439.40  820.82  777.09  574.87  2,612.17 

 2 Interest 
 a Long Term Borrowings 

Non Convertible Debentures  78.48  150.26  59.44  -  288.18 
Loans from banks  30.60  99.89  92.81  164.99  388.25 
Loans from Institutes  26.15  127.49  85.89  -  239.53 

 b Short Term Borrowings 
Loans from banks  12.33  68.62  52.70  36.88  170.53 
Other Body corporate  2.98  17.76  21.73  -  42.47 
Total Default Interest*  150.54  464.02  312.57  201.87  1,129.01 

*Th e overdue amount is in various stages of reschdulement with respective banks and Financial institution
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e Security Details

Sr No Name of Lender Facility & Loan 
Documentation

Amount 
Outstanding 

(` in Mn.)

Interest Rate p.a Repayment Schedule* (` in Mn.)

Details of security offered for Loan from Banks

Term loans and overdraft facilities which are secured by registered mortgages of certain freehold lands / properties of the Company / Subsidiary Companies and / 
or against future receivables of the Company / Subsidiary Companies and / or directors' personal guarantee.

1 State Bank of India Term loan 348.80 15.75% Sep 2013-91.40 mn 

Dec 2013-129 mn

March 2014-128.40 mn

2  Union Bank of India Term loan 435.50 15.90% Sep 2013-93.50 mn 

Dec 2013-171 mn

March 2014-1710 mn

3 Axis Bank OD 284.80 15.25% Twelve equal monthly installment starting 
from February 2016

4 Axis Bank Term loan 850.00 15.25% Twelve equal monthly installment starting 
from February 2016

5 Canara Bank Working Capital Loan 800.62 11.35% On Demand

 Vehicle Loan against hypothecation of respective vehicles and Directors' personal guarantee

1 HDFC Bank Ltd, ICICI Bank and Canara 
Bank

Vehicle Loan 44.77 various rates 
@ average of 

10.86%

Various installments upto October 2018

Details of security offered for Loan from Institutions

Term loans and overdraft facilities which are secured by registered mortgages of certain freehold and leasehold lands / properties of the Company / Subsidiary 
Companies and / or against future receivables of the Company / Subsidiary Companies and / or directors' personal guarantee/pledge of shares

1 LIC - Non Convertible Debenture (NCDs) Working Capital Loan 1470 13.32%

Quarterly payment of ` 30 mn - Jan 2014 
to July 2014 

Quarterly payment of ` 90 mn - October 
2014 to July 2015 

Quarterly payment of ` 130 mn- October 
2015 to July 2016 

Quarterly payment of ` 125 mn -October 
2016 to July 2017 

2 Edelweiss Commodities Services Ltd.- 
NCDS

General Corporate 
Purposes

1400 14% Quarterly payment of ` 140 mn- December 
2013 to March 2014.

Quarterly payment of ` 175 mn- June 
2014 to March 2015.

Quarterly payment of ` 210 mn- June 
2015 to September 2015.

3 LIC Housing Finance Ltd. Term loan 877.08 16.00% Monthly installments of ` 80 mn starting 
from Sep 2012 to June 2013 and 87.09 
mn in July 2013

4 IFCI Ltd Corporate Loan 490.80 18.75% February 2013- ` 24.88 mn

March 2013 -` 100 mn 

Monthly installments of ` 50 mn starting 
from April 2013 to September 2013

October 2013 -` 65.96 mn

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014

Details of security offered for Loan from Corporate
Secured by registered mortgages of certain freehold lands / properties of the Company / Subsidiary Companies and / or directors' personal guarantee.

1 JBF Industries Limited Corporate Loan 150 26% Monthly installments of ` 15 mn April 
2013 , May 2013, July 2013, August 2013, 
October 2013 and November 2013

Monthly installments of ` 20 mn June 
2013, September 2013 and December 
2013.

2 Capri Global Advisory Services Pvt Ltd Corporate Loan  36.21 24% July 2014 - ` 36.21 mn

3 Parshwanath Buildcon Pvt Ltd Corporate Loan  10.00 24% July 2014 - ` 10 mn

4 Sukumar Properties Pvt. Ltd Corporate Loan  5.00 24% July 2014 - ` 5 mn

5 Capri Global Advisory Services Pvt Ltd Corporate Loan  566.79 23% September 2014 - ` 566.79 mn

6 Parshwanath Buildcon Pvt Ltd Corporate Loan  433.67 23% September 2014 - ` 433.67 mn

*Th e repayment schedule provides status as on 31st March 2014. However, the same may undergo substantial modifi cation as overdue amount is in various stages 
of reschdulement with respective banks and Financial institutions. 

(` in millions)

 As at  31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 
5 Other Long term liabilities

Advances from customers  430.61  450.61 

Application money for I.P.O. to be refunded  0.01  0.01 

Deposits  4.47  4.12 

 435.09  454.74 

(` in millions)

 As at  31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 
6 Long Term Provision

Provision for Leave Encashment  8.16  10.01 

Provision for Gratuity  9.81  9.83 

 17.96  19.84 

(` in millions)

 As at  31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 
7 Short-term borrowings

Secured
 From Bank  800.62  800.62 

 From Other Companies  1,201.67  175.00 

Unsecured
From Other Bodies corporate  773.75  355.00 

From Others  20.00  20.00 

 2,796.04  1,350.62 

(` in millions)

 As at  31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 
8 Trade Payables

- Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises  -  - 

- Others

 Goods supplied  341.35  279.31 

 Expenses  81.70  97.92 

 Others  210.00  314.88 

 633.05  692.11 
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(` in millions)

 As at  31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 
9 Other Current Liabilities

Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 4)  3,442.83  3,393.69 

Interest accrued and due on borrowings  1,129.01  396.77 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  660.63  284.18 

Unpaid Dividend  1.67  1.67 

Others Statuory Liabilities  197.25  145.18 

Others Current Liabilities  178.42  3.23 

Advances from customers  1,305.84  1,324.93 

 6,915.65  5,549.65 

(` in millions)

 As at  31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 
10 Short Term Provision

Provision for Expenses  12.08  35.70 

Provision for Income Tax  100.53  78.75 

Provision for Wealth Tax  0.63  0.27 

 113.24  114.72 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2014

( ` in millions)

12 Investments (Valued at Cost)  As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

Unquoted  Non 
Current 

 Current  Non 
Current 

 Current 

Investments in Equity Instruments

In fully paid equity shares in subsidiary companies:

Orbit Highcity Private Limited  500.00  -  500.00  - 

8,903,226 (Previous year 8,903,226 )Equity shares of `10 each 

Mazda Construction Co Pvt Ltd  150.00  -  150.00  - 

100,000 (Previous year 100,000) Equity shares of `100 each 

Orbit Residency Pvt Ltd  0.10  -  0.10  - 

10,000 (Previous year 10,000) Equity shares of `10 each 

Ahinsa Buildtech Pvt Ltd  0.09  -  0.09  - 

8,500 (Previous year 8,500) Equity shares of `10 each 

Orbit Habitat Private Limited  0.10  -  0.10  - 

10,000 (Previous year 10,000) Equity shares of `10 each 

Others

Property Redevelopers Association  0.06  -  0.06  - 

6,250 (Previous year 6,250) shares of `10 each, fully paid up

Th e Pen Co-operative Urban Bank Limited  0.50  -  0.50  - 

2,000 (Previous year 2,000 ) shares of`250 each, fully paid up.

Th e Sarwaswat Co-Op.Bank Ltd.  0.03  -  0.03  - 

2,500 (Previous year 2,500 ) shares of `10 each, fully paid up.

 650.87  -  650.87  - 

1 4 T H A N N U A L  R E P O R T  -  2 0 1 3 - 2 0 1 4
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Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2014

( ` in millions)

13 Loans and Advances
 As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 
 - Unsecured considered good

a Capital Advances
Advance for Fixed Assets  -  -  -  10.24 

b Security Deposits
Deposits - Director  288.76  -  288.76  - 

Other Deposits  28.77  -  32.49  - 

c Advances to Related Parties
Advances paid for acquisition of properties to Related parties  2,703.26  -  2,617.63  - 

Other Advances  -  8.67  -  6.97 

Advances to subsidiary company  1,207.55  -  1,365.73  - 

Advance against Equity to subsidiary  142.65  -  142.65  - 

Advances to supplier  -  1.76  -  2.85 

d Other loans and advances
Advances paid for acquisition of properties  3,073.21  225.30  2,944.40  198.27 

Advance for Expenses  -  16.22  -  10.12 

Advances to suppliers  -  95.21  -  182.83 

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received  -  661.83  -  640.09 

Advance payment of taxes  210.72  -  211.27  - 

Service tax credit receivable  -  22.50  -  8.05 

Taxes recoverable from customers  -  2.22  -  - 

 7,654.92  1,033.71  7,602.93  1,059.42 

Loans and advances include amounts due from:
1 Director  288.76  -  288.76  - 

2 Private companies in which any director is a director or member  2,451.73  8.67  2,450.78  3.47 

3 Offi cer of the Company  -  1.24  -  1.24 

 2,740.49  9.91  2,739.54  4.71 

( ` in millions)
 As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 
14 Inventories

Finished goods  -  -  -  - 

Closing Work-in-Progress  -  5,773.85  -  5,656.51 

 -  5,773.85  -  5,656.51 

( ` in millions)
 As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

15 Trade receivables  Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 
Unsecured, considered good

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment -  3,887.02 -  1,453.63 

Trade receivables  -  259.20 -  2,626.34 

 -  4,146.22  -  4,079.97 

4 3



( ` in millions)

16 Cash and cash equivalents
 As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 
Cash and Bank Balances
Cash on hand  -  0.23  -  16.19 

Balances with banks :  -  - 

 on current accounts  -  9.16  -  0.26 

 on dividend accounts  -  (42.91)  -  (42.91)

 Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months*  72.51  -  - 

Other bank balances
 Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months*  -  -  -  139.85 

 but less than 12 months  -  - 

 -  38.99  -  113.39 
* Includes Fixed Deposits of ` Nil (Previous year: ` 56.64 millions ) pledged as security for fi nancial assistance provided by Canara Bank.

( ` in millions)

17 Other current assets
 As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits  -  -  -  2.20 

Unbilled Customers  2,114.65  1,823.74 

 -  2,114.65  -  1,825.94 

( ` in millions)

18 Revenue from operations For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Revenue generated from completed projects  (1.90)  48.95 

Revenue recognised for projects under progress  292.27  2,053.92 

(Details Refer note 36)

Others  0.26  - 

 290.63  2,102.87 

( ` in millions)

19 Other Income For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Interest Income
- Bank Deposits  6.87  4.82 

- Other Advances  23.52  28.43 

Dividend
- Mutual Funds  -  0.54 

- Shares -  0.01 

Others
Profi t/loss on Sale of Asset  7.71 -

Other Income  9.47  3.60 

 47.57  37.40 

Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2014
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( ` in millions)

20 Real Estate Purchase and Consumption Expenses For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Property Acquisition Cost  2.30  90.53 

(Including Tenants Buyback and Accommodation cost)

Project Material Cost  22.32  158.02 

Labour Charges and Works Contract charges  111.72  247.13 

Legal and Professional fees  7.97  4.64 

Insurance  1.72  2.21 

Rates and Taxes  0.50  2.31 

Approval and permissions charges  42.56  - 

Compensation Expenses  4.58  4.58 

Other Direct expenses related to Projects  14.14  11.62 

Total Cost of Real Estate Purchase , Materials and Consumption Expenses  207.81  521.04 

( ` in millions)

21 Change in Inventories For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Closing Work-in-Progress   

Finished goods  -  - 

Work in progress  (5,773.85)  (5,656.51)

Opening Work-in-Progress
Finished goods  -  - 

Work in progress  5,656.51  5,615.71 

 (117.34)  (40.79)

( ` in millions)

22 Employee Related Costs For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Salaries ,Wages ,bonus and Benefi ts  119.96  123.92 

Contribution to Provident Fund  7.96  7.12 

Employee Compensation Cost  3.15  (0.11)

Staff Welfare Expenses  7.07  8.26 

 138.14  139.20 

( ` in millions)

23 Finance costs For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Interest on Non Convertible Debentures  448.24  263.09 

Interest on Other Loan  1,111.12  1,066.48 

Compensation Expenses  23.23  - 
Interest on Income tax  21.33  - 
Interest on tax deducted at source  20.69  16.54 

Other Interest and Finance Charges  15.64  32.55 

(Also refer note 29)

 1,640.25  1,378.66 

Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2014
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( ` in millions)

24 Other Expenses For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Legal and Professional fees  46.99  90.94 

Labour charges  10.05  31.01 

Insurance  4.00  6.06 

Rent  33.45  45.15 

Rates and Taxes  14.34  - 

Approval and permissions charges  94.12  - 

Repairs and Maintenance 

-Buildings  -  - 

-Plant and Machinery  -  - 

-Others  3.30  3.18 

Business Promotion  14.49  15.43 

Auditors Renumeration (Details Below)  2.58  2.59 

Compensation Expenses  330.20  - 

Advertisment and Publicity  0.34  0.65 

Travelling Expenses  4.20  8.49 

Wealth Tax  0.36  0.24 

Other general and administration Expenses  44.15  95.49 

 602.57  299.23 

Payment to Auditors

Audit Fees  1.40  1.40 

Limited Review  0.84  0.84 

Taxation Matters  0.22  0.22 

Other Services  0.09  0.11 

Reimbursement of Expenses  0.03  0.02 

 2.58  2.59 

Particulars Year Ended
 31st March 2014 

Year Ended
 31st March 2013 

25 Earnings Per Share
Net Profi t attributable to Equity Share Holder ( ` in millions)  (1,489.29)  (42.27)

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year  113,961,890  113,961,890 

Weighted Average number of shares  113,961,890  113,961,890 

Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of employee stock options  -  14,232 

Number of shares for computation of Diluted EPS  113,961,890 113,961,890

Basic EPS (In `)  (13.07)  (0.37)

Diluted EPS (In `)  (13.07)  (0.37)

Face Value per Equity Share ` 10 10

Potential equity shares on account of employee stock options conversion would decrease loss per share and hence anti dilutive, are ignored in calculating diluted 
earnings per share.

Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2014
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26 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
1 Corporate Guarantee 

Th e Company had provided corporate guarantee on behalf of Bhagyodaya Infrastructure Development Limited, the principal contractor for few projects 
undertaken by the Company, for availing credit facility to the extent of ` 99.00 million from State Bank of India. Loan Outstanding as on 31st March 2014 is 
`99.92 million including interest.

2 Other money for which the company is contingently liable
a In continuation of Note 32(b), the Company has received Appeal orders for Assessment year 2004-05 to 2010-11 passed by CIT (Appeals) 38, Mumbai and 

also received demand notice U/s 156 of the Income Tax Act, 1961. As per the said demand notice, the Income Tax department has raised demand for Income 
Tax and interest thereon for an amount of ` 1719.91 millions. However, the company has contested the said order and the demand raised thereon by fi ling 
appeal before Income Tax Appellate Tribunal.  

Th e Company has received Assessment orders for Assessment year 2011-12 passed by Dy. Commissioner of Income Tax , Centre Circle-47, Mumbai U/s 143(3) 
o f Income Tax Act 1961 and also received demand notice U/s 156 of the Income Tax Act 1961. As per said demand notice, the Income Tax department has 
raised demand for Income Tax & Interest thereon for an amount of `17.86 millions. However the company has contested the said order and the demand 
raised theron by fi lling appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). 

Th e Company is confi dent that it will succeed in both the appeal fi led based on the available documents & evidence and the liability will not get materialize.

b A matter is sub-judice as a reason of certain differences and disputes between Orbit Corporation Limited and one of its clients, Rosy Blue (India) Private 
Limited . Due to the various claims and counterclaims and the complexcity of the pending litigation it is not practicable for the management to quantify the 
estimate of its fi nancial effects or liability that may arise in the matter. However for resolving the same Company is in process of entering the consent terms 
with Rosy Blue (India) Private Limited.

27 Segment Reporting
Th e Company’s business activities fall within a single segment, viz. real estate and redevelopment and predominantly operates in domestic market. 
Accordingly, disclosure requirements under Accounting Standard (AS) 17 ‘Segment Reporting’, is not applicable.

28 Trade Receivables, Trade payable and loans and advances are subject to confi rmation and reconciliation, if any

29 Borrowing cost 
Borrowing cost specifi c to Project is capitalised as project cost and are charged to revenue based on percentage completion. Other Borrowing costs are 
charged to revenue.

Borrowing costs amounting to `1,384.52 millions(Previous Year `859.56 millions) has been charged to revenue during the year.(including portion of 
accumulated interest). 

( ` in millions)

For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

30 Value of imports (on CIF basis) Accrual Basis

Other Materials  -  17.78 

 -  17.78 

Expenditure in foreign currency (Accrual Basis)  Nil  Nil 

Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2014
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Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2014

31 Related Parties

1 List of related parties

a Subsidiary company

1 Orbit Highcity Private Limited 52.57 % Subsidiary company

2 Ahinsa Buildtech Private Limited 85 % Subsidiary company

3 Orbit Habitat Private Limited 100 % Subsidiary company

4 Orbit Residency Private Limited 100 % Subsidiary company

5 Mazda Construction Company Private Limited 75.19% Subsidiary company

Step Subsidiary

6 Karmik Designs Private Limited Wholly owned subsidiary of Mazda Construction Company Private Limited

b Key Management Personnel

1 Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal Chairman & Executive Director

2  Mr. Pujit Aggarwal Managing Director & CEO

c Others

Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise Signifi cant infl uence

1  Apex Hotel Enterprises Private Limited

2  Emgee Foils Private Limited

3  Orbit Compel Infra-Build Private Limited

4  Orbit Entertainment Private Limited

5  Orbit Exquisites Housing Private Limited

6  Orbit Infraserve Private Limited

7  Orbit Socio Foundation

8  Revati Academic & Infrastructure Private Limited

9 Ambuj Infrastructure Private Limited

10 Brio Academic Infrastructure and Resource Management Private Limited 

11 Charm Mercantile Private Limited*

12 Nitika Multitrading Private Limited

13 Orbit Abode Private Limited

14 Orbit Dwelling Private Limited

15 Orbit Eduworld Private Limited

16 Orbit Evolve Developers Private Limited

17 Orbit Lifestyle City Developers Private Limited

18 Orbit Parkcity Private Limited

19 Orbit Parkland Developers Private Limited

20 Orbit Power & Transmission Private Limited 

21 Orbit Raking Solutions Limited

22 Orbit Facility Services Private Limited

23 Orbit Translink & Logistics Private Limited

24 Pheonix Appliances Private Limited

25 Property Redevelopers Association

26 Orbit Eduserve Private Limited

27 Orbit Evolve Infra Private Limited

* Charm Mercantile Private Limited is not a related party w.e.f. 16.08.2013

1 4 T H A N N U A L  R E P O R T  -  2 0 1 3 - 2 0 1 4
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Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2014

2 Names of the related parties with whom transactions were carried out during the year and description of relationship

A Subsidiary company

1 Orbit Highcity Private Limited 52.57 % Subsidiary company

2 Ahinsa Buildtech Private Limited 85 % Subsidiary company

3 Orbit Habitat Private Limited 100 % Subsidiary company

4 Orbit Residency Private Limited 100 % Subsidiary company

5 Mazda Construction Company Private Limited 75.19% Subsidiary company

B Key Management Personnel

1 Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal Chairman & Executive Director

2  Mr. Pujit Aggarwal Managing Director & CEO

C Others

Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise Signifi cant infl uence

1 Orbit Abode Private Limited

2 Property Redevelopers Association

3 Pheonix Appliances Private Limited

4 Orbit Dwelling Private Limited

5 Orbit Lifestyle City Developers Private Limited

6 Emgee Foils Private Ltd

7 Orbit Facility Services Private Limited

8 Orbit Eduworld Private Limited

( ` in millions)
3a Disclosure of related party transactions for Subsidiary and KMPS
Sr. 
No.

Particulars  Subsidiary  KMPs 

 For the year ended 
31st March 2014 

 For the year ended 
31st March 2013 

 For the year ended 
31st March 2014 

 For the year ended 
31st March 2013 

1 Loan granted  87.79  200.00  -  - 

Loan recovered  245.97  658.68  -  - 

Closing Balance  1,207.55  1,365.73  -  - 

2 Loan Taken  -  -  84.10  182.51 

Loan Repaid  -  -  45.36  123.80 

Closing Balance  -  -  238.34  199.60 

3 Rent Paid  -  -  33.71  33.71 

4 Managerial Remuneration & Salaries  -  -  9.60  9.60 

5 Investment made in Shares during the year*  -  150.00  -  - 

6 Advance for Share application money in Subsidiary 
Company

During the year  -  -  -  - 

Closing Balance  142.65  142.65  -  - 

7 Deposits

During the year  -  -  -  - 

Closing Balance  -  -  288.76  288.76 

*On 1st September 2012, Company had subscribed to 100,000 shares (75.19% of total holdings) @ premium of ` 1400 of Mazda Construction Company Private 
Limited .

4 9
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3b Disclosure of related party transactions for Others
Particulars  For the year ended 

31st March 2014 
 For the year ended 

31st March 2013 
Property Advances
Advance Granted  85.63  10.27 

Advance Recovered  -  4.49 

Closing Balance  2,703.26  2,617.63 

Other Advances
Advance Granted  3.86  2.66 

Advance Recovered  2.15  - 

Closing Balance  8.67  6.97 

Supplier Advance   

Closing Balance  1.76  2.85 

Loan Taken  122.56  1.03 

Loan Repaid  0.01  42.23 

Closing balance- Borrowings  163.69  41.13 

32 Note on Taxes

a Th e Company considering interlia, the legislative intent of the provisions of the Section 80-IB (10) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, particularly with respect to 
the deduction of the profi ts derived from redevelopment of buildings/properties, is of the considered opinion that it shall be entitled to a 100% deduction of 
its profi ts derived from such property redevelopment activities undertaken in accordance with Development Control Regulations (DCR) in force in the state of 
Maharashtra, notwithstanding approvals etc. in terms of provisions of the said Section 80-IB (10). Accordingly the taxable profi t computed in accordance with 
the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 have been reduced to the extent of claim u/s. 80-IB (10).

 Th e company has applied for admission at settlement commission for various issues inter alia under section 80-IB(10) claim made by the Company, to which 
Income Tax department had contested upon.

 Th e company has been granted interim relief in form of stay order against abatement of all cases. In view of the matter being subject of scrutiny by Settlement 
Commission and further verifi cation of facts, the same is subjudice for deduction u/s 80 - IB(10). Submission of facts & justifi cation of the said claim is in 
process through various hearing from time to time at the Hon’ble Income Tax Settlement Commission.

 Th ere is no changes in the cumulative provision for tax as in view of loss during the fi nancial year ended 2014 (A.Y 2014-15)

 In addition to the amount of ` 964.11 millions provided cumulative for previous years for tax, ` 776.79 millions may be an additional amount for the same in 
case the deduction U/s 80 IB (10) is not available for such previous years.

b Th e Company inter alia had received notice U/s 153A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 in respect of search carried out by the relevant authority in February 2010. 
Th e Company has fi led return for the same and also for the cases pending with Hon’ble Income Tax Settlement Commission. Th e Income Tax department has 
passed orders assessment yearwise in response to the said returns fi led by the Company. However the company has contested the said orders and the demand 
raised thereon by fi ling appeal before Income Tax Appellate Tribunal.

c. Deferred Tax

 As at 
31.03.2013

 To Profi t & 
Loss A/c

 As at 
31.03.2014

DTL
-Deferment of Tax Liability on Account of uncertainty related to fi nal sale agreement .  263.60  -  263.60

 Total  263.60  -  263.60
DTA
- Employee benefi ts  6.44  (0.61)  5.83

�- Difference between Book & Tax Depreciation  8.05  0.62  8.67

�- Carry Forward Losses  0.30  690.63  690.93

 Total  14.79  690.64  705.43
Net DTL /(DTA)  248.81  (690.64)  (441.84)
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33 Employee Stock Options

a ESOP Scheme 2012

1 At an Annual General Meeting held on 24th September , 2012 resolution to grant upto 1,200,000 options to employees was approved which entitles the 
option holders to subscribe to one equity shares of the company of face value of `10 per option granted at grant price on such terms and conditions as 
may be fi xed or determined by the board.

2 At Annual General Meeting held on 24th September , 2013 total options which may be granted were further modifi ed to 2,400,000

3 Compensation Committee had granted 12,00,000 fresh options under Orbit ESOS 2012 at an exercise price of `10/- per option on 1st July 2013

4 Th e Options have been granted at exercise price of `10 per option as against the market price of `16.40 per share at the time of grant and have a vesting 
period of one year from the date of grant.

5 During the year 78,200 Options have lapsed due to separations and 11,21,800 Options were outstanding as on 31st March 2014.

b Summary of Options Granted

Grant Date No. of Options Options surrendered/
lapsed

Exercise 
Period

Grant Price Market Price Intrinsic Value

01.07.2013 1,200,000  78,200 01.07.2014 10 16.4 6.4

c ESOP Scheme 2009

 All Options granted and outstanding under Orbit ESOS 2009 were surrendered by the employees during the year

d Accounting      

1 Th e charge of ` 2.26 millions has been reversed in the current year in respect of options surrendered under Orbit ESOS 2009 .

2 Th e employee compensation cost applicable for Options granted during the year net of lapse is ` 5.39 millions

3 During the year ended 2012-13, 10 employees holding options resigned. As a result of separations so far, 78,200 options have lapsed and are available 
for reissue.

4  Net amount of ` 0.02 millions has been charged on account of resignation and employee transfer to and from other subsidiary under both the schemes.

e Others

1 Th ere is no employee who has been granted options equal to or exceeding 1% of the Issued Capital.

f Th e movement of stock options during the year ended March 31, 2013 are summarized below:

Number of options

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  Nil

Exercisable at the beginning of the year  Nil

Granted during the year  1,200,000

Granted Options Forfeited during the year  78,200

Exercised during the year  Nil

Expired during the year  Nil

Money realized by exercise of options  Nil

Outstanding at the end of the year  11,21,800

g For purposes of the proforma disclosures, the fair value of each option grant using the Black Scholes Option Valuation model with the following 
assumptions:

Risk free interest rate 8%

Expected volatility 53%

Years to Maturity from Grant date 1

Stock Price at the time of Option grant 16.4

 Expected Dividends Not separately included, 
factored in volatility working
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Calculations
Options granted  1,200,000

Options Lapsed  78,200

Net options granted  1,121,800

Exercise Price  10.00

Market Price on grant date  16.40

Intrinsic Value  6.40

Fair Value based on Black Scholes Method  7.65

Charged during the year to employee cost based on Intrinsic Value (Before Group allocation) ( ` in millions)  3.13

Chargeable to employee cost based on Fair Value ( ` in millions)  3.41

Additional charged if Fair Value taken ( ` in millions)  0.29

Note: Th e difference in basic and diluted EPS is insignifi cant under both the methods.

34 Staff benefi ts cost in accordance with Accounting Standard 15 (Revised 2005)
 Retirement Benefi ts: Payments under defi ned contribution plans like Provident Fund and Family Pension have been charged to Profi t & Loss Account as and 

when made.

 Disclosure for defi ned benefi t plan - Gratuity (non funded):

 Th e Company provides for gratuity benefi t under a defi ned benefi t retirement scheme (the “Gratuity Scheme”) as laid out by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
of India covering eligible employees. Th e Gratuity Scheme provides for a lump sum payment to employees who have completed at least fi ve years of service 
with the Company, based on salary and tenure of employment. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Scheme are determined by actuarial valuation carried out 
using the Projected Unit Credit Method by an independent actuary. Th e Gratuity Scheme is a non-funded scheme and the Company intends to discharge this 
liability through its internal resources.

 1 Th e following table sets out the non-funded status of the Gratuity and Leave encashment scheme in respect of employees of the Company:

 ( ` in millions)

Particulars
Gratuity Leave encashment

Year Ended
31.03.2014

Year Ended
31.03.2013

Year Ended
31.03.2014

Year Ended
31.03.2013

Change in the present value of defi ned benefi ts obligation

Present value of Defi ned Benefi ts Obligation at the beginning 
of the year

 9.84  6.78  10.01  7.12

Service cost  1.60  1.95  0.06  0.57

Interest cost  0.81  0.59  0.83  0.62

Actuarial loss/ (gain)  (0.90)  0.52  (2.34)  1.71

Benefi ts paid  (1.54)  -  (0.40)  (0.01)

Present Value of Defi ned Benefi ts Obligation at the end of the 
year (A)

 9.81  9.84  8.16  10.01

 2 Net gratuity cost and Leave encashment for the year ended 31st March 2014 comprises the following components:

 ( ` in millions)

Particulars
Gratuity Leave encashment

Year Ended
31.03.2014

Year Ended
31.03.2013

Year Ended
31.03.2014

Year Ended
31.03.2013

Service cost  1.60  1.95  0.06  0.57

Interest cost  0.81  0.59  0.83  0.62

Expected return on assets  -  -  -  -

Actuarial loss/(gain)  (0.90)  0.52  (2.34)  1.70

Net gratuity cost  1.51  3.06  (1.45)  2.89

1 4 T H A N N U A L  R E P O R T  -  2 0 1 3 - 2 0 1 4

5 2



Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2014

 3 Th e actuarial assumptions used in accounting for the Gratuity plan and Leave encashment were as follows: 

Particulars
Gratuity Leave encashment

Year Ended
31.03.2014

Year Ended
31.03.2013

Year Ended
31.03.2014

Year Ended
31.03.2013

Rate of interest 9.25% per annum 8.25% per annum 9.25% per annum 8.25% per annum

Rate of increase in 
compensation levels

7% per annum 7% per annum 7% per annum 7% per annum

Withdrawal rate 1% 1% 1% 1%

Mortality Rate Indian Assures Lives 
(2006-08) Ult. Mortality 

Rates.

LIC (1994-96) ultimate 
Mortality rate

Indian Assures Lives 
(2006-08) Ult. Mortality 

Rates.

LIC (1994-96) ultimate 
Mortality rate

Retirement age 58 years 58 years 58 years 58 years

35 Th e total value of sales for project mentioned in note 36 for which revenue recognition is applicable is ` 11,296 millions. Out of which ` 8,394 millions was 
recognised in previous year and ̀  2,90 millions is recognised revenue for the year as per percentage completion method. Th e remaining amount i.e. outstanding 
book size is ` 2,611 millions.

36. Th e following is the summary of the projects for which revenue has been recognised
 ( ` in millions)

Location wise  Sale Consideration as 
on 31st Mar 2014

 Revenue Recognised till 
31st Mar 2013

 Revenue Recognised for 
FY 13-14

Outstanding 
Book Size

1 Completed Projects

 Lower Parel  471.58  473.48  (1.90)  -

 471.58  473.48  (1.90)  -

2  On going Projects

 Napean Sea Road  5,268.40  3,239.18  38.72  1,990.49

 Lower Parel  5,048.28  4,437.36  144.69  466.24

 Prarthna Samaj  507.56  244.01  108.86  154.69

 10,824.24  7,920.55  292.27  2,611.42

 Total  11,295.82  8,394.03  290.37  2,611.42

37. Previous Year Figures
 Th e previous year’s fi gures have been recast / regrouped / rearranged wherever considered necessary.

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors
Sharp and Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number 109982W Pujit Aggarwal Abdul Mohhamad Sattar 
by the hand of Managing Director & CEO Director

(DIN 00133373) (DIN 06656299)

Milind P. Phadke Ramashrya Yadav S R Soni
Partner Joint- CEO Company Secretary
Membership No. 33013
Place : Mumbai. Place : Mumbai.
Date: 29th May 2014 Date: 29th May 2014
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( ` in millions)

(A) Subsidiary Company

Orbit 
Highcity 
Private 
Limited

Ahinsa 
Buildtech 

Private 
Limited

Orbit 
Residency 

Private 
Limited

Orbit Habitat 
Private 
Limited

Mazda 
Construction 

Company 
Private 
Limited

Karmik 
Designs 
Private 

Limited*

(B) Holding Company’s Interest

(a)  No. of Equity Shares 8,903,226 8,500 10,000 10,000  100,000  767 

(b)   Extent of Holding 52.57% 85% 100% 100% 75.19% 75.19%

(C) Financial Year of the Company 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

(D) Net Aggregate amount of subsidiary company’s Profi t/
(Loss) so far as it concerns the members of the Holding 
Company and is not dealt with in Accounts of the 
Holding Company.

(a)   For the subsidiary company’s Financial year ended 
31st March 2014

 (43.15)  (20.82)  (2.38)  (6.09)  (0.18)  (0.06)

(b)   For the subsidiary company’s previous Financial 
years, since it became the Holding Company’s 
subsidiary. 

 (14.75)  248.26  (9.04)  (3.44)  (7.38)  (0.19)

(E) Net Aggregate amount of subsidiary Company’s Profi t/
(Loss) dealt with in Holding Company’s accounts

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

*Shares held through subsidiary

 For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors

Place : Mumbai.  Pujit Aggarwal
Date: 29th May 2014  Managing Director & CEO

 (DIN 00133373)

Statement under section 212 of the companies act, 1956
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O R B I T  C O R P O R AT I O N  L I M I T E D



(Kept Intentionally Blank)



To the Board of Directors of Orbit Corporation Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated fi nancial statements of Orbit 
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Orbit Group”), 
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March, 2014, and 
the consolidated statement of Profi t and Loss and the consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of signifi cant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated fi nancial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated fi nancial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated fi nancial position, 
consolidated fi nancial performance and consolidated cash fl ows of the Company 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. Th is 
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated 
fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated fi nancial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Th ose Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated fi nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated fi nancial statements. Th e procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the consolidated fi nancial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and presentation of 
the consolidated fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness on the Company’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi cient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the 
other auditors on the fi nancial statements of the subsidiaries as noted below, the 
consolidated fi nancial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the 
Orbit Group as at 31st March, 2014;

b) in the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profi t and Loss, of the loss of 
the Orbit Group for the year ended on that date; and

c) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash fl ows of 
the Orbit Group for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 27(2(a)) to the 
fi nancial statements as regards the income tax demands received by the 
Company for the assessment years 2004-05 to 2010-11 amounting to ` 1760.1 
millions Th e Company has fi led appeals against these demands and the matter 
is sub-judice

Other matters

In respect of the fi nancial statements of certain subsidiaries, we did not carry out 
the audit. Th ese fi nancial statements have been certifi ed by management and 
have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts 
included in respect of the subsidiaries, is based solely on these certifi ed fi nancial 
statements. Th e details of assets, revenues and net cash fl ows in respect of 
these subsidiaries, to the extent to which they are refl ected in the consolidated 
fi nancial statements are given below:

Certifi ed by management :
` in Millions

Total assets Total revenues Net cash infl ows 
/ (outfl ows)

Subsidiary 6000.27 150.35 1051.18

Our opinion is not qualifi ed in respect of these matters.

SHARP & TANNAN
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 109982W
by the hand of

MILIND P. PHADKE
Partner

Mumbai, 29th May, 2014 Membership No. 33013

Independent Auditors’ Report
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(` in millions)

Particulars Note No As at
31st March, 2014

As at
31st March, 2013

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 2  1,139.62  1,139.62
Reserves and surplus 3  7,868.20  9,425.70

 9,007.82  10,565.32

2 Minority Interest  1,335.77  1,378.60

3 Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 4  4,252.16  4,366.65
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 33  -  248.81
Other long term liabilities 5  481.29  493.04
Long-term provisions 6  18.29  20.43

 4,751.74  5,128.93
4 Current liabilities

 Short-term borrowings 7  2,800.96  1,355.54
 Trade payables 8  736.78  813.17
 Other current liabilities 9  7,795.36  6,176.99
 Short-term provisions 10  263.09  249.02

 11,596.19  8,594.72
TOTAL 26,691.52  25,667.57

II. ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

Fixed assets
 Tangible assets 11  216.60  254.22
 Intangible assets  30.70  30.70
 Goodwill on consolidation  8.47  8.47
Non-current investments 12  38.83  38.83
Deferred tax assets (net) 33  442.23  40.52
Long-term loans and advances 13  9,345.62  9,116.54

 10,082.45  9,489.28
2 Current assets

Current investments 12 - -
Inventories 14  7,431.89  7,204.77
Trade receivables 15  4,383.00  4,381.15
Cash and cash equivalents 16  1,078.93  1,047.39
Short-term loans and advances 13  1,056.11  1,080.95
Other current assets 17  2,659.14  2,464.03

 16,609.07  16,178.29
TOTAL  26,691.52  25,667.57
Signifi cant Accounting Policies 1

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2014

Th e notes referred to above form an integral part of the fi nancial statements

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors

Sharp and Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number 109982W
by the hand of 

Pujit Aggarwal
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN 00133373)

Abdul Mohhamad Sattar
Director
(DIN 06656299)

Milind P. Phadke
Partner
Membership No. 33013

Ramashrya Yadav
Joint -CEO

S R Soni
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2014

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2014
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Th e notes referred to above form an integral part of the fi nancial statements

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors

Sharp and Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number 109982W
by the hand of 

Pujit Aggarwal
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN 00133373)

Abdul Mohhamad Sattar
Director
(DIN 06656299)

Milind P. Phadke
Partner
Membership No. 33013

Ramashrya Yadav
Joint -CEO

S R Soni
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2014

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2014

(` in millions)

Particulars Note No Year Ended
31st March, 2014

Year Ended
31st March, 2013

Revenue from operations 18  360.12  2,989.65

Other income 19  128.58  119.43

Total Revenue  488.70  3,109.08

Expenses:

Cost of Real Estate Purchase , Materials and Consumption Expenses 20  286.97  674.39

Changes in inventories of fi nished goods and work in progress 21  (227.13)  349.23

Employee benefi ts expenses 22  143.92  146.68

Finance costs 23  1,889.58  1,545.24

Depreciation and amortization expenses 11  47.01  52.18

Other expenses 24  614.35  319.34

Total Expenses  2,754.70  3,087.06

Profi t before tax  (2,266.00)  22.02

Tax expense

Current tax  6.09  97.04

Less: Mat credit entitlement  -  41.20

Deferred tax  (650.52)  (219.79)

Short provision of tax in respect of earlier years  (16.33)  5.54

 -  -

Profi t after tax  (1,605.24)  98.03

Minority Interest  (42.83)  22.69

 -

Profi t for the year  (1,562.41)  75.34

Earnings per share (Basic and diluted) - Rupees 25  (13.71)  0.66

Face value per share - Rupees  10.00  10.00

Signifi cant Accounting Policies 1

Consolidated Statement of Profi t and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2014
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(` in millions)

Year Ended
31st March, 2014

Year Ended
31st March, 2013

A. Cash Flow from operating activities

 Net profi t before tax (2,266.00) 22.02

 Adjustments For: - -

 Depreciation 47.01 52.18

 Interest expense 1,889.58 1,545.25

 Employee stock option 3.16 (0.11)

 Wealth Tax 0.44 0.34

 (Profi t)/ Loss on sale of Assets (7.58) (0.06)

 Income from investment and Bank Deposits (87.74) (87.17)

 Operating profi t before working capital changes (421.13) 1,532.45

 Adjustments for:

 (Increase) / decrease in inventories (227.13) 349.23

 (Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables 2,424.46 (877.05)

 (Increase) / decrease in loans and advances (179.98) (502.94)

 (Increase) / decrease in other current assets (2,616.73) 5.47

 Increase / (decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities 110.33 313.33

 Increase / (decrease) in Advances received (10.50) (67.30)

 Cash generated from operations (920.68) 753.19

 Direct taxes paid (14.02) (41.57)

 Wealth tax paid (0.11) -

 Net cash from operating activities (934.81) 711.62

B. Cash fl ow from investing activities

 Purchase of fi xed assets (23.46) (14.42)

 Proceeds from sale of Fixed Assets 21.65 2.05

 Purchase of investments - -

 Sale of investments - 26.08

 Income from investments and Bank Deposits 83.07 48.92

 Adjustment on account of Amalgamation of Subsidiaries - 7.07

 Net cash (used in)/from investing activities 81.26 69.70

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2014
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Year Ended
31st March, 2014

Year Ended
31st March, 2013

C. Cash fl ow from fi nancing activities

 Issue of share capital in subsidiary - 47.25

 Expenses written off against share premium in subsidiary - -

 Proceeds from Debentures 47.30 1,400.00

 Proceeds Long Term Borrowings 1,090.68 697.69

 Proceeds short Term Borrowings 1,475.42 680.53

 Repayment Debentures (30.00) -

 Repayment Long Term Borrowings (1,174.03) (2,339.32)

 Repayment Short Term Borrowings (30.00) (283.12)

 Interest paid (494.28) (902.94)

 Final Dividend of FY 10-11 - (0.03)

Net cash (used in)/from fi nancing activities 885.09 (699.94)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 31.54 81.38

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,047.39 966.01

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period* 1,078.93 1,047.39

* Includes Fixed Deposits of ` 1,009.74 millions (Previous year: ` 962.78 millions) pledged as security for fi nancial assistance provided by Canara Bank

Notes:

1. Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard (AS) 3 “Cash Flow Statements” prescribed under the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

2. Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances.

3. Th e reported cashfl ows are inclusive of the movements resulting from subsidiaries amalgamated during the last year.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2014

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors

Sharp and Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number 109982W
by the hand of 

Pujit Aggarwal
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN 00133373)

Abdul Mohhamad Sattar
Director
(DIN 06656299)

Milind P. Phadke
Partner
Membership No. 33013

Ramashrya Yadav
Joint -CEO

S R Soni
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2014

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2014
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1 Signifi cant Accounting Policies

1.1 Basis of Accounting:

  Th e Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(’GAAP’) and in compliance with the Accounting Standards prescribed under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and other requirements of the 
Companies Act, 1956. Insurance and other claims are accounted for as and when admitted by the appropriate authorities.

 Th e preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with GAAP requires that the management of the Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities 
as of the date of the fi nancial statements. Examples of such estimates include the useful lives of fi xed assets, provision for doubtful debts/advances, future 
obligations in respect of retirement benefi t plans, etc. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively in the current and future periods. Wherever changes in presentation are made, comparative fi gures of the previous year are regrouped accordingly.

1.2 Revenue Recognition

 Income from real estate sales is recognised on the transfer of all signifi cant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyers and it is not unreasonable to expect 
ultimate collection and no signifi cant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration.

 Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates by the Company. Revenue from construction 
and project related activity is recognised by applying Percentage Completion Method (PCM) to sale of tenements. Percentage of completion is determined 
as a proportion of cost incurred to date (excluding property acquisition cost) to the total estimated project cost (excluding property acquisition cost). Project 
becomes eligible for revenue recognition when the percentage of completion of project exceeds 25%.

1.3 Fixed Asset

 Fixed assets are capitalised at acquisition cost, including directly attributable costs such as freight, insurance and specifi c installation charges for bringing the 
assets to working condition for use.

 Expenditure relating to existing fi xed assets is added to the cost of the assets, where it increases the performance / life of the asset as assessed earlier.

 Fixed assets are eliminated from fi nancial statements either on disposal or when retired from active use.

1.4  Intangible assets and Amortisation

 Intangible assets are recognised as per the criteria specifi ed in Accounting Standard (AS) 26 ‘Intangible Assets’.

 Intangible asset are recognised at cost of acquisition and are tested for impairment on annual basis.

1.5  Investments

 Investments are classifi ed into long term and current investments.

 Long term investments are carried at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, in the value of each long term investment is made to recognise a decline, other than 
of a temporary nature.

 Current investments are carried individually at lower of cost and fair value and the resultant decline, if any, is charged to revenue.

1.6  Inventories

 Inventory of fi nished tenements are valued at lower of the cost or net realizable value. Inventories of work in progress includes cost of land, premium for 
development rights, construction costs and allocated interest and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the Company and are valued at cost.

1.7 Depreciation

 Depreciation on fi xed assets has been provided on written down value, at the rates and in the manner specifi ed in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

1.8  Employee Stock Option Scheme

 Employee Stock Options are evaluated and accounted on intrinsic value method as per the accounting treatment prescribed by Guidance Note on ‘Accounting 
for Employee Share-based payments’ issued by ICAI read with SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme & Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines 1999 
issued by SEBI. Th e excess of market value, if any, of the stock options as on the date of vesting over the exercise price of the options is recognised as deferred 
employee compensation and is charged to the profi t and loss account on vesting basis over the vesting period of the options. Th e un-amortized portion of the 
deferred employee compensation, if any, is reduced from Employee Stock Option Outstanding.

1.9  Borrowing costs

  Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets till 
such time as the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period over twelve months of time 
to get ready for its intended use or sale.

 All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014

1.10 Retirement�Benefi ts

 Retirement benefi ts to the employees comprise of payments under defi ned contribution plans like Provident Fund and Family Pension. Th e liability in respect 
of defi ned benefi t scheme like Gratuity is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the year end. Provisions for / contributions for leave encashment 
benefi ts are made on actual basis.

1.11 Taxes on income

 Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961, and based on expected outcome of assessments / appeals.

  Deferred tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, on timing differences, being the difference between 
taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent period.

  Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty supported by convincing evidence that suffi cient 
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

 Deferred tax is quantifi ed using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date.

1.12 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

 a Provision are recognised for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of estimation, if

 i. the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event,

 ii. a probable outfl ow of resources is expected to settle the obligation; and

 iii. the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

 b Reimbursements by another party, expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision, is recognised when it is virtual certain that 
reimbursement will be received if obligation is settled.

 c Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of

 i. a present obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an outfl ow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

 ii. a possible obligation, unless the probability of outfl ow of resources is remote.

 d  Contingent assets neither disclosed nor recognised.

 e Provision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

1.13  Events occurring after the date of balance sheet

 Where material, events occurring after the date of the Balance Sheet are considered upto the date of approval of accounts by the Board of Directors.

1.14 Foreign Currency Transactions

 All transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates the relevant transactions take place.

 Monetary Assets and Liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding at the close of the year, are converted in Indian Currency at the appropriate rates of exchange 
prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet. Resultant gain or loss is accounted during the year.

1.15 Earnings Per Share

 Th e amount considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share constitutes the net loss after tax.

 Th e number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

  Th e number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings 
per share and also the weighted average number of shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential shares.

 Diluted EPS is calculated on the number of equity shares outstanding as on the balance sheet date and also the dilutive component of employee stock options. 
Dilutive nature have been calculated as difference between fair value i.e. Average six months daily closing price as on 31st March 2013 and actual conversion 
price for such warrants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014

(` in millions)

2 Share Capital
 As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013

 Number  Amounts  Number  Amounts
Authorised Equity Capital
Equity Shares of ` 10 each  199,750,000  1,997.50  199,750,000  1,997.50

Redeemable Non cumulative Preference share of `10 each  250,000  2.50  250,000  2.50

 200,000,000  2,000  200,000,000  2,000
Issued , Subscribed and Paid up
Equity Shares of `10 each 113,961,890  1,139.62 113,961,890  1,139.62

Redeemable Non cumulative Preference share of `10 each  -  -  -  -

 113,961,890  1,139.62  113,961,890  1,139.62
a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at beginning and at end of 

reporting year
Equity Capital
Balance at the beginning of the year 113,961,890  1,139.62 113,961,890  1,139.62

Add : Issued during the year  -  -  -  -

Less: Bought back during the year  -  -  -  -

Balance at the end of the year  113,961,890  1,139.62  113,961,890  1,139.62

b Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares

 Th e Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of `10/- per share. Each holder of Equity shares is� entitled to one vote per share. Th e 
Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.� Th e dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the 
ensuing General Meeting, except� interim dividend.

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets , if any of the Company after distribution of 
all preferential amounts. Th e distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 Terms/ Rights attached to Preference Shares

 If at any time, the share capital by reason of issue of Preference shares or otherwise is divided into different classes of shares, then all or any of the rights and 
privileges attached to any class, then the rights and restrictions attaching to the Redeemable Preference Shares shall differ from those attaching to Equity 
Shares as follows:

 Th e Redeemable Preference Shares carry rights to receive dividends.

 Th e holders of Redeemable Preference Shares have no rights to receive notices of, attend or vote at general meetings except in certain limited circumstances 
affecting their interests & rights.

 Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 1956, the Company shall have the right to redeem the Redeemable Preference Shares at any time on giving not 
less than seven days’ written notice.

 On a distribution of assets of the Company, on a winding-up or other return of capital (subject to certain exceptions), the holders of Redeemable Preference 
Shares have priority over the holders of Ordinary Shares to receive the capital paid-up on those shares.

c Shareholding more than 5 percent As on 31st March 2014 As on 31st March 2013
Name of the shareholder  No of

Shares held 
 % of 

Shareholding 
 No of

Shares held 
 % of 

Shareholding
Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal  21,896,758 19.21%  22,183,762 19.47%

Mr. Pujit Aggarwal  22,713,899 19.93%  25,020,365 21.96%

Emgee Foils Private Ltd  6,335,111 5.56%

d Shares reserved for issue under options

 ESOP Scheme 2012

  At an Annual General Meeting held on 24th September , 2012 resolution to grant upto 1,200,000 options to employees was approved which entitles the option 
holders to subscribe to one equity shares of the company of face value of `10 per option granted at grant price on such terms and conditions as may be fi xed 
or determined by the board.

 (Refer Note 34 for details)

1 4 T H A N N U A L  R E P O R T  -  2 0 1 3 - 2 0 1 4

6 6



Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014

e Details of shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus issues and brought back 
during the last 5 years to be given for each class of shares

Equity Capital
Year Ended Face Value (`) Bonus issue Buy back of 

shares 
Without payment 
received in cash

31st March 2014  -  -  -  -
31st  March 2013  -  -  -  -
31st  March 2012  -  -  -
31st  March 2011  10  56,980,945  -  -
31st  March 2010  -  -  -  -
Total  56,980,945  -  -
Preference share
Year Ended Face Value Bonus issue Redemption of 

shares 
Without payment 
received in cash

31st  March 2014  -  -  -  -
31st  March 2013  -  -  -  -
31st  March 2012  10  -  160,000  -
31st  March 2011  -  -  -  -
31st  March 2010  -  -  -  -
Total  -  160,000  -

(` in millions)

3 Reserves and retained earnings  As at 
 31st March 2014 

 As at
 31st March 2013

Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year  1.89  1.89
Add: Transfer from Profi t /Loss account  -  -
Balance at the end of the year  1.89  1.89
Securities Premium Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year  3,736.55  3,736.55
Add: Received during the year  -  -
Balance at the end of the year  3,736.55  3,736.55
Share of Securities Premium in Subsidiaries  945.09  945.09
Debenture Redemption Reserve  -  -
Balance at the beginning of the year  1,500.00  1,500.00
Add: Additions during the year  -  -
Less: Deletion during the year  -  -
Balance at the end of the year  1,500.00  1,500.00
Employees Stock Options outstanding
Balance at the beginning of the year  2.26  2.40
Add: Additions during the year  7.18  -
Less: Deletion during the year  (2.25)  0.14
Balance at the end of the year  7.18  2.26
General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year  281.48  281.48
Add: Additions during the year  -  -
Less: Deletion during the year  -  -
Balance at the end of the year  281.48  281.48
Surplus /(defi cit) in the statement of profi t and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year  2,958.43  2,883.08
Profi t / (Loss) for the year  (1,562.41)  75.34
Less: Minority Interest in Prior year Losses  -  -
Less: Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve  -  -
Balance at the end of the year  1,396.02  2,958.42

Total Reserves & Surplus  7,868.20  9,425.70
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Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014

4 Borrowings
 As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current

a Secured Loans

Debentures

1,470 (Previous year 1500) Secured Non Convertible Debentures of 
`1,000,000 each.

 1,200.00  270.00  1,440.00  60.00

140 (Previous year 140 ) Secured Non Convertible Debentures of 
`10,000,000 each.

 420.00  980.00  1,120.00  280.00

Vehicle loans from banks  27.26  18.23  45.13  20.20

Loans from Banks  1,134.80  784.30  500.00  1,494.22

Loans from Institutions  -  1,367.87  -  1,517.55

 2,782.06  3,420.40  3,105.13  3,371.97

b Unsecured Loans

Debentures

9,473 (Previous year 9,000) 14.75% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 
of `100,000 each

 947.30  -  900.00  -

Loans and advances from related parties

From Directors (interest free)  238.87  -  200.13  -

From Other Bodies corporate  163.69  -  41.12  -

Others

From Other Bodies corporate  105.24  23.15  105.25  23.15

From others  15.00  -  15.00  -

 1,470.11  23.15  1,261.51  23.15

 -  -  -  -

Total Borrowings  4,252.16  3,443.55  4,366.65  3,395.12

c Details of borrowings guaranteed by the directors

- Long Term

Non Convertible Debentures  2,870.00

Vehicle Loans  40.87

Loans from banks  1,919.10

Loans from Institutions  1,367.87

-Short Term  -

Others  805.62

Total  7,003.47

(` in millions)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014

(` in millions)

d During the year the Company has defaulted in repayment of loans and interest in respect of the following:

Particulars

 Period (upto balancesheet date)

One Day
More than 

One day to Six 
months

Seventh month 
to Twelve 
months

More than 
Twelve months 

to Eighteen 
Months

Total

1 Principal

 Loans from banks  299.40  484.90  -  -  784.30

 Loans from Institutes  -  115.92  677.09  574.87  1,367.87

 Non Convertible Debentures  140.00  170.00  -  -  310.00

 Others  -  50.00  100.00  -  150.00

 Total Principal*  439.40  820.82  777.09  574.87  2,612.17

2  Interest

a  Long Term Borrowings

 Non Convertible Debentures  78.48  150.26  59.44  -  288.19

 Loans from banks  30.60  99.89  92.81  164.99  388.27

 Loans from Institutes  26.15  127.49  85.89  -  239.53

b  Short Term Borrowings

 Loans from banks  12.33  68.62  52.70  36.88  170.53

 Other Body corporate  2.98  17.76  21.73  -  42.48

 Total Default Interest*  150.55  464.02  312.57  201.87  1,129.01

*Th e overdue amount is in various stages of reschdulement with respective banks and Financial institution

e Details of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) issued by the Company along with redemption details

a) Th e Company has entered into an investment agreement dated 27th January, 2010 (Investment Agreement) with IL&FS Trust Company Limited, IIRF India 
Realty X Limited, Moltana Holdings Limited, Rodere Holdings Limited and Orbit Corporation Limited for funding of `1,650,000,000 using a combination of 
Debentures and Equity. In accordance with such agreement, the following Debentures were allotted:

Debenture-holders  No. of Debentures  Total

IL & FS Trust Company Limited  66 46 140 13  265

Moltana Holdings Limited  2,284 1604 4860 460  9,208

Total  2,350 1650 5000 473  9,473

Date of allotment 22 March 2010 2 April 2011 27 March 2012 31-Jan-14

Date of redemption 21 March 2016 1 April 2017 26 March 2018 30-Jan-20

b) Other relevant conversion terms of CCDs

 CCD will be entitled to interest on the face value from the effective date till the date of conversion into equity shares, at the rate of 14.75%. Domestic taxes, if 
any on such interest needs to be borne by the Company.

 Th e CCDs shall be compulsorily converted into Equity shares, having the same rights and ranking pari passu with other ordinary fully paid up Equity shares of 
the Company, on such terms and conditions as stipulated in the Investment Agreement. Any stamp duty on the Agreement, issuance of Debentures, and/or 
issuance of Equity shares as a result of conversion of debentures shall be borne by the Company.

 At the end of 72 (seventy two) months from the date of issuance of the CCDs by the Company, the CCDs shall automatically convert into Equity shares to the 
extent not already converted, at the terms set out in the Investment Agreement.

 Th e Investors shall have the right (but not the obligation) to convert at any time from the agreement date any or all of the CCDs into Equity shares of the 
Company, at the terms set out in the Investment Agreement.

 On actual conversion of the CCDs, the number of fully paid Equity shares to be issued and allotted upon conversion of CCDs, shall be subject to appropriate 
adjustments for (i) any bonus issue of shares; or (ii) consolidation or sub-division of shares, including a share split; or (iii) issue of shares on rights basis; or 
(iv) any other dilution or consolidation events that may have occurred prior to such conversion but after the Investment Agreement date.

6 9



Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014

c) Th e details of default in respect of Interest on Compulsorily Convertible Debentures is as follows:-

Particulars

 Period (upto balancesheet date)

One Day
More than one 

year and one day 
to two years

Two years to 
Th ree years

More than Th ree 
years Total

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures  183.42  132.75  84.98  325.04  726.19

d Security Details

Sr 
No Name of Lender Facility & Loan 

Documentation

Amount 
Outstanding 
( ` in Mn.)

Interest Rate 
p.a Repayment Schedule* ( ` in Mn.)

Details of security offered for Loan from Banks

Term loans and overdraft facilities which are secured by registered mortgages of certain freehold lands / properties of the Company / Subsidiary Companies 
and / or against future receivables of the Company / Subsidiary Companies and / or directors' personal guarantee.

1 State Bank of India Term loan 348.80 15.75% Sep 2013-91.40 mn 

Dec 2013-129 mn

March 2014-128.40 mn

2  Union Bank of India Term loan 435.50 15.90% Sep 2013-93.50 mn 

Dec 2013-171 mn

March 2014-1710 mn

3 Axis Bank OD 284.80 15.25% Twelve equal monthly  installment starting  from February 2016

3 Axis Bank Term loan 850.00 15.25% Twelve equal monthly  installment starting  from February 2016

4 Canara Bank Working Capital 
Loan

800.62 11.35% On Demand

 Vehicle Loan against hypothecation of respective vehicles and Directors' personal guarantee

1 HDFC Bank Ltd, ICICI Bank and 
Canara Bank

Vehicle Loan 45.48 various rates 
@ average of 

10.76%

Various installments upto October 2018

Details of security offered for Loan from Institutions

Term loans and overdraft facilities which are secured by registered mortgages of certain freehold and leasehold lands / properties of the Company / Subsidiary 
Companies and / or against future receivables of the Company / Subsidiary Companies and / or directors' personal guarantee/pledge of shares

1 LIC - Non Convertible 
Debenture (NCDs)

Working Capital 
Loan

1470 13.32%

Quarterly payment of ` 30 mn - Jan 2014 to July 2014 

Quarterly payment of ` 90 mn - October 2014 to July 2015 

Quarterly payment of ` 130 mn- October 2015 to July 2016 

Quarterly payment of ` 125 mn -October 2016 to July 2017 

2 Edelweiss Commodities 
Services  Ltd.- NCDS

General Corporate 
Purposes

1400 14% Quarterly payment of ` 140 mn- December 2013 to March 2014.

Quarterly payment of ` 175 mn- June 2014 to March 2015.

Quarterly payment of ` 210 mn- June 2015 to September 2015.

3 LIC Housing Finance Ltd. Term loan 877.08 16.00% Monthly installments of Rs 80 mn starting from  Sep 2012 to June 
2013 and ` 87.09 mn in July 2013

4 IFCI Ltd Corporate Loan 490.80 18.75% February 2013- ` 24.88 mn

March 2013 - ` 100 mn 

Monthly installments of Rs 50 mn starting from April 2013 to 
September 2013

October 2013 - ` 65.96 mn

1 4 T H A N N U A L  R E P O R T  -  2 0 1 3 - 2 0 1 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014

Details of security offered for Loan from Corporate

Secured by registered mortgages of certain freehold lands / properties of the Company / Subsidiary Companies and / or directors' personal guarantee.

1 JBF Industries Limited Corporate Loan 150 26% Monthly installments of ` 15 mn April 2013 , May 2013, July 2013, 
August 2013, October 2013 and November 2013

Monthly installments of Rs 20 mn June 2013, September 2013 and 
December 2013.

2 Capri Global Advisory Services 
Pvt Ltd

Corporate Loan                  
36.21 

24% July 2014 - 36.21 mn

3 Parshwanath Buildcon Pvt Ltd Corporate Loan                  
10.00 

24% July 2014 - 10 mn

4 Sukumar Properties Pvt. Ltd Corporate Loan                    
5.00 

24% July 2014 - 5 mn

5 Capri Global Advisory Services 
Pvt Ltd

Corporate Loan                 
566.79 

23% September 2014 - 566.79 mn

6 Parshwanath Buildcon Pvt Ltd Corporate Loan                 
433.67 

23% September 2014 - 433.67 mn

*Th e repayment schedule provides status as on 31st March 2014. However, the same may undergo substantial modifi cation as overdue amount is in various stages of 
reschdulement with respective banks and Financial institutions.

(` in millions)

5 Other Long term liabilities  As at 31st March 2014  As at  31st March 2013

Advances from customers                        476.81                       488.91 

Application money for I.P.O.  to be refunded                            0.01                          0.01 

Deposits                            4.47                          4.12 

                              -                               -   

                       481.29                      493.04 

(` in millions)

6 Long Term Provision  As at 31st March 2014  As at  31st March 2013

Provision for Leave Encashment                            8.16                        10.24 

Provision for Gratuity                          10.13                        10.19 

                         18.29                        20.43 

(` in millions)

7 Short-term borrowings  As at 31st March 2014  As at  31st March 2013

Secured

   From Bank                        800.62                       800.62 

   From Others                      1,201.67                       175.00 

Unsecured

Related Party

From  Other Body corporate                            4.92                          4.92 

Others                               -                               -   

From  Other Bodies corporate                        773.75                       355.00 

From  Others                          20.00                        20.00 

                    2,800.96                    1,355.54 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014

(` in millions)

8 Trade Payables  As at 31st March 2014  As at  31st March 2013

- Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises                               -                               -   

-  Others

   Goods supplied                        380.91                       342.97 

   Expenses                          87.65                       103.26 

   Others                        268.22                       366.94 

                       736.78                       813.17 

(` in millions)

9 Other Current Liabilities  As at 31st March 2014  As at  31st March 2013

Current maturities of long term borrowings                      3,443.55                    3,395.12 

Interest accrued and due on borrowings                      1,855.19                       939.53 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings                        660.63                       284.18 

Unpaid Dividend                            1.67                          1.67 

Others Statutory Liabilities                        265.73                       164.69 

Others Current Liabilities                        178.42                          3.23 

Advances from customers                      1,390.17                    1,388.57 

                    7,795.36                    6,176.99 

(` in millions)

10 Short Term Provision  As at 31st March 2014  As at  31st March 2013

Provision for Expenses                          12.08                        35.69 

Provision for taxation                        250.16                       212.95 

Provision for wealth tax                            0.71                          0.38 

Provision for compensated absences                            0.14                             -   

                       263.09                      249.02 
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(` in millions)

12 Investments (Valued at Cost)
 As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 

Investment in Property  38.24  -  38.24  - 

Unquoted

Investments in Equity Instruments

Property Redevelopers Association  0.06  -  0.06  - 

6,250 (Previous year 6,250) shares of `10 each, fully paid up

Th e Pen Co-operative Urban Bank Limited  0.50  -  0.50  - 

2,000 (Previous year 2,000 ) shares of `250 each, fully paid up.

Th e Saraswat Co-Op.Bank Ltd.  0.03  -  0.03  - 

2,500 (Previous year 2,500 ) shares of `10 each, fully paid up.

 38.83  -  38.83  - 

(` in millions)

13 Loans and Advances  As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 

 - Unsecured considered good

a Capital Advances

Advance for Fixed Assets  -  -  -  10.24 

b Security Deposits

Deposits - Director  288.76  -  288.76  - 

Other Deposits  29.84  0.62  33.55  0.62 

c Advances to Related Parties

Advances paid for acquisition of properties to Related parties  3,004.78  -  2,919.13  - 

Other advances  -  8.67  -  6.97 

For goods  -  1.76  -  2.85 

d Other loans and advances

Advances paid for Joint Development  2,483.58  -  2,483.58  - 

Advances paid for acquisition of properties  3,301.25  225.30  3,178.05  198.27 

Advance for Expenses  -  17.42  -  11.13 

Advances to suppliers  -  102.51  -  194.75 

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received  -  663.27  -  646.63 

Advance payment of taxes  236.75  -  213.29  - 

Service tax credit receivable  0.66  24.21  0.18  9.49 

Taxes recoverable from customers  -  12.35  -  - 

MAT Credit Entitlement  -  -  -  - 

 9,345.62  1,056.11  9,116.54  1,080.95 

Loans and advances include amounts due from:

1 Director  288.76  -  288.76  - 

2 Private companies in which any director is a director or member  2,451.73  8.67  2,450.78  3.47 

3 Offi cer of the Company  -  1.24  -  1.24 

 2,740.49  9.91  2,739.54  4.70 

Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014
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14 Inventories  As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 

Finished goods  -  -  -  - 

Closing Work-in-Progress  -  7,431.89  -  7,204.77 

 -  7,431.89  -  7,204.77 

(` in millions)

15 Trade receivables  As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they 
are due for payment

 -  4,123.80  -  1,714.07 

Trade receivables  -  259.20  -  2,667.08 

 -  - 

 -  4,383.00  -  4,381.15 

(` in millions)

16 Cash and Bank Balances  As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 

Cash and cash equivalents  - 

Cash on hand  -  28.52  -  43.24 

Balances with banks 

 on current accounts  -  11.07  -  1.07 

 on dividend accounts  -  (42.91)  (42.91)

 Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months*  -  1,082.26  -  - 

Other bank balances

 Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months*  -  1,045.99 

 but less than 12 months

 -  1,078.93  -  1,047.39 

* Includes Fixed Deposits of ` 1,009.74 millions (Previous year: ` 962.78 millions) pledged as security for fi nancial assistance provided by Canara Bank

(` in millions)

17 Other current assets  As at 31st March 2014  As at 31st March 2013 

 Non Current  Current  Non Current  Current 

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits  4.69  -  37.70 

Unbilled Customers  2,654.45  2,426.33 

 -  2,659.14  -  2,464.03 

(` in millions)

18 Revenue from operations For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Revenue generated from completed projects  (1.90)  48.95 

Revenue recognised for projects under progress  361.76  2,940.70 

(Details Refer note 36)  -  - 

Others  0.26  - 

 360.12  2,989.65 

Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014
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19 Other Income
For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Interest Income

- Bank Deposits  87.74  86.63 

- Other Advances  23.52  28.43 

Dividend

- Mutual Funds  -  0.54 

- Shares -  0.01 

Others

-Profi t/loss on Sale of Asset  7.71  0.06 

-Other Income  9.61  3.76 

 128.58  119.43 

(` in millions)

20 Cost of Real Estate Purchase , Materials and Consumption Expenses For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Property Acquisition Cost  4.77  103.46 

(Including Tenants Buyback and Accomodation cost)  -  - 

Stamp duty and Registration charges  47.35  - 

Project Material Cost  28.53  225.44 

Labour Charges / Works Contract charges  124.54  295.40 

Legal and Professional fees  12.05  9.12 

Insurance  2.57  2.51 

Rates and Taxes  0.65  2.31 

Approval and permissions charges  42.56  16.49 

Compensation Expenses  4.58  4.58 

Other Direct expenses related to Projects  19.37  15.08 

Total Cost of Real Estate Purchase , Materials and Consumption Expenses  286.97  674.39 

(` in millions)

21 Change in Inventories For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Closing Work-in-Progress
 Finished goods  -  - 

 Work in progress  (7,431.89)  (7,204.77)

Opening Work-in-Progress
 Finished goods  -  - 

 Work in progress  7,204.77  7,373.06 

 Addition on new subsidiary  180.94 

 (227.13)  349.23 

(` in millions)

22 Employee Related Costs For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Salaries ,Wages ,bonus and Benefi ts  125.24  130.81 

Contribution to Provident Fund  8.31  7.55 

Employee Stock Option Scheme  3.16  (0.11)

Staff Welfare Expenses  7.21  8.43 

 143.92  146.68 

Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014
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23 Finance costs For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Interest on Non Convertible Debentures  448.24  263.09 

Interest on Compulsorily Convertible Debentures  221.47  147.50 

Interest on Other Loan  1,111.12  1,066.88 

Interest on Income tax  21.33  10.86 

Interest on tax deducted at source  25.06  17.60 

Other Interest and Finance Charges  62.36  39.31 

 1,889.58  1,545.24 

(` in millions)

24 Other Expenses For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Legal and Professional fees  48.85  92.33 

Labour charges  10.05  31.01 

Insurance  4.10  6.20 

Rent  33.45  45.15 

Rates and Taxes  14.34  - 

Approval and permissions charges  94.12 -

Repairs and Maintenance 

-Buildings  -  - 

-Plant and Machinery  -  - 

-Others  3.30  3.18 

Business Promotion  14.49  15.43 

Auditors Remuneration  4.41  4.48 

Compensation Expenses  330.20  - 

Advertisement and Publicity  0.34  0.65 

Travelling Expenses  4.20  8.49 

Wealth Tax  0.44  0.34 

Other general and administration Expenses  52.06  112.09 

 614.35  319.34 

25 Earnings Per Share For the year Ended
 31st March 2014 

For the year Ended
 31st March 2013 

Net Profi t attributable to Equity Share Holder ( ` in millions)  (1,562.41)  75.34 

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year  113,961,890  113,961,890 

Weighted Average number of shares  113,961,890  113,961,890 

Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of employee stock options  -  14,232 

Number of shares for computation of Diluted EPS  113,961,890  113,976,122 

Basic EPS (In `.)  (13.71) 0.66

Diluted EPS (In `.)  (13.71) 0.66

Face Value per Equity Share(In `.) 10 10

Potential equity shares on account of employee stock options conversion would decrease loss 
per share and hence anti dilutive , are ignored in calculating diluted earnings per share.

Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014

26 Basis of Preparation

 Th e Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) are prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 21 “Consolidated Financial Statements”, issued by the 
Companies Accounting Standard Amendment Rules, 2006. Th e CFS comprises the fi nancial statements of Orbit Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries. 

 Th e signifi cant accounting policies and notes to the CFS are intended for better understanding of the Group’s fi nancial position. In this respect, the Company 
has disclosed such policies and notes which represent the required disclosures.

27 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

 1 Corporate Guarantee 

  a Th e Company had provided corporate guarantee on behalf of Bhagyodaya Infrastructure Development Limited, the principal contractor for few 
projects undertaken by the Company, for availing credit facility to the extent of ` 99.00 million from State Bank of India. Loan Outstanding as on 
31st March 2014 is `99.92 million including interest.

  b Claims made against the Companys subsidiaries not acknowledged as obligations – `50.81 millions (Previous year `51.76 millions).
It is not practical to estimate the timing of cash outfl ows, if any, in respect of Note b above, pending conclusion of negotiations.

 2 Other money for which the company is contingently liable

  a In continuation of Note 33(b), the Company has received Appeal orders for Assessment year 2004-05 to 2010-11 passed by CIT (Appeals) 38, 
Mumbai and also received demand notice U/s 156 of the Income Tax Act, 1961. As per the said demand notice, the Income Tax department has 
raised demand for Income Tax and interest thereon for an amount of ` 1719.91 millions. However, the company has contested the said order and 
the demand raised thereon by fi ling appeal before Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. 

   Th e Company has received Assessment orders for Assessment year 2011-12 passed by Dy. Commissioner of Income Tax , Centre Circle-47, Mumbai 
U/s 143(3) o f Income Tax Act 1961 and also received demand notice U/s 156 of the Income Tax Act 1961. As per said demand notice, the Income 
Tax department has raised demand for Income Tax & Interest thereon for an amount of `17.86 millions. However the company has contested the 
said order and the demand raised theron by fi lling appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). 

   Th e Company is confi dent that it will succeed in both the appeal fi led based on the available documents & evidence and the liability will not get 
materialize.

  b A matter is sub-judice as a reason of certain differences and disputes between Orbit Corporation Limited and one of its clients, Rosy Blue (India) 
Private Limited . Due to the various claims and counterclaims and the complexcity of the pending litigation it is not practicable for the management 
to quantify the estimate of its fi nancial effects or liability that may arise in the matter.

  c During the year ended 31st March 2013, Orbit Highcity Private Ltd. has received a demand notice u/s 156 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for assessment 
year 2010-11 of `40.20 mn against which an appeal has been fi led with the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). However fi nancial liability for 
the same is currently not ascertainable .

  d LIC Housing Finance Ltd. has initiated action under Section 13(2) and 13(4) of the SARFAESI Act, 2002 by taking physical possession of the property 
(including land) belonging to the subsidiary company Ahinsa Buildtech Private Limited viz., ORP (excluding 155 apartments). Th e Company has 
fi led an application with the Debts Recovery Tribunal, seeking an order to restrain from taking further steps. Th e Hon’ble tribunal has granted an 
interim relief vide its order dated 29.04.2014, allowing the company to access the property for development with certain conditions.

28 Segment Reporting

 Th e Company’s business activities fall within a single segment, viz. real estate and redevelopment and predominantly operates in domestic market. Accordingly, 
disclosure requirements under Accounting Standard (AS) 17 ‘Segment Reporting’, is not applicable.

29 Trade Receivables, Trade payable and loans and advances are subject to confi rmation and reconciliation, if any

30 Borrowing cost 

 Borrowing cost specifi c to Project is capitalised as project cost and are charged to revenue based on percentage completion. Other Borrowing costs are charged 
to revenue.

 During the year Interest cost `1,484.97 millions ( P.Y. `962.89 millions)had been charged to revenue (including portion of accumulated interest). 

31 Th e list of Subsidiaries included in the consolidated fi nancial statements are as under:

Name of Subsidiary Country of 
Incorporation

Proportion of ownership as at
31st March, 2014

Proportion of ownership as at 
31st March, 2013

Orbit Highcity Private Limited India 52.57% 52.57%

Ahinsa Buildtech Private Limited India 85.00% 85.00%

Orbit Habitat Private Limited India 100% 100%

Orbit Residency Private Limited India 100% 100%

Mazda Construction Company Private Limited (MCCPL) India 75.19% 75.19%

Karmik Designs Private Limited India Wholly owned subsidiary of MCCPL Wholly owned subsidiary of MCCPL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014

32 Related Parties

1 List of related parties
a Key Management  Personnel
1 Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal Chairman & Executive Director

2  Mr. Pujit Aggarwal Managing Director & CEO

b Others
Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise Signifi cant infl uence

1  Apex Hotel Enterprises Private Limited

2  Emgee  Foils  Private Limited

3  Orbit Compel Infra-Build Private Limited

4  Orbit Entertainment  Private Limited

5  Orbit Exquisites Housing Private Limited

6  Orbit Infraserve Private Limited

7  Orbit Socio  Foundation

8  Revati Academic & Infrastructure Private  Limited

9 Ambuj Infrastructure Private Limited

10 Brio Academic Infrastructure and Resource  Management Private Limited 

11 Charm Mercantile Private Limited*

12 Nitika Multitrading Private Limited

13 Orbit Abode Private Limited

14 Orbit Dwelling Private Limited

15 Orbit Eduworld Private Limited

16 Orbit Evolve Developers Private Limited

17 Orbit Lifestyle City Developers Private Limited

18 Orbit Parkcity Private Limited

19 Orbit Parkland Developers Private Limited

20 Orbit Power & Transmission Private Limited  

21 Orbit Raking  Solutions  Limited

22 Orbit Facility Service Private Limited

23 Orbit Translink & Logistics Private Limited

24 Pheonix Appliances Private Limited

25 Property Redevelopers Association

26 Orbit Eduserve Private Limited.

27 Orbit Evolve Infra Private Limited.

* Charm Mercantile Private Limited is not a related party  w.e.f. 16.08.2013

2 Names of the related parties with whom transactions were carried out during  the year and description of relationship
a Key Management  Personnel
1 Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal Chairman & Executive Director

2  Mr. Pujit Aggarwal Managing Director & CEO

b Others
Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise Signifi cant infl uence

1 Orbit Abode Private Limited

2 Property  Redevelopers  Association

3 Pheonix Appliances Private Limited

4 Orbit Dwelling Private Limited

5 Orbit Lifestyle City Developers Private Limited

6 Emgee Foils Private Limited

7 Orbit Facility Services Private Limited

8 Orbit Eduworld Private Limited

9 Ambuj Infrastucture Private Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014

3a Disclosure of related party transactions for KMPS

Sr. 
No.

Particulars KMPs

For the year ended 
31st March 2014

For the year ended 
31st March 2013

1 Loan Taken  84.10  182.51 

Loan Repaid  45.36  123.80 

Closing Balance  238.87  200.13 

2 Rent Paid  33.71  33.71 

3 Managerial Remuneration & Salaries  9.60  9.60 

4 Deposits

During the year  -  - 

Closing Balance  288.76  288.76 

3b Disclosure of related party transactions for Others

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March 2014

For the year ended 
31st March 2013

Property Advances

Advance Granted  0.31  10.27 

Advance Recovered  -  4.49 

Closing Balance  2,919.44  2,919.13 

Other Advances

Advance Granted  3.86  2.68 

Advance Recovered  2.15  0.03 

Closing Balance  8.67  6.97 

Long Term Borrowings

Loan Taken  122.56  1.03 

Loan Repaid  0.01  42.23 

Closing balance- Borrowings  163.69  41.13 

Short Term Borrowings

Loan Taken  -  - 

Loan Repaid  -  - 

Closing balance- Borrowings  4.92  4.92 

Supplier Advance  1.76  2.85 

33 Note on Taxes

 a Th e Company considering interlia, the legislative intent of the provisions of the Section 80-IB (10) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, particularly with respect 
to the deduction of the profi ts derived from redevelopment of buildings/properties, is of the considered opinion that it shall be entitled to a 100% 
deduction of its profi ts derived from such property redevelopment activities

  undertaken in accordance with Development Control Regulations (DCR) in force in the state of Maharashtra, notwithstanding approvals etc. in terms of 
provisions of the said Section 80-IB (10). Accordingly the taxable profi t computed in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 have been 
reduced to the extent of claim u/s. 80-IB (10).

  Th e company has applied for admission at settlement commission for various issues inter alia under section 80-IB(10) claim made by the Company, to 
which Income Tax department had contested upon. 

  Th e company has been granted interim relief in form of stay order against abatement of all cases. In view of the matter being subject of scrutiny by 
Settlement Commission and further verifi cation of facts, the same is subjudice for deduction u/s 80 - IB(10). Submission of facts & justifi cation of the 
said claim is in process through various hearing from time to time at the Hon’ble Income Tax Settlement Commission.
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  Th ere is no changes in the cumulative provision for tax as in view of loss during the fi nancial year ended 2014 (A.Y 2014-15)

  In addition to the amount of ` 964.11 millions provided cumulative for previous years for tax, ` 776.79 millions may be an additional amount for the same 
in case the deduction U/s 80 IB (10) is not available for such previous years.

 b Th e Company inter alia had received notice U/s 153A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 in respect of search carried out by the relevant authority in February 
2010. Th e Company has fi led return for the same and also for the cases pending with Hon’ble Income Tax Settlement Commission. Th e Income Tax 
department has passed orders assessment yearwise in response to the said returns fi led by the Company. However the company has contested the said 
orders and the demand raised thereon by fi ling appeal before Income Tax Appellate Tribunal.

 c Deferred Tax

(` in millions)

 As at 
31.03.2013 

 To Profi t & 
Loss A/c 

 As at 
31.03.2014 

DTL

Deferment of Tax Liability on Account of uncertainty related to fi nal sale agreement  263.60  -  263.60 

Total  263.60  -  263.60 

DTA  -  -  - 

-  Employee benefi ts  6.63  (0.80)  5.83 

-  Difference between Book & Tax Depreciation  8.68  (0.00)  8.68 

-  Carry Forward Losses  0.34  690.98  691.32 

-  Expenses Transferred to Income Tax CWIP  39.66  (39.66)  - 

Total  55.31  650.52  705.83 

Net DTL /(DTA)  208.29  (650.52)  (442.23)

Note: DTA & DTL are netted off across the holding & Subsidiary Company

34 Employee Stock Options

 a ESOP  Scheme 2012

 1  At an Annual General Meeting held on 24th September, 2012 resolution to grant upto 1,200,000 options to employees was approved  which entitles the 
option holders to subscribe to one equity shares of the company of face value of `10 per option granted at grant price on such terms and conditions as 
may be fi xed or determined by the board.

 2 At Annual General Meeting held on 24th September , 2013 total options which may be  granted were further modifi ed to 2,400,000 

 4 Compensation Committee had granted 12,00,000 fresh options under Orbit ESOS 2012 at an exercise price of `10/- per option on 1st July 2013

 5 Th e  Options have been granted at exercise price of `10 per option as against the market price of `16.40 per share at the time of grant and have a vesting 
period of one year from the date of grant.

 6 During the year 78,200 Options have lapsed due to separations and 11,21,800 Options were outstanding as on 31st March 2014.

 b Summary of Options Granted

Grant Date No. of Options Options surrendered/
lapsed

Exercise Period Grant Price Market Price Intrinsic Value

01.07.2013 1,200,000                           78,200 01.07.2014 10 16.4 6.4

 c ESOP  Scheme 2009

  All Options granted and outstanding under Orbit ESOS 2009 were surrendered by the employees during the year.

 d Accounting

 1 Th e charge of ` 2.26 millions has been reversed in the current year in respect of options surrendered under Orbit ESOS 2009 .

 2 Th e employee compensation cost applicable for Options granted during the year net of lapse is ` 5.39 millions

 3 During the year ended 2012-13, 10 employees holding options resigned. As a result of separations so far, 78,200 options have lapsed and are available 
for reissue.

 e Others

  Th ere is no employee who has been granted options equal to or exceeding 1% of the Issued Capital.

Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014
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 f Th e movement of stock options during the year ended March 31, 2013 are summarized below:

Number of options
Outstanding at the beginning of the year  Nil 

Exercisable at the beginning of the year  Nil 

Granted during the year            1,200,000 

Granted Options Forfeited during the year                 78,200 

Exercised during the year  Nil 

Expired during the year  Nil 

Money realized by exercise of options  Nil 

Outstanding at the end of the year  11,21,800 

 g For purposes of the proforma disclosures, the fair value of each option grant using the Black Scholes Option Valuation model with the following 
assumptions:

Risk free interest rate 8%

Expected volatility 53%

Years to Maturity from Grant date 1

Stock Price at the time of Option grant 16.4

Expected Dividends Not separately included, factored in volatility working

Calculations
Options granted            1,200,000 

Options Lapsed                 78,200 

Net options granted            1,121,800 

Exercise Price                  10.00 

Market Price on grant date                  16.40 

Intrinsic Value                    6.40 

Fair Value based on Black Scholes Method                    7.65 

Charged during the year to employee cost based on Intrinsic Value (Before Group 
allocation)  ( ` in millions)

                   3.13 

Chargeable to employee cost based on Fair Value ( ` in millions)                    3.41 

Additional charged if Fair Value taken ( ` in millions)                    0.29 

Note: Th e difference in basic and diluted EPS is insignifi cant under both the methods.

35 Th e total value of sales for project mentioned in note 36 for which revenue recognition is applicable is ` 13,619 millions. Out of which ` 10,445 millions 
was recognised in previous years and ` 360 millions is recognised revenue for the year as per percentage completion method. Th e remaining amount i.e. 
outstanding book size is ` 2,814 millions.

36 Th e following is the summary of the projects.

Location wise  Sale Consideration as on 
31st Mar 2014

 Revenue Recognised till 
31st Mar 2013

 Revenue Recognised for 
FY 13-14

Outstanding Book Size

1 Completed Projects

 Lower Parel  471.58  473.48  (1.90)  - 

 471.58  473.48  (1.90)  - 

2  On going Projects 

 Napean Sea Road  5,268.40  3,239.18  38.72  1,990.49 

 Lower Parel  5,048.28  4,437.36  144.69  466.24 

 Prarthna Samaj  507.56  244.01  108.86  154.69 

 Andheri Saki Naka  2,322.74  2,051.04  69.49  202.21 

 13,146.98  9,971.59  361.76  2,813.63 

 Total  13,618.56  10,445.07  359.86  2,813.63 

Notes to the Consolidated Financials Statements for the year ended 31st March 2014
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37. Previous Year Figures

 Th e previous year’s fi gures have been recast / regrouped / rearranged wherever considered necessary.

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board Of Directors

Sharp and Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number 109982W
by the hand of 

Pujit Aggarwal
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN 00133373)

Abdul Mohhamad Sattar
Director
(DIN 06656299)

Milind P. Phadke
Partner
Membership No. 33013

Ramashrya Yadav
Joint -CEO

S R Soni
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2014

Place : Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2014
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Statement pursuant to exemption received under section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 
1956 relating to subsidiary companies

 ` in millions

Particulars Orbit Highcity 
Private Limited

Ahinsa 
Buildtech 

Private Limited

Orbit Residency 
Private Limited

Orbit Habitat 
Private Limited

Mazda 
Construction 

Company 
Private Limited

Karmik Designs 
Private 

Limited*

Country of Incorporation India India India India India India

Financial Year Ended 31st Mar 2014 31st Mar 2014 31st Mar 2014 31st Mar 2014 31st Mar 2014 31st Mar 2014

Subsidiary since 18th Jan 2008 11th Jul 2008 11th Jul 2008 9th Feb 2011 1st Sep 2012 1st Sep 2012

Proportion of Ownership as at 31st March 2014 52.57% 85.00% 100.00% 100.00% 75.19% 75.19%

Equity Shares Held as on 31st March 2014  8,903,226  8,500  10,000  10,000  100,000 767

Share Capital 169.35 0.10 0.10 0.10  13.30  0.10 

Reserves 2,464.48 267.59 (11.42) (9.53)  173.95  (0.34)

Share application money  - 142.65  -  - 

Non-current liabilities 1,484.52 350.95 395.00 53.44  38.24  0.17 

Current liabilities 789.45 287.70 0.07 0.41  61.43  0.13 

Total Liabilities  4,907.81  906.34  383.75  187.07  286.92  0.06 

Fixed Assets 14.98 0.04 43.93  -  0.07  - 

Investments  -  -  -  -  68.84  - 

Deferred Tax Asset  -  -  -  -  0.39  - 

Other Non-current assets 2,509.87 1.90 339.52 186.94  3.61  - 

Current Assets 2,382.96 904.40 0.30 0.13  214.00  0.06 

Total Assets  4,907.81  906.34  383.75  187.07  286.92  0.06 

Operating Income  - 69.49  -  -  -  - 

Other Income 80.87  -  -  0.14  - 

Profi t/(Loss) before Taxation (57.69) (24.49) (2.38) (6.09)  (1.19)  (0.08)

Provision for Taxation 24.39  -  -  -  (0.35)  - 

Profi t/(Loss) after Taxation (82.07) (24.49) (2.38) (6.09) (0.84) (0.08)

Proposed Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

*Shares held through subsidiary

Above Information on subsidiaries is provided in compliance with Circular No. 2/2011 fi le no. 51/12/2007-CL-III dated February 08, 2011 of the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, Government of India. We undertake to provide the annual accounts and related information of subsidiaries, where applicable, upon request by 
any of our shareholders. Th e annual accounts will also be available for inspection during business hours at our registered offi ce in Mumbai, India. 
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Notice

NOTICE is hereby given that the 14th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Orbit Corporation Limited (the ‘Company’) will be held at M. C. Ghia Hall, 4th Floor, 
Bhogilal Hargovindas Building, 18/20 K. Dubash Marg, Kala Ghoda, Mumbai – 400 001 on Saturday, 27th December, 2014 at 10.00 A.M. to transact the following 
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item No. 1 - Adoption of fi nancial statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company including the audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2014, the Statement of Profi t and Loss 
Account for the year ended on that date together with Reports of the Board of Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

Item No. 2 - Appointment of Director

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal (DIN: 00133401), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

Item No. 3 - Appointment of Director

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Pujit Aggarwal (DIN: 00133373), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

Item No. 4 - Appointment of Auditors

To appoint Auditors to hold offi ce from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting, to fi x their remuneration 
and in this regard to consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cation(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and all other applicable provisions of the Act, M/s Sharp & Tannan, Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 109982W) be and are hereby re-appointed as Auditors of the Company to hold offi ce from the conclusion of this Annual General 
Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting on such remuneration as agreed upon by the Board of Directors and the Auditors, in addition to the 
reimbursement of service tax and actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the audit of accounts of the Company for the Financial Year ending 31st 
March, 2015.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item No. 5 - To approve the revised Managerial Remuneration payable to Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal

To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cation(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 197 read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and modifi cations thereof, Mr. Ravi 
Kiran Aggarwal (DIN 00133401) be and is hereby re-appointed as Chairman& Executive Director of the Company for a period of three years with effect from 1st April, 
2014, at remuneration as under.

(1) Remuneration: Monthly remuneration of ` 10,00,000/-

(2) Commission: In addition to the above remuneration, commission at such rate as deemed fi t by the Board, not exceeding 4% of Net Profi ts of the Company, 
computed in accordance with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 may be paid, to Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal.

(3) Perquisites in addition to Salary payable:-

 a. Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal shall be entitled to perquisites and allowances like accommodation (furnished or otherwise) or House Rent Allowances in lieu 
thereof, house maintenance allowance together with reimbursement of expenses or allowances for utilities such as gas, electricity, water, furnishing and 
repairs, use of car and Telephone at residence, Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund and Gratuity, Medical Allowance, Medical Reimbursement, Leave 
Travel Concession for himself and his family, club fees, medical insurance and such other perquisites and allowances in accordance with the rules of the 
company or as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors and the concerned Director, such perquisites and allowances to be restricted to an overall limit 
of 50% of the annual salary payable to him.

 b. For the purpose of the calculating the above ceiling, perquisites shall be evaluated as per the Income Tax Rules wherever applicable. In the absence of any 
such rule, perquisites shall be calculated at the actual cost to the Company and shall not include the reimbursement of expenses incurred by the company 
for and on account of offi cial purposes i.e. to enable Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal to discharge his offi cial duties.

However, the overall amount payable to Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal as Managerial Remuneration shall not exceed the maximum permissible, under Section 197, read 
with Schedule V of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profi ts in any fi nancial year the remuneration payable to Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal shall be 
governed by Part II of Section II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modifi cations or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force, 
as may be approved by the Board from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors or Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized to sign such documents and papers and fi le necessary 
forms with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, and such other authorities as required to give effect to the above.”

Item No. 6 - To approve the revised Managerial Remuneration payable to Mr. Pujit Aggarwal

To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cation(s) the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 197 read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and modifi cations thereof, Mr. Pujit 
Aggarwal (DIN 00133373) be and is hereby re-appointed as Managing Director & CEO of the Company for a period of three years with effect from 1st April, 2014, at 
remuneration as under.

(1) Remuneration: Monthly remuneration of `10,00,000/-

(2) Commission: In addition to the above remuneration commission at such rate as deemed fi t by the Board, not exceeding 4% of Net Profi ts of the Company, 
computed in accordance with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 may be paid, to Mr. Pujit Aggarwal.
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(3) Perquisites in addition to Salary payable:

 a. Mr. Pujit Aggarwal shall be entitled to perquisites and allowances like accommodation (furnished or otherwise) or House Rent Allowances in lieu thereof, 
house maintenance allowance together with reimbursement of expenses or allowances for utilities such as gas, electricity, water, furnishing and repairs, 
use of car and Telephone at residence, Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund and Gratuity, Medical Allowance, Medical Reimbursement, Leave Travel 
Concession for himself and his family, club fees, medical insurance and such other perquisites and allowances in accordance with the rules of the company 
or as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors and the concerned Director, such perquisites and allowances to be restricted to an overall limit of 50% 
of the annual salary payable to him.

 b. For the purpose of the calculating the above ceiling, perquisites shall be evaluated as per the Income Tax Rules wherever applicable. In the absence of any 
such rule, perquisites shall be calculated at the actual cost to the Company and shall not include the reimbursement of expenses incurred by the company 
for and on account of offi cial purposes i.e. to enable Mr. Pujit Aggarwal to discharge his offi cial duties.

However, the overall amount payable to Mr. Pujit Aggarwal as Managerial Remuneration shall not exceed the maximum permissible, under Section 197, read with 
Schedule V of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profi ts in any fi nancial year the remuneration payable to Mr. Pujit Aggarwal shall be governed 
by Part II of Section II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modifi cations or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force, as may 
be approved by the Board from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Director or Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized to sign such documents and papers and fi le necessary 
forms with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, and such other authorities as required to give effect to the above.”

Item No. 7 - Appointment of Mrs. Urvashi Saxena as an Independent Director

To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cation(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualifi cation of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifi cation(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, Mrs. Urvashi Saxena (DIN: 02021303), who was appointed as an Additional Director pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company and who holds offi ce up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom 
the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing her candidature for the offi ce of Director, be 
and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold offi ce for 5 (fi ve) consecutive years for a term upto the conclusion of 19th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company in the calendar year 2019, not liable to retire by rotation.”

Item No. 8 - Appointment of Mr. S.C. Gupta as an Independent Director

To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cation(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modifi cation(s) or re-enactments thereof), read with Schedule IV to the Act, Mr. S.C. Gupta (DIN 00025780), Director of the 
Company be and is hereby appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company to hold offi ce for 5 consecutive years for a term upto the conclusion of 
19th Annual General Meeting of the Company in the calendar year 2019, not liable to retire by rotation.”

Item No. 9 - Appointment of Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar as an Independent Director

To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cation(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modifi cation(s) or re-enactments thereof), read with Schedule IV to the Act, Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar (DIN 06656299), 
Director of the Company be and is hereby appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company to hold offi ce for 5 consecutive years for a term upto the 
conclusion of 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company in the calendar year 2019, not liable to retire by rotation.”

Item No. 10 - Appointment of Mr. Raman Maroo as an Independent Director

To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cation(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modifi cation(s) or re-enactments thereof), read with Schedule IV to the Act, Mr. Raman Maroo (DIN 00169152), Director of the 
Company be and is hereby appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company to hold offi ce for 5 consecutive years for a term upto the conclusion of 
19th Annual General Meeting of the Company in the calendar year 2019, not liable to retire by rotation.”

Item No. 11 - Borrowing powers pursuant to provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cation(s), the following resolutions as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the Ordinary Resolution passed through Postal Ballot declared on 18th August, 2010 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 
180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifi cation(s) or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force), 
the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to Board of Directors to borrow moneys in excess of the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves 
of the Company, provided that the total amount borrowed and outstanding at any point of time, apart from temporary loans obtained/ to be obtained from the 
Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of business, shall not be in excess of ` 2000 crore (Rupees Two Th ousand Crore) over and above the aggregate of the paid 
up share capital and free reserves of the Company.”

Item No. 12 - Creation of charge, mortgage on whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking of the Company pursuant to Section 180(1) (a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013

To consider and if thought fi t, to pass with or without modifi cation(s), the following resolutions as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the Ordinary Resolution passed through Postal Ballot declared on 18th August, 2010 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 
180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifi cation(s) or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force), 
the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to Board of Directors (hereinafter called “the Board”) which term shall be deemed to include any Committee 
thereof, which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this resolution and with the power 
to delegate such authority to any person or person(s) to mortgage and/ or charge any of its movable and/ or immovable properties wherever situated both present 
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and future or to sell, lease or otherwise dispose off the whole or substantially the whole of any such undertaking(s) and to create a mortgage and/ or charge, on such 
terms and conditions at such time(s) and in such form and manner, and with such ranking as to priority as the Board in its absolute discretion thinks fi t on the whole 
or substantially the whole of the Company’s any one or more of the undertakings or all of the undertakings of the Company in favour of any Bank(s) or Body(ies) 
corporate or person(s), whether shareholders of the Company or not, together with interest, cost, charges and expenses thereon for amount not exceeding ` 2000 
crore (Rupees Two Th ousand Crore) over and above the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the securities to be created by the Company aforesaid may rank pari passu/ subservient with/ to the mortgages and/ or charges already 
created or to be created by the Company as may be agreed to between the concerned parties.”

 By order of the Board of Directors
Place: Mumbai S. R. Soni
Dated: 12th November, 2014 Company Secretary
REGISTERED OFFICE:
“Th e View”, 165,
Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400 018

NOTES:
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY(S) TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF 

HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Th e instrument appointing a proxy in order to be valid / effective must be duly 
fi lled in all respects and should be lodged with Company at its registered offi ce at least 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2. Th e Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 which sets out details relating to Special Business at the meeting is annexed 
hereto.

3. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the accounts and operations of the Company are requested to address their queries to the Registered 
Offi ce of the Company in writing at least seven days before the date of the meeting, to enable the Company to make available the required information at the 
meeting, to the extent possible.

4. Th e Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed on 26th December, 2014 to 27th December, 2014 (both days inclusive)
5. Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their address/bank mandate to their respective Depository Participant (DP) in respect of their 

electronic share accounts and to the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at Link Intime (India) Private Limited, C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, 
L.B.S. Road, Bhandup (West), Mumbai – 400 078 in respect of their physical share folios.

6. Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report to the Meeting.
7. Members are requested to bring the Attendance Slip sent herewith duly fi lled for attending the Meeting.
8. Details under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the Annual 

General Meeting, forms part of the Notice. Th e Directors have furnished the requisite declarations for their appointment/ re-appointment.
9. Electronic copy of the Annual Report 2014 is being sent to the members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/ Depository Participant(s) for 

communication purposes unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, physical 
copies of the Annual Report 2014 is being sent in the permitted mode. Positive consent letter is attached to the Notice to the members for giving consent to 
receive documents in electronic mode.

10. Electronic copy of the Notice of the 14th Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance 
Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to the members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/ Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes 
unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the Notice of 
the 14th Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being 
sent in the permitted mode.

 Members may also note that the Notice of the 14th Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report 2014 will also be available on the Company’s Website 
www.orbitcorp.com for download. Th e physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company’s Registered Offi ce for inspection during 
normal business hours on working days. Even after registering for e-communication members are entitled to receive such communication in physical form, 
upon making a request for the same by post free of cost. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s investor email id: 
investor@orbitcorp.com .

11. Voting through electronic means
 I. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is 

pleased to provide its members the facility to exercise their right to vote at the 14th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means. Th e business 
may be transacted through e-voting services provided by Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL).

  Th e instructions for e-voting are as under:
 (i) Th e voting period begins on 17th December, 2014 (9.30 a.m.) and ends on 19th December, 2014 (5.30 p.m.). During this period shareholders’ of the 

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 28th November, 2014 may cast their vote 
electronically. Th e e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

 (ii) Th e shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
 (iii) Click on Shareholders.
 (iv) Now Enter your User ID:

  a. For CDSL: 16 digits benefi ciary ID,

  b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

  c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

 (v) Next enter the Image Verifi cation as displayed and Click on Login.

 (vi) If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing 
password is to be used
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 (vii) If you are a fi rst time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both Demat shareholders as well as physical 
shareholders)

� Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the fi rst two letters of their 
name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the PAN fi eld.

� In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before the number after the fi rst two characters 
of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN Field.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your Demat account or in the company records for the said Demat account or folio in DD/MM/YYYY 
format.

Dividend 
Bank 
Details

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your Demat account or in the company records for the said Demat account or folio.

� Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the details are not recorded with the depository or company please 
enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details fi eld as mentioned in instruction (iv).

 (viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

 (ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members holding shares in Demat form will 
now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password fi eld. Kindly note that this 
password is to be also used by the Demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company 
opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confi dential.

 (x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

 (xi) Click on the EVSN for Orbit Corporation Limited on which you choose to vote.

 (xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as 
desired. Th e option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

 (xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

 (xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confi rmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confi rm your vote, click 
on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

 (xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

 (xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

 (xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User ID and the image verifi cation code and click on Forgot Password & enter 
the details as prompted by the system.

 (xviii) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians:

  � Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register 
themselves as Corporates.

  � A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

  � After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and password. Th e Compliance user would be able to 
link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

  � Th e list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

  � A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded 
in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

 (xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.
evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

 II. Th e e-voting period commences on 17th December, 2014 (9.30 a.m.) and ends on 19th December, 2014 (5.30 p.m.). During this period shareholders of the 
Company, holding Shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date: 28th November, 2014 may cast their vote electronically.

 III. Th e voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their Shares in the paid up Equity Shares capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 28th 
November, 2014

 IV. Mr. Pramod H Mehendale & Co., Practising Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS 4604) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the 
e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

 V. Th e Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion of the e-voting period unblock the votes in the presence of 
at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith 
to the Chairman of the Company.

  Th e Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. Th e Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the 
Company’s website www.orbitcorp.com and on the website of CDSL within Two (2) days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the Company and 
communicated to the Stock Exchanges.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (‘’the Act’’)

Item No. 2 and 3

Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal and Mr. Pujit Aggarwal, in the past, were the non-retiring Directors. However, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board 
in its meeting held on 29th May 2014 categorised them as a Directors liable to retire by rotation and they are now due for re-appointment at this Annual General 
Meeting. Being eligible, they offer themselves for re-appointment. However, their reappointment at the Meeting shall not be construed as break in holding offi ce as 
Directors of the Company.

As regards re-appointment of Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal and Mr. Pujit Aggarwal referred to in Item no. 2 and 3 of the Notice, necessary disclosures are made part of 
this Notice.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives, except Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal and Mr. Pujit Aggarwal, are in any way concerned 
or interested in the said resolution.

Th e Board recommends Ordinary Resolutions set out at Item Nos. 2 and 3 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders.

Item No. 5 and 6

Th e Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 29th May, 2014 has subject to approval of the members, reappointed Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal as 
Chairman & Executive Director and Mr. Pujit Aggarwal as Managing Director & CEO, for a period of 3 (three) years with effect from 1st April, 2014 as the remuneration 
recommended by the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and approved by the Board.

Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal and Mr. Pujit Aggarwal have been the Chairman & Executive Director and Managing Director & CEO respectively of the Company since 10th 
April, 2006.

Th e overall amount payable to Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal and Mr. Pujit Aggarwal as Managerial Remuneration shall not exceed the maximum permissible, under Section 
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V of the Act.

In the event of absence or inadequacy of profi t in any fi nancial year the remuneration payable to Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal and Mr. Pujit Aggarwal shall be governed 
by Part II of Section II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modifi cation or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, as may be 
approved by the Board from time to time.

General-

(i) Th e Chairman and Managing Director will perform their respective duties as such with regard to all work of the Company and they will manage and attend to 
such business and carry out the orders and directions given by the Board from time to time in all respects and conform to and comply with all such directions 
and regulations as may from time to time be given and made by the Board.

(ii) Th e Chairman and Managing Director shall act in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and shall abide by the provisions contained in 
Section 166 of the Act with regard to duties of directors.

(iii) Th e Chairman and Managing Director shall adhere to the Company’s Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel.

Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal and Mr. Pujit Aggarwal satisfy all the conditions set out in Part-I of Schedule V to the Act as also conditions set out under Sub-Section (3) 
of Section 196 of the Act for being eligible for his re-appointment. Th ey are not disqualifi ed from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act.

Th e above may be treated as a written memorandum setting out the terms of re-appointment of Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal and Mr. Pujit Aggarwal under Section 190 
of the Act.

Brief resume of Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal and Mr. Pujit Aggarwal, nature of their expertise in specifi c functional areas, names of companies in which they hold 
directorships and memberships / chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding and relationships amongst directors inter-se as stipulated under Clause 49 of 
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, are provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives, except Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal and Mr. Pujit Aggarwal, are in any way concerned 
or interested in the said resolution.

Th e Board recommends Special Resolutions set out at Item Nos. 5 and 6 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders.

Item No. 7

Th e Board of Directors of the Company appointed, pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs. Urvashi 
Saxena as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 12th February, 2014. In terms of the provisions of Section 161 of the Act, Mrs.Urvashi Saxena would 
hold offi ce up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Th e Company has received a notice in writing from a member alongwith the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of 
Smt. Urvashi Saxena for the offi ce of Director of the Company.

Mrs. Urvashi Saxena is not disqualifi ed from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given her consent to act as a Director. Section 
149 of the Act inter alia stipulates the criteria of independence that a Company should propose to appoint an independent director on its Board. As per the said 
Section 149, an independent director can hold offi ce for a term up to 5 (fi ve) consecutive years on the Board of a company and she shall not be included in the total 
number of directors for retirement by rotation.

Th e Company has received a declaration from Mrs. Urvashi Saxena that she meets with the criteria of independence as prescribed both under Sub-Section (6) of 
Section 149 of the Act and under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. Mrs. Urvashi Saxena possesses appropriate skills, experience and knowledge, inter alia, in the 
fi eld of fi nance, etc.

In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Urvashi Saxena fulfi lls the conditions for her appointment as an Independent Director as specifi ed in the Act and the Listing 
Agreement. Mrs. Urvashi Saxena is independent of the management and also does not hold any shares in the Company. Brief resume of Mrs. Urvashi Saxena, nature 
of her expertise in specifi c functional areas and names of companies in which she holds directorships and memberships /chairmanships of Board Committees, 
shareholding and relationships between directors inter-se as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, are forming a part of 
this Notice.
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Th e terms and conditions of appointment of Mrs. Urvashi Saxena as an Independent Director shall be open for inspection at the registered offi ce of the Company by 
any member during normal business hours and the same shall also be available at the Company’s website.

Save and except Mrs. Urvashi Saxena and her relatives, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company, none of the other Directors / Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice.

Th e Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders.

Item No. 8, 9 and 10

Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, which came into effect from 1st April 2014, requires every listed Company to have one-third of the total number of Directors 
as independent Directors. As on 31st March 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company comprised Mr. Raman Maroo, Mr. S.C. Gupta, Mr. Abdul Sattar and Mrs. Urvashi 
Saxena as independent directors pursuant to erstwhile clause 49 of the listing agreement.

Accordingly, with the recommendations of the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 29th May 
2014, appointed Mr. S.C. Gupta, Mr. Raman Maroo and Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar, Directors, as Independent Directors of the Company pursuant to section 149, 
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, of the Companies Act, 2013 and they shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

Th erefore, as required under Schedule IV, appointment of these independent Directors is set out in the item 8, 9 and 10 of the Notice for approval of shareholders 
and none of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested in the said resolutions of the Notice.

Th e independent Directors have submitted the declaration of independence, as required pursuant to section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they 
meet the criteria of independence as provided in sub-Section (6). Th e respective appointee is not disqualifi ed from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 
164 of the Act.

Th e terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors shall be open for inspection at the registered offi ce of the Company by any member during normal 
business hours and the same shall also be available at the Company’s website.

Th e Board is of the opinion that the aforesaid Directors possess requisite skills, experience and knowledge relevant to the Company’s business and it would be in the 
interest of the Company to continue to have their association with the Company as directors.

Further, in the opinion of the Board, the proposed appointment of independent Directors fulfi lls the conditions specifi ed in the Act and the Rules made thereunder 
and that the proposed appointment of independent directors is independent of the management.

Th e brief profi le of the aforesaid Directors forms part of this Notice.

Item No.11

Th e members of the Company through postal ballot declared on 18th August 2010, approved by way of an Ordinary Resolution under Section 293(1)(d) of the 
Companies Act, 1956, borrowings over and above the aggregate of paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company provided that the total amount of such 
borrowings together with the amounts already borrowed and outstanding at any point of time shall not be in excess of ` 2000 Crore (Rupees Two Th ousand crore).

Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act 2013 requires that the Board of Directors shall not borrow money in excess of the company’s paid up share capital and free 
reserves, apart from temporary loans obtained from the company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business except with the consent of the Company accorded by 
way of a Special Resolution.

It is, therefore, necessary for the members to pass a Special Resolution under Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as set out 
at Item No. 11 of the Notice, to enable the Board of Directors to borrow money in excess of the aggregate of paid up share capital and free reserves of the Company. 
Approval of members is being sought to borrow money upto ` 2000 crore (Rupees Two Th ousand crore) in excess of the aggregate of paid up share capital and free 
reserves of the Company.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are concerned or interested in the resolution set out at Item No.11 of Notice for 
approval by the shareholders.

Item No.12

Th e members of the Company through postal ballot declared on 18th August 2010, approved by way of an Ordinary Resolution under Section 293(1)(a) of the 
Companies Act, 1956, the Company accorded consent to the Board of Directors for creating mortgage or charge on its movable or immovable properties for an amount 
not exceeding ` 2000 crore (Rupees Two Th ousand crore).

Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2013 requires that the Board of Directors shall not create mortgage or charge on its movable or immovable properties, except 
with the consent of the members accorded by way of a Special Resolution.

It is, therefore, necessary for the members to pass a Special Resolution under Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as set 
out at Item No. 12 of the Notice, to enable the Board of Directors to create mortgage or charge on its movable or immovable properties, approval of members is being 
sought.

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are concerned or interested in the resolution set out at Item No.12 of Notice for 
approval by the shareholders.

 By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai S. R. Soni
Dated: 12th November, 2014 Company Secretary

REGISTERED OFFICE:
“Th e View”, 165,
Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400 018
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BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ENSUING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(As required under Clause 49IV (G) of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges):-

Name Ravi Kiran Aggarwal Pujit Aggarwal Urvashi Saxena S.C. Gupta Abdul Mohammad Sattar Raman Hirji Maroo
Age 66 42 69 67 71 65
Date of Appointment 07.03.2000 07.03.2000 12.02.2014 24.05.2011 13.08.2013 21.05.2007
Qualifi cations Graduation from BITS 

Pilani, Post-Graduation 
from Delhi University

B.Com, OPM (Owner President) 
from Harvard Business 
School USA, AMDP (Advanced 
Management & Design 
Program) from the Graduate 
School of Design Harvard 
University

M.A., LLB, IRS M. Com, CAIIB MA (English Literature) with 
First Class, Gold Medallist

Bachelor of Science

Expertise in specifi c 
functional areas

Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal 
is an engineer from BITS 
Pilani. Subsequently he 
did his MBA from Delhi 
University. He promoted 
a company named Tasty 
Bite Eatables Limited 
which was subsequently 
sold to Hindustan Lever 
Limited. He has extensive 
experience in construction 
business and has 
undertaken development 
of various properties in 
Mumbai which includes 
offi ce complexes as well 
as residential premises. 
He oversees the design and 
project execution functions 
in India. His extensive 
experience and expertise 
coupled with superior 
management skills 
has spearheaded Orbit 
Corporation to heights of 
success.

 Mr. Pujit Aggarwal is the 
Managing Director & CEO of 
Orbit Corporation Limited. He 
currently manages the day-to 
day operations of the Company. 
Armed with an international 
management education from 
Harvard Business School, 
he has about 25 years of 
experience that has given him 
an incomparable edge. He 
has actively represented the 
forum at various levels viz, 
before the state government 
and the World Bank. Th rough 
his progressive ideas and 
strategies, he has contributed 
to the development of Mumbai 
into a world class city.

Mrs. Saxena has about 40 years 
of rich experience in the fi eld of 
Income Tax and allied fi elds. She 
has joined the Indian Revenue 
Services in 1968.She held 
several important assignments 
in the Income Tax Department 
like being the fi rst lady D.D.I. 
(Investigation) and the fi rst lady 
Chief Commissioner in Mumbai. 
She received several� citations, 
rewards and awards for her 
distinguished service during 
a long and outstanding career 
of 37 years. After retirement 
she was appointed as member 
of the Income Tax Settlement 
Commission where she rose to 
the position of Vice-Chairperson 
and fi nally retired as the 
Chairperson in June 2007. Her 
areas of specialisation includes 
International Taxation, Transfer 
Pricing issues, etc.

He possesses more than 4 
decades of illustrious experience 
in Banking domain. He began 
his career with the State Bank 
of India in 1966 and later 
served Syndicate Bank and 
Oriental Bank of Commerce at 
various positions. He joined 
the Indian Overseas Bank as 
Executive Director in 1999 and 
was promoted to the position 
of Chairman and Managing 
Director in 2001. Under his 4 
years of able leadership, the 
Bank attained greater heights. 
Soon after, the Govt. of India (M. 
O. F.) recommended him as the 
Chairman and Managing Director 
of one of the largest public sector 
banks of India, Punjab National 
Bank, where he rendered his 
services and superannuated on 
31 May, 2007.

He brings with himself more 
than 40 years of teaching 
in English Language and 
Literature. He was Head 
of Department of English 
Literature at Sydhneham 
College of Commerce and 
Economics and was also 
heading Department of 
Business Communication. 
He is an avid writer and a 
Poet and several of his short 
stories and Poems have 
been published in leading 
magazines.
During his distinguished Career, 
he was Honorary Consultant to 
BBC (British Broad Casting 
Service) for almost 20 years 
and he used to appear regularly 
on the BBC letter box program. 
His recommended several Plays 
have been broadcasted from 
the BBC, Bushhouse, London. 
In addition, he was at the aegis 
on External Audience Research 
of the BBC.

He is the Managing Director of 
Shemaroo Entertainment Limited. 
He has been associated with the 
Shemaroo Group since 1974. He 
has approximately 40 years of 
business experience, out of which, 
he has been associated with 
the media and entertainment 
industry for more than 30 years. 
He has been instrumental in our 
Group‘s expansion into television 
rights syndication as well as 
transformation of Shemaroo into 
a content house. He has led our 
Company’s growth for many years. 
He has valuable relationships 
with various key players within 
the Indian entertainment 
industry, including fi lm producers, 
television broadcasters, amongst 
others. He has received the 
‘Girnar Award’ from Bruhad 
Mumbai Gujarati Samaj for 
outstanding contribution in 
the fi eld of Entertainment in 
November 2000.

Directorship of other 
Companies*

1. Orbit Raking Solutions 
Limited

1. Shalimar Paints Limited.
2. Orbit Raking Solutions 

Limited

1. Kosi Bridge Infrastructure 
Company Limited

2. Gammon India Limited
3. Elder Pharmaceuticals 

Limited
4. Elder Health Care Limited
5. ShardaCropchem Limited

1. ISMT Ltd.
2. Emmsons International Ltd.
3. Solar Industries India Ltd.
4. Bralampurtra Infraprojects 

Ltd.
5. Bralampurtra Infrastructure 

Ltd.
6. Gujrat Foils Ltd.
7. Gita Energy Generation Pvt 

Ltd.
8. SMC Global Securities Ltd.
9. Jai Balaji Ind. Ltd.
10. Pendent ARC Ltd.
11. PUG Securities Pvt. Ltd.

NIL 1. Shemaroo Entertainment 
Limited

2. Malabar Hill Club Limited
3. Talwalkars Better Value 

Fitness Limited

Chairman/ Member of 
the Committees of the 
board of the Companies 
on which he/ she is a 
Director*

NIL NIL NIL 1. ISMT Ltd.
2. SMC Global Securities Ltd.
3. Jai Balaji Ind. Ltd.

NIL Shemaroo Entertainment 
Limited:
IPO Committee-Chairman
Executive Committee - Chairman

Shareholding in Orbit 
Corporation Limited

2,22,05,339 Shares
(19.48%)

2,27,25,899 Shares
(19.94%)

NIL NIL NIL 2000 Shares
(NIL %)

*: Does not include Alternate directorships, Directorships in Private Ltd. Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies registered under Sec. 25 of the Companies 
Act, 1956.

 By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai S. R. Soni
Dated: 12thNovember, 2014 Company Secretary

REGISTERED OFFICE:
“Th e View”, 165,
Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400 018
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ORBIT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: L72900MH2000PLC124729

Regd. Offi ce: Th e View, 1st Floor, 165, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018. India
Email: investor@orbitcorp.com; Phone: 91 22 30446910; Fax: 91 22 24911028

Website: www.orbitcorp.com

PROXY FORM
                 (Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)  

Name of the Member(s): 

Registered address:

e-mail Id:

Folio No/ *Client Id:

*DP Id:

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

I/We, being the member(s) of……………......................................…. Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:

1) ……………………...................................….....…… of ……………………..............................….....…… having e-mail Id ………………....……......….....…… or failing him 

2) ……………………...................................….....…… of ……………………..............................….....…… having e-mail Id ………………....……......….....…… or failing him 

3) ……………………...................................….....…… of …………………........................…......….....…… having e-mail Id ……………………................................….....…… 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us on my/our behalf at the 14TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company at M. C. Ghia Hall, 4th 
Floor, Bhogilal Hargovindas Building, 18/20, K. Dubash Marg, Kala Ghoda, Mumbai – 400001 to be held on Saturday, 27th December, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. 
and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

S. No. Resolutions For Against
Ordinary Business

1. Adoption of fi nancial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2014.

2. Appointment of Director in place of Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal who retires by rotation and being eligible 
offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Appointment of Director in place of Mr. Pujit Aggarwal who retires by rotation and being eligible offers 
himself for re-appointment.

4. Appointment of Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2015.

Special Business
5. To approve the revised Managerial Remuneration payable to Mr. Ravi Kiran Aggarwal.

6. To approve the revised Managerial Remuneration payable to Mr. Pujit Aggarwal.

7. Appointment of Mrs. Urvashi Saxena as an Independent Director.

8. Appointment of Mr. Satish Chandra Gupta as an Independent Director.

9. Appointment of Mr. Abdul Mohammad Sattar as an Independent Director.

10. Appointment of Mr. Raman Maroo as an Independent Director.

11. To approve borrowing powers pursuant to provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

12. To approve creation of charge, mortgage on whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking of the 
Company pursuant to Section 180(1) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Signed this …....………Day of ……..........................….. 2014

 ______________________________ ______________________________
 (Signature of Member) (Signature of Proxy)

Re. 1
Revenue 
Stamp

Note: (1) Th is Form duly completed and signed should be deposited at the registered offi ce of the Company not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the meeting.

(2) Please put a ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or 
all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

   

 





ORBIT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: L72900MH2000PLC124729

Regd. Offi ce: Th e View, 1st Floor, 165, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018. India
Email: investor@orbitcorp.com; Phone: 91 22 30446910; Fax: 91 22 24911028

Website: www.orbitcorp.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
14TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - 27TH DECEMBER, 2014

TO BE HANDED OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL

Full Name of the Members attending
(In Block Letters):……………………………………………………………......................……………........................................................................………………

Full Name of the Proxy
(In Block Letters):…………………………………………………………………………………...............................................................................................………
(To be fi lled in if Proxy attends instead of the Member)

I hereby record my presence at the 14TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company at M C Ghia Hall, 4th Floor, Bhogilal Hargovindas 
Building, 18/20, K. Dubash Marg, Kala Ghoda, Mumbai – 400 001 to be held on Saturday, 27th December, 2014 at 10:00 a.m.

Ledger  ...............................................................................................................................................................................................................

Folio No. ............................................................................................................................................................................................................

DP ID* ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………........................………………………………

Client ID*……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………......................……………………………

No. of Shares held ……………………………………….

     
     
 …………………………………………………………
(To be signed at the time of handing over this slip)                           (Member’s / Proxy Signature)

*Applicable for the members holding shares in electronic form.
Note: Member(s) are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting.







w
w
w
.w
es
te
rn
pr
es
s.i
n




